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China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (stock code: 3320) is a leading
integrated pharmaceutical company in China. Our business spans across
manufacturing, distribution and retail of pharmaceutical and healthcare
products. Since the establishment in 2007, the Group has developed into the
fifth largest pharmaceutical manufacturer and the third largest pharmaceutical
distributor in China. In October 2016, the Company successfully completed its
global offering in Hong Kong. Since its listing, the Company has been included
in a number of capital market indexes such as MSCI China Index, FTSE Global
Large Cap Index, constituent stock of Hang Seng Composite Large Cap Index
and Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index, reflecting a global
recognition by the international capital markets on the Group's business
performance, growth potential, market capitalization, and share liquidity.

Our manufacturing business encompasses the research and development,
manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products. We manufacture more
than 430 products comprising chemical drugs, Chinese medicines and
biopharmaceutical drugs as well as nutritional and healthcare products,
covering a wide range of therapeutic areas including cardiovascular, alimentary
tract and metabolism, large-volume IV infusion, pediatrics, respiratory system
etc.. Besides, we own a series of strong, well-known brands including
“Sanjiu (= /1) ", “Dong-E-E-Jiao (ERFFAB) ”, “Double-Crane (£ %5) ”
“Jiangzhong (GT A1) " and “Zizhu (£147) “

We operate a national distribution network comprising 170 logistics centers
strategically across 28 provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions in
China. Leveraging our comprehensive product portfolio and wide distribution
networks, we directly distribute products to hospitals and other medical
institutions across the country. In addition, we operate one of the largest retail
pharmacy networks in China, comprising over 850 retail pharmacies under
national or regional premium brands — "CR Care (ZFEH=E) ", "Yibaoquanxin
(BR2%1) ", "Li'an chain (3&%238388) ”, and “Tung Tak Tong (RI{EE) “
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and non-executive Director
Mr. FU Yuning (resigned on 21 March 2019)

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. WANG Chuncheng

(appointed as Chairman of the Board on

21 March 2019)

Executive Director and President
Mr. SONG Qing (resigned on 6 August 2018)

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Vice President
Mr. LI Guohui

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Rong

Mr. YU Zhongliang

Mr. WANG Shouye (appointed on 18 May 2018)
Mr. LYU Ruizhi (appointed on 18 May 2018)

Mr. WANG Chenyang (retired on 18 May 2018)
Ms. WANG Jing (resigned on 18 May 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne

Mr. KWOK Kin Fun

Mr. FU Tingmei

Mr. ZHANG Kejian

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne (Chairman)
Mr. CHEN Rong

Mr. LYU Ruizhi (appointed on 18 May 2018)
Ms. WANG Jing (resigned on 18 May 2018)
Mr. KWOK Kin Fun

Mr. FU Tingmei

Mr. ZHANG Kejian

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. FU Yuning (Chairman)
(resigned on 21 March 2019)
Mr. WANG Chuncheng (Chairman)
(appointed as Chairman of the Nomination Committee on 21 March 2019)

Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne
Mr. KWOK Kin Fun

Mr. FU Tingmei

Mr. ZHANG Kejian
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. KWOK Kin Fun (Chairman)
Mr. CHEN Rong

Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne
Mr. FU Tingmei

Mr. ZHANG Kejian

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. FU Tingmei (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Chuncheng

Mr. LI Guohui

Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne
Mr. KWOK Kin Fun

Mr. ZHANG Kejian

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. WANG Chuncheng (Chairman)
Mr. SONG Qing (resigned on 6 August 2018)
Mr. LI Guohui

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. WANG Chuncheng
Mr. LI Guohui

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. LO Chi Lik Peter

LEGAL ADVISORS

Clifford Chance
Jia Yuan Law Offices

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
(appointed on 18 May 2018)
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(retired on 18 May 2018)

REGISTERED OFFICE

41/F, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong
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BEHXAT

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

IN HONG KONG

Room 4104-05

41/F, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen'’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
Agricultural Bank of China Beisanhuan Sub-Branch Beijing
Agricultural Bank of China Shenzhen Overseas Chinese Town Branch
Banco Santander, S.A. Hong Kong Branch

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

China Construction Bank Beijing Railway Branch

China Merchants Bank Chang'an Street Sub-Branch Beijing
Crédit Agricole CIB, Hong Kong Branch

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Wangfujing Branch
ING Bank N.V.

Mizuho Bank, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

MUFG Bank, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Natixis Hong Kong Branch

Overseas-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Xuanwu Branch
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Westpac Banking Corporation

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Strategic Financial Relations Limited

COMPANY'S WEBSITE

http:/Avww.crpharm.com

STOCK CODE
3320
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RAFRA BXEZBMEIN THFAZERE

BT -

(RRBFARE]
"AGM"

[FASERAA ]

“Articles of Association”

[EEg]

"Board”
[ EE ]

"BSCcomMcC”

[TEERTH
“CG Code”

[FE
“China” or “PRC"

NSS!

“Companies Ordinance”

[ARDE) [ HEE

"Company” or “CR Pharmaceutical”
[ 8IR1T

“CR Bank”
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In this annual report, the following expressions shall have the following
meanings unless the context indicates otherwise:

ARFBRFBEAE

annual general meeting of the Company

RRBRZE—RFAAZTEEFIRBRRANEBRERZAA (BTRE
71)

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time), adopted by
Special Resolution passed on 20 June 2016

Exg

board of Directors

ERBEHEERZEEERD L — KNP EEMARZOEBERE REMANTIER
®

State-Owned Capital Operation And Management Center Of Beijing (1t B A & A
KEEIRAIL) |, a state-owned enterprise incorporated in the PRC and our substantial
Shareholder

ETR RIS AT M R X EVR ST A

Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

hEARKME iAFHN S TREES RPFISIITHR NG E
People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purposes of this annual report only, Hong
Kong, Macau SAR and Taiwan

NEHER (BB EDIFE622E) (KETRHERT)
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (as amended from
time to time)

EHBEEEARAA
China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited

REERRITROARAE —KPRPEK RN ER QG A —RKAEL
RINEBW T A RRIT RAFHRAH FERMFHEEPLT7533% %R
China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd. (X8 ZEEEBTRMD AR LA F), a
company limited by shares established in the PRC and a municipal commercial bank
headquartered in Zhuhai, in which CRC holds approximately 75.33% interest as at the
date of this annual report
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[E B

“CR Double-Crane”

[ B2z

"CR Health”

[EHEE]

“CR Holdings"

(EBIrEE]

"“CR Jiangzhong Group”

[FEHHEE]

"“CR Leasing”

e GSES

In

“CR Pharmaceutical Commercia

EHEREEROHERAR FIHEILREBREERMNERAR —KIREPEE
BEMK AR EROELGFESZ S L™ (RS : 600062)

China Resources Double-Crane Pharmaceutical Company Limited ( 2 B & £ 22 £ j%
A EBRAT]) , formerly known as Beijing Double-Crane Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (1t
REBEER(HAR/AR]), acompany incorporated under the laws of the PRC, the
shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600062)

EHEREBEFRAR (AIMAEHBEEERBRAR) - —RKNEBTMAL
WERARWAEREENZENE QA

China Resources Healthcare Group Limited ( ZE {2 & [E AR A 7], formerly known
as EHEBEESEEAFMR AR, acompany incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Holdings as at the date of this annual
report

EFH(KE)ARAR —KRBETMEAZLHERAR REFRNOBER AR
2EWB LR R ZERAR

China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Resources Co.,
Limited and our controlling Shareholder

EFEIPRESERREELR AIBIEIPRE (KE)BREERA) —
KRPBEIKI AR BLHEENERRR  WARRFZIETEMB LA
China Resources Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (¥ 8 T & i &
B R E 2 7)) formerly known as Jiangxi Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical (Group) Co.,
Ltd TP TR %E (£ 8 ) AR E(LAR]), acompany established in the PRC,
the controlling shareholder of Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical and a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

EHHEEARAR —RNPEKZNEREEAF RAFHRE S FRERN
B 5 A H60% 5

China Resources Leasing Co., Ltd. (ZEHHEEBR 2 7]) , a limited liability company
established in the PRC, in which CRC holds 60% indirect interest as at the date of this
annual report

EHBUENESERRAR MBI RBHEROERAG] —KR_ZEZTEF
TZAZ T ARBREVEERFMK LN AR AERRARZEWNE AR

China Resources Pharmaceutical Commercial Group Company Limited ( Z B %8 %% i
¥EBEARAF), formerly known as Beijing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (1t 5% &8 A%
AR AT, acompany incorporated under the laws of the PRC on 27 December
2000 and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2018 7
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[EEMEs Rz ]

"CR Pharmaceutical Holdings"

(M=

"CR Sanjiu”

[EBETt]

“CR Trust”

[ ER ]
“CRC”

[E%]

“Director(s)”

[ SRFTR R

“Dong-E-E-Jiao”

[A&HE ]

“Group”

(&%
“Hong Kong"”
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FEHRBEERARAR A= NIEREBR AR —RIBEHREVAEZMA L
AR BEARARIZENB AR

China Resources Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited ( % B &8 2247 j§ 5 R A
A]), formerly known as New Sanjiu Holdings Co., Ltd. (BT = L3ERBR A F]), a
company incorporated under the laws of the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

EFH-NBERMNERAR AIB=NBEROHBRAF —KREFEDEET
MAZ R AR AR FERYIZE SR 5 AT B (ARt 5% - 000999)

China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Company Limited ( % B = %8 %
R BFRAR]) , formerly known as Sanjiu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. ( = J1LE& BERG {7
BIRAF]), acompany incorporated under the laws of the PRC, the shares of which
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000999)

FRHREAREFBERLAF —KPRFBEKXZNBEREETRR RAFHREL
R 758 E P51 %

China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd. (FEEREISEFEARAR]) , a limited liability
company established in the PRC, in which CRC holds 51% interest as at the date of this
annual report

FHRMHAR DG —KPEFERZBIRG B R A R ARMEZERAR
China Resources Co., Limited (ZH & (7B R 2 F]) , a joint stock limited liability
company established in the PRC and our controlling Shareholder

ZINNEF: ==
director(s) of the Company

SR B 2 AR 10 B PR )+ A AR L RS BT ] R R - L SR SR PRI PRI (SR ) AR 1D A IR
RNEIRILIRRFMBRNDER AR —RIBIERBUEEZF MK IO AR HR KD
ERYFEFRZ S L (BRHRSE : 000423)

Dong-E-E-Jiao Company Limited ( 52 B Bl 2 A% 13 B BR 2 7)) , formerly known as
Shandong Dong-E-E-Jiao Factory ( LI 52 S B i B2 & ) , Shandong Dong-E-E-Jiao
(Group) Co., Ltd. (L BB RE (£E) {5 B BR A7) and Shandong Dong-E-E-
Jiao Co., Ltd. (IR BAR D BRAT]) , a company incorporated under the laws
of the PRC, the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
000423)

EN/NSIP &R N

the Company and its subsidiaries

PEEBFAITTHE
the Hong Kong SAR of the PRC
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[BRAFRER]
“PO”

DIz |

“Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical”

[ £
“Listing”

[Em A
“Listing Date”

[ EmmsRAl]

“Listing Rules”

[t2%<rAl]
“Model Code”

[ERER]

“Prospectus”

[ 3R = AR
“Reporting Period”

M5BT E ]
“SAR"

&5 R EERM ]
"SFO"

gl
“Share(s)"”

&l
“Shareholder(s)”

ERNGEEL

initial public offering

IHREEROHBERAG —KOFRBEKNIZHAR] ERNE HEEFR S LT
(Bt H55% - 600750)
Jiangzong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (JT R ZEZE R DB R A F]), a company
established in the PRC, the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600750)

A& An FERE S P EAR £ TR
the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

—E-RF+A=Z+NH
28 October 2016

B2 g s LR A (BT RHERT)
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as amended from
time to time)

ERBIM S PAE ) BT AZFTETESF R HHIRESTE]
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules

RAREHRA-Z—RFTATLANBRER
the prospectus of the Company dated 17 October 2016

BE_ZT-\F+_A=T—HILBHERFE
the financial year ended 31 December 2018

o B B 45 BT TR
Special Administrative Region, PRC

BEBEMEBESTIEREF LEE RN (LCREHER])
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (as
amended from time to time)

VNN g
share(s) of the Company

ARBIWBEHEE A
holder(s) of Shares of the Company

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2018 9
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[ B8 32 PR
"Stock Exchange”

BB
“HK$" or “HKD"

[AR®]
"RMB"

[%7t]
llus$ll Or llulel

[% |

"oy

ERBMAERHMAERRAR]
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

B BBEEEEN
Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

AR HEDEEES

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of China

EIAESE R

United States Dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America

AT

per cent

EARERRA  RPEBEKHAFIHEE AR In the event of any inconsistency in the Chinese and English versions of the
FHEMP N ZBEE R EZINAETMEZE " names of the PRC established companies or entities, laws or regulations in this

BARR X R R -

10 2018F4% zErscEsRAF

annual report, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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Chairman’s Statement

Mr. WANG Chuncheng, Chairman
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Dear Shareholders,

I would like to extend my sincere appreciation to all Shareholders and all
stakeholders for their continuing support to CR Pharmaceutical. As Chairman
of the Board, | hereby present the annual results of CR Pharmaceutical for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Last year, a series of major events centered on China-US trade friction have
profoundly affected the global economy and the globalization process in the
future. Given both internal de-leveraging process and external risks, China'’s
economy was slowing down and facing more challenges ahead. Driven by
the healthcare reform, a couple of thorough policies have been launched in
China’s pharmaceutical industry while changes led by the regulatory authorities
will have a significant impact on the industry from long-term perspective.
China’s pharmaceutical industry has been normalized with slower growth
rate. In recent years, a series of important healthcare policies and frameworks
accompanied by implementation regulations have been issued, with an aim
to promote quality and efficiency as well as to encourage innovation and new
drug development. It will be a trend for quality supervision and environment
protection to become more stringent going forward. We see successful
achievements derived from various healthcare reforms, driving healthcare
industry into an optimal stage where structural opportunities have been
observed. Under the trend, both industry and enterprises are experiencing
impressive changes.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2018 11
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BEHRR AEBEERFARAIERAMIMEA R
CHREHEN R BB NS EHEE
WBBIAE - MRIMNERR - BB REEEYL
BILERES HEHRBBRCAE LB
EXBHRAMERD F  INoEmE g R MR
EIRCRITESEEBUE HERBETERLM
fL-AEBEEMABEMFEE RO ERLLERE
BRMAEEERF HEEEREEERS
THAEEXRIR  AIREERENGHTELRT
BRRERA -

-\ FRAEEEE [+t =-A BEEEEZEN
R F EREZENITEREREBERT
EETg ASEEEENM2BE T HAUER
MEEXRRORSMBENETETEF S8
FTELEEZBRER RATNRFERERR
FoAASE [+ R BEAENERETT
BREAR - —FT—\F AEEERAKZEE
189,689. 1B BT WM EFEILMNI.9% : WEHIE
KAREA ANEMEFEE403798E T &
ZE-EFEEMS59%

RE-_T—NF IBRBEAREMERIL IR
OB T AT R AN K - o B 8 R4 R A S AR
EEEH BEBRILEEE UENKESH
BERZLOMEEEMEBEMN [FEEMRA EAE
By CBRERA EEBE SRMERARSAE
RE TEIMMERE REEZSENBE IR
R HEBMISEPERE TR - BWRITE
MEERBEREETE EBEEAQZRLEEE
MR- REEHRRES KREEE  HEIE
A RIEREREARE BETERBRFHEE
BEEATH AREHRTEEHETENRD
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During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to place an equal emphasis
on organic growth and external acquisition by deepening strategic review,
improving business structure, promoting the transformation and upgrading
and accelerating the external acquisition. The Group made efforts in resource
allocation and integration, actively promoted international cooperation, and
continuously facilitated business synergies and resource-sharing. The Group
also strengthened quality control as well as risk management and enhanced
operational and management efficiency. Our leading position in the industry
has been continuously strengthened as a result. CR Pharmaceutical was enlisted
into Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index, demonstrating
the Group’s outstanding performance in environmental protection, social
responsibility and corporate governance. Our sustainable capability gained high
recognition in the capital market.

Year of 2018 was a crucial year for the Group's implementation of its “13th
Five-year Plan” strategy. Despite the challenging business environment, we
once again delivered solid results to reward the Shareholders for their trust
and support, underpinned by stable growth in major performance indicators
and continuous stable improvements in overall strengths, which laid a solid
foundation for the implementation of the Group’s ”13th Five-year Plan”
strategy. For 2018, the Group recorded total revenue of HK$189,689.1 million,
representing a year-on-year growth of 9.9%. Profit attributable to equity
owners of the Company amounted to HK$4,037.9 million, representing an
increase of 15.9% compared to 2017.

Looking to 2019, the downward pressure on the global economy will intensify
with the complicated and tough business environment. China’s pharmaceutical
and healthcare industry will further deepen its reform, and the healthcare
system is starting the process of restructuring. The “New Rules” based on
reviews of pharmacoeconomics has been established to evaluate the core value
of the drugs. With higher standards and stricter regulations, the structural
reformation of pharmaceutical industry became more rapidly, and the industrial
divergence continues to intensify. Eventually, only the fittest will survive, which
further drives market consolidation. Although rapid growth of the industry
no longer exists, the aging population with stronger awareness of health,
epidemiological transitions and the application of novel technologies will drive
solid demand for relevant products and services, so that its underpin stable
growth of China’s pharmaceutical industry in the long run. As such, the Group
is still confident in the future prospects of pharmaceutical industry in China.
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Through dedication to our mission of “being the guardian of human health
while improving quality of life”, the Group will strive to strengthen market
research and develop by conforming to the industry’s changes. By taking
advantage of policy guidance and market demand, we will strive to confront
challenges proactively and effectively. By adopting innovation as core
motivation, the Group has dedicated to optimize industry layout by engaging in
merger and acquisition activity more rapidly, so that we continuously enhance
our development quality to drive the industry transformation and upgrade in
vigorous effort, and to optimize product and business structures. The Group
endeavors to accelerate international business development, to enhance
quality control and upgrade over products, and to fully leverage the synergistic
benefit of integrated business model, thus maintaining sustainable and healthy
development with high standards, efficiency and quality, creating benefits for
shareholders, and creating values for the society. The Group exerts itself to
become a leader in pharmaceutical and healthcare industry in China.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express gratitude to
all Shareholders, customers and strategic partners for their unfailing trust and
support over the years, as well as to the management team and all employees
for their hard work and dedication.

WANG Chuncheng
Chairman

21 March 2019
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h B MAY

EHERRTITAABREEBRTHBAERAROES
EHBE FHREONEIAEEEZRE T KNEREEL
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HIFRTIHRRE(RE)ERREEAR CRAEMITEME)
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CR Holdings and Jiangxi Government held a signing ceremony
for the project collaboration agreement in Hong Kong, where
each of CR Pharmaceutical and CR Health signed a strategic
collaboration agreement with the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of Jiangxi Province
in the field of healthcare. As part of the strategic collaboration,
Jiangxi Government agreed to restructure Jiangxi Jiangzhong
Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd (currently known as CR
Jiangzhong Group) by way of acquisition or subscription of 51%
or above of equity interests in Jiangxi Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical
(Group) Co., Ltd (currently known as CR Jiangzhong Group) by
CR Pharmaceutical in cash or assets.

ﬂﬁﬁﬁii!ﬂ“ﬁmﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ

2III1B£ AR UET L

ARA M/

' AR | e ;-fm .

MSCIIE = 4 B AR 3E AMSCIFT BT 3515 8 - £ 52348
AR AMSCHEB BB R - B = AR R B HIH A o
MSCI officially accepted China A-shares into the MSCI Emerging

Markets Index. A total of 234 A shares were included in the MSCI
index system, including CR Sanjiu and Dong-E-E-Jiao.

14 ooisasn =pmzeEsRAn

%, A T

EHBETRARERENENEmRENRER EBEY B
(FIDBRAR ([EREMEE]) ARFENEE MR
LREXARBReARALE HERENEXARLR ([ 5
BEWDETEA - BRARER AEEEHETEWERE
BRBNMR AE THFERE-TESE-

CR Pharmaceutical Holdings restructured Angde Biotech
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (B EA Y X F R A 7)) ("Angde
Biotech”), by injection of research & development product
dulaglutide from CR Pharmaceutical Holdings as well as cash
and research & development product insulin aspart from China
Resources Biomedical (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ( &= 8 4= ¥ B8 %5 ()5
JI1) BFRAR]) (“CR Biomedical ). Through the restructuring of
Angde Biotech, the Group further completed the integration of
the research & development, production and marketing resources
related to the biopharmaceutical business.

EEBERIGTHE NRL AR REZBRAIERE -
%HH#LAE%WA{’ET%%WA%%E%I RERAES ETE
ErRmSBERRZEARENEBEE-

CR Pharmaceutical and Novartis (Sandoz), Switzerland signed
a strategic cooperation agreement in Beijing. Both parties will
leverage on their relevant strengths, under the guidance of
the strategic cooperation agreement, to carry out business
cooperation at various levels in markets in China and even
worldwide.
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EHBEEMNARELATHEEROXEEREOKMOK -
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RREENERBLTRR  PREEER AR SHEK-
BRE QAVELER HEE HESENBRFTE-

CR Pharmaceutical was selected as a constituent member
of the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index
("HSSUSB"). The HSSUSB includes Hong Kong-listed companies
with the best practice in enterprise sustainable development
involving corporate governance, human rights, labor practices,
environment, fair operation practices, consumers, community
participation, and development.

J\ B AUGUST

EREREMAAS E - \FRAKERPEESRAR
([ MR BYZE | )45% R - )\ A X 2R IR AR 8 P 2L E240.65%
AEHE - & 5T A M B B85 .65% IR HE - A R BEEE B MR 28
CEHRE—SIHREFELEE g EREE BARF
BENFIRABRTE N

CR Double-Crane published an announcement that,
following acquisition of 45% equity interests in Xiangzhong
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (R 2 2 H R A 7)) (“Xiangzhong
Pharmaceutical”) in May 2018, it completed the acquisition
of 40.65% equity interests in Xiangzhong Pharmaceutical in
August, holding an aggregate of 85.65% equity interests in
Xiangzhong Pharmaceutical. The acquisition will help CR Double-
Crane to further expand its business in neurology/central nervous
system therapeutic areas, and improve its profitability and
strengthen comprehensive competitiveness of enterprise.

*‘ 18 SEPTEMBER -

EH-NEVZRFEEEMBARAR (RBRA LT K
MARSE:1833) EXBREGIF BAREBENTE PBEH
R BEALES RESL MHER ZRERFRE

CEE

CR Sanjiu has reached a strategic collaboration with Ping An
Healthcare and Technology Company Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1833). Both parties
will deeply integrate its business in new pharmaceutical retail,
Chinese medicine revitalization, medical artificial intelligence,
family doctors, as well as its marketing activities, etc..
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EHBEMED HEBERTROBRABILRDT FRI
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CR Pharmaceutical Commercial signed a collaboration agreement
on online supply chain finance with China Merchants Bank Co.,
Ltd.'s Beijing Branch (B RTR MO BR AR RHIT)
and Shenzhen Qianhai WeBank Co.Ltd. GE I BTG L R 17
A& 15 % BR A 7)) to jointly develop CR Pharmaceutical’s online
commercial platform so as to provide efficient, convenient, safe
and economical financial services to pharmacy stores, commercial
companies and primary medical institutions.

+ 5 OCTOBER

16 2018F5% 2ERscEERAT

‘ +— 3 NOVEMBER N |

TE-NFT—ARB REIEMEFCEREME =4
ERERE RMMBAEGZE TR - RHERMMBH#
THRERRER MRBRSFCREBRTFELT K-

On 6 November 2018, the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the PRC released the list of the Third Batch of
Green Manufacturing, in which Dong-E-E-Jiao was selected as a
“Green Factory”, demonstrating that Dong-E-E-Jiao has come to
a new level in promoting the green and recycling development
and accelerating the construction of green manufacturing
system.

RZZE-NF+—A RWWBRERERAZ2Q4 (ETH) ]
BRAEHERBTRITEN -RAMBHEREAZQME
FEE - BARKBEERY BEEE A FHEFER -
SERSPEEEMER -

The signing ceremony of the strategic collaboration agreement
between Dong-E-E-Jiao and Korea Ginseng Corporation (CKJ)
(BBHE A2 A% (IEEH)) was held in November 2018.
Both parties agreed to share their raw materials for production
and commercial channels and cooperating in the R&D of new
products, and continuously promote the traditional Chinese
medicine to the world.
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T BEREIE (www.hrryzx.com)RZ SRR A REE10018L - W B
E2EAEEG ARSRERFPREFNBENKRE &
BARTS - MR AR T B4R EROBR IS A o

The trading volume of www.hrryzx.com (8 %% % 3 ) exceeded
RMB10 billion. Covering 14 provinces across the country,
www.hrryzx.com provides more accurate procurement and
financial services to more end customers and accelerates service
transformation from offline to online.

EHBEEMEPLOEMAARESE TABZERMA (FHE
B HRMEBNBCRRRR RN B RAE %
HERHMARRERBREAZNEREBEENEDS
et g O E — [T 38R -

The R&D Center of CR Pharmaceutical and College of Pharmacy
Nankai University formally signed a technical cooperation
development agreement to jointly develop a Class 1 chemical
innovative drug for the treatment of digestive system diseases.
The project is the first R&D project of the Nankai — China
Resources Precision Innovative Drug Research and Development
Center.
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On 26 February 2018, Dong-E-E-Jiao was elected by the Top 100
Most Valuable Chinese Brands in 2018, and ranked among the

top three in the healthcare industry.
ZE-N\F=ZA=1+—H8 (hH®
JE) # 5 [2017-2018F Z R Bl 5% /5 &8

EBEEEE] EHE i;ﬁﬁ%?lﬁ E2S
BIB3RFIEEEHE

On 31 March 2018, the “Chinese
Pharmacy” magazine released “Top
100 Chinese Pharmacy Single Stores in

—H MARCH

*‘ 7V JUNE

—2-/\FNAZ+H AFHtHR
TR B B 2= (World Brand Lab)3: 3
METHE R oEAE] it
RERT R E A —IRAGE
AR 5005 BB E M

On 20 June 2018, the 15th “World
Brand Conference” hosted by World
Brand Lab was held in Beijing. Dong-
E-E-Jiao was selected in “China 500
Most Valuable Brands List” for the
eleventh time.
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On 29 June 2018, “

13th Capital

7?5}\}\

2017-2018", and 13 retail stores of CR B e
Pharmaceutical Commercial were on the -
[ist.
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SAmERSABLE: On 9 May 2018, “the 2018
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EHEESE

China Brand Value Evaluation
Information Release” Conference
held in Shanghai, Dong-E-E-Jiao
was selected in the “Top 100
Chinese Brand Value List” and
ranked the third in “China Time-
honored Brand”.

BEBRAR

Outstanding Chinese Enterprise
Achievement Award” sponsored by
Capital magazine was held in Hong
Kong, and CR Pharmaceutical won
the “Capital Outstanding China
Pharmaceutical Group”.
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On 3 July 2018, the “2017 China (BT =ETRER LT AAREASR]

Pharmaceutical Industry Top 100 List” On 12 August 2018, the “12th China Listed Companies Value

was released, and CR Double-Crane was Forum and Awards Ceremony” sponsored by Securities Times

ranked 34th on the list. was held in Qingdao. Dong-E-E-Jiao won “12th Top 100

Chinese Main Board Listed Companies” and “the 12th Top Ten
Management Teams of China Main Board Listed Companies”
and other awards. CR Double-Crane was selected as the “12th

—E N\E+A+N\REE GER) TROSHE#E Top 100 Chinese Main Board Listed Companies” for the fifth
PEUSEMER| EHFRTHRRMS FHBELE [H# time.
HEEHeaER]-

On 18 July 2018, the 7th
Outstanding Corporate
Social Responsibility
Award ceremony hosted
by Hong Kong “Mirror”
was held in Hong Kong.
CR Pharmaceutical

won the “Outstanding
Corporate Social
Responsibility Award”.

—E-N\FHATAR [
(2018*“:%%%??% | "_': rulnm:,—‘*:shim!tl:l!
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On 16 October 2018, the “2018 Chinese Chemical
Pharmaceutical Industry Outstanding Enterprises and
Outstanding Product Brand” list was released, and CR
Double-Crane ranked 22nd in the “Top 100 Comprehensive
Strengths among Industrial Enterprises in China Chemical and
Pharmaceutical Industry in 2018".
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armaceutical Commercial

On 1 and 2 November 2018, the 5th was awarded the title of
China Pharmaceutical Logistics Industry “2017-2018 National Drug
Annual Conference was held in Changsha, Circulation Innovation

and CR Pharmaceutical Commercial was Demonstration Enterprise”
awarded the Top Ten Enterprise of the by China Association of
2018 Pharmaceutical Logistics Industry. Pharmaceutical Commerce.

ZE-N\F+Z A+ N\B E2018F R E BT T AT
—E\F+—ANA (ZHE e EEERET R0SEESANSEERE AR -
BT ERNE=|E[FE L .
TN | B R RRT 1 On 28 December 2018, in
PSR T AN [T TS 22018) 2018 Sina Pharmaceutical

$517 o Annual Billboard”, CR Double-
Crane was awarded the “2018

On 9 November 2018, the Most Socially Responsible

awarding ceremony of the 3rd Pharmaceutical Listed

“Annual Listed Companies” hosted  Companies”.
by Bloomberg Business Weekly

was held in Hong Kong, and CR

Pharmaceutical won the “Annual

Listed Company 2018" award.

AN S S I AN S VN (T
2018F EHBISFR T B X N EmM
B EENBRRETEIER T

AECEPHTEE - =
On 16 November 2018, “2018 China g IRERL AL
Non-Prescription Drug Enterprises and

Products List” was released. CR Sanjiu @

was once again won the first place
in the “2018 China Non-Prescription
Drug Manufacturers”.
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Financial Highlights
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BEABURIZMBHLEH RN TMATO:

A summary of the Group's audited results, assets and liabilities and the key
financial ratios for the last five financial years is set out as follows":

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
FE(BBEERT) For the year (in HK$ million)
Wz Revenue
I% Manufacturing 31,940 26,362 22,375 21,607 19,714
ok Distribution 152,151 141,826 130,313 121,191 111,790
2L Retail 5,455 4,244 3914 3,651 3,040
Hith Others 143 100 103 119 1,205
By Total 189,689 172,532 156,705 146,568 135,749
£ Gross profit 34,930 28,276 24,109 23,199 21,490
PEEE Segment earnings
I% Manufacturing 8,690 7,666 7,446 7,251 6,873
Gk Distribution 7,115 6,564 5,529 5,677 5,481
TE Retail 106 116 118 101 140
it Others 78 60 68 58 19
@y Total 16,589 14,407 13,161 13,087 12,690
ERFE Profit for the year 7,633 6,867 5,968 6,082 5,492
ARIEB AEEFE Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 4,038 3,483 2,821 2,850 2,646
R12A31B (BE#T) As at 31 December (in HKS million)
ERBEE Non-current assets 47,884 47556 40,183 38292 37,520
MEEE Current assets 128,360 113,199 93,802 88,857 84,277
BEE Total assets 176,244 160,755 133,985 127,149 121,797
FRBAR Non-current liabilities 12,357 5,883 8,699 15,079 19,175
eI Current liabilities 103,358 91,734 70,985 72,224 65,472
fafEKY Total debt? 50,936 36,875 25,711 37,218 37,263
BEE Total liabilities 115,715 97,617 79,684 87,303 84,647
B Total equity 60,529 63,137 54,301 39,846 37,150
& Ratios
EHE Gross margin 18.4% 16.4% 154% 15.8% 15.8%
e pEE Net profit margin 21% 2.0% 1.8% 19% 19%
FEE/BREe Net debt to total equity® 56.7% 36.0% 21.6% 62.3% 64.2%
e L& Current ratio 12 12 13 12 13

Kiat - Notes:

(1) BE=ZF—WMF - —FT—aF1+=H=+—HI1F (1) The Group’s results, assets and liabilities and the key financial ratios for the years
FRRIFEE BEREURTER K ET ended/as at 31 December 2014 and 2015 are extracted from the Prospectus.
BIEREFE

2)  HEFEERTES BB EENEMESRS  (2)  Total debt refers to the sum of bank borrowings, short-term debentures and bonds
AEA o payable.

(3)  FEESRIRTTENEE ZHBESREME  (3)  Netdebtequal to total bank borrowings, total debentures and total bonds payable

FREFERBE 2 RE 2 EEY -

less cash and cash equivalents.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2018, facing the complex domestic and international environment, China’
s economy maintained its stability within a reasonable range with year-on-
year GDP growth of 6.6%. The effects of structural reform of the supply side
are continuously realized, while the opening-up policy entered a new phase
of expansions. Factors like consumption upgrading and technological progress
continued to drive economic development and advance transformation and the
transition from rapid development to high-quality development has become a
new feature of China’s economic development.

Along with the implementation of “Healthy China” strategy, reforms in the
medical and healthcare system continued to deepen. With the focus on all-
rounded attention on national health at all times, there was an expansion
of medical insurance coverage and improvement of the citizen's livelihood.
Meanwhile, the pharmaceutical industry underwent a sustainable and healthy
development, driven by great efforts to optimize the industrial structure,
to regulate the order of the industry, and to reasonably control the medical
cost. The pharmaceutical industry was in the stage of structural optimization,
transformation, and upgrading. The overall growth rate of the industry
decelerated but continued to outperform the macro-economy.

In 2018, the policy environment of China’s pharmaceutical industry
continued to show significant changes. The entire industry was undergoing
a comprehensive structural adjustment and order reconstruction. On the
supply side, the quality consistency evaluations has been accelerated, which
further deepened the reforms in drug appraisal and approval, and continued
to improve generic drug quality and support the development of innovative
drugs. The first batch of centralized bulk procurement pilot program was
organized in the PRC, and the roadmap of China’s generic drug development
has accelerated its integration into the developed international market.
On the distribution side, the “Two Invoice System” has been implemented
comprehensively, completely restructuring the commercial distribution
pattern and squeezing the allocation business. In the end user market, the
construction of integrated health care system was continuously promoted in
the PRC, fully implemented the “Zero Markup”, and released the “Internet
Plus” medical and healthcare policies. At the same time, the rules regarding
prescription outflow from hospital was explored nationwide while the policies
regarding restrictions on adjuvant drugs was enhanced. Therefore, the trend
of diversifying drug sales terminals became more obvious. On the payment
side, the revised Medical Insurance Drugs Catalogs was implemented, the
negotiation of the types of medical insurance was completed, and the
implementation scope of the multi-element compound payment method
focusing on disease-based payment gradually expanded. Regarding
supervision, the regulators intensified the efforts and frequencies in the
comprehensive supervision of the industry and of the entire process. After the
regulatory reforming, the industry’s influence and ability to control costs greatly
increased, thereby further strengthening the market supervision mechanisms.
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China has now become the world’s second largest pharmaceutical market.
Many factors such as policy guidance, development of the healthcare industry
and demographic changes have allowed China’s pharmaceutical industry to
enter into a new development cycle after industrial restructuring. In the short
term, under the impact of factors such as control over medical insurance
premium and lower bid prices, enterprises will face many challenges, including
stricter supervision, rigorous competition, structural adjustment, industrial
upgrading, and payment collection. However, in the long term, the steady
increase in the demand for medical services, changes in disease spectrum
and continual upgrading of the drug usage structure will still be important
guarantees for the industry’s medium and long-term growth potential. The
extensive medical reform will continue to strengthen the general trend of
the industry's structural development. The further integration between new
technologies and the pharmaceutical industry will accelerate the emergence
of new industry formats. Long-term stable growth for China’s pharmaceutical
industry still can be expected. We believe that the Group, as a large
pharmaceutical enterprise with a leading position in China, will play a greater
role in this new era for the pharmaceutical industry by virtue of its diversified
business layouts and product portfolios, quality advantages and innovation
capability, integrated business model and standardized operations.

GROUP RESULTS

During the year of 2018, along with the changes in industry policies and market
demand, the Group actively and continues to promote the implementation of
“13th Five-year Plan”. With the accelerating pace of merger and acquisition
activity and with sustainable business structure optimization, the Group
continually facilitates innovative transformation and effective resources
consolidation in order to improve sustainable operating management. While
the external challenges have worsened in a large degree, the Group strives to
achieve a solid growth in operating results and a continuous improvement in
efficiency of operation and profitability.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded total revenue of
HK$189,689.1 million, representing an increase of 9.9% compared with
that of HK$172,532.2 million in 2017 (representing a year-on-year increase
of 6.9% in terms of RMB). In 2018, the revenue of the three major business
segments, namely pharmaceutical manufacturing, pharmaceutical distribution
and pharmaceutical retail businesses, accounted for 16.8%, 80.2% and 2.9%
of the total revenue, respectively.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a gross profit of HK$34,930.4
million, representing a 23.5% increase compared with that of HK$28,276.1
million in 2017. The overall gross profit margin was 18.4%, representing
an increase of 2.0 percentage points compared with the gross profit
margin of 16.4% in 2017. Driven by continuous improvement of product
mix and business structure, the gross profit margin of the pharmaceutical
manufacturing sector and the pharmaceutical distribution sector increased
significantly.

RRBER ABAGEER

A PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
REVENUE OF THE COMPANY
BEEE BEEE
HK$ million HK$ million
99%
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ZE-N\GFAREBEERARREB AEMLE  In 2018, the Group recorded profit attributable to owners of the Company of

AAEEA0379BE L BT —LEFHNARQFA
A AE(RE TS H3,483.08 B TiEK£15.9%
(AARB O EFRAREMI2.7%) © ﬁéfy
—N\F GRERBF AEE0647T (ZF—

FARBOSST) EESEFRE T )\i
T A=+—HIFEREFSREL013T-

e )L

1. HEmEK
AEBBEEREETEROMRIE 2
MEBICEMBS BLHENLSE mﬁF
7 BEREEKE RARETESN Wi
ETERUEER AL E—SBEEZD
SREBEN T ISMA - SMEHBAKRER
RTINS PU B E35,043.78 8
T T+ FIER195%

24 ooisEam sERasEAEAR

HK$4,037.9 million, representing an increase of 15.9% (representing a year-
on-year increase of 12.7% in terms of RMB) when compared with that of
HK$3,483.0 million in 2017. Basic earnings per share was HK$0.64 in 2018
(HK$0.55 in 2017). The Board proposed to declare an annual dividend of
HK$0.13 per share for the year ended 31 December 2018.

RESULTS REVIEW

1. Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Business

In 2018, the pharmaceutical manufacturing business of the Group
continues to focus on its core products, while diversifying and optimizing
its product portfolio. The Group has strengthened its capability of
academic-based marketing and sales promotion, proactively expanded
customer coverage, increased brand influence, and facilitated the
transformation and upgrading of industrial manufacturing so as to
further consolidate its market status in core therapeutic areas. During the
Reporting Period, the segment revenue in pharmaceutical manufacturing
business of the Group recorded HK$35,043.7 million, representing an
increase of 19.5% compared with 2017.
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By product categories, during the Reporting Period, the revenue from
sale of chemical drugs was HK$15,583.9 million in 2018, representing
a rapid year-on-year increase of 34.2%, which mainly attributable to
the increase in the revenue from anti-infective drugs, infusion products
as well as chronic diseases drugs and specialty drugs. The revenue from
sale of Chinese medicines was HK$16,892.6 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 10.6%, which mainly caused by the increase in the
revenue from OTC products and formula granules of Traditional Chinese
Medicines (TCM). The revenue from sale of biopharmaceutical drugs was
HK$170.3 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 14.8% caused
by adjustment of sales model. The revenue from sale of nutritional and
healthcare products was HK$784.1 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 58.3%, attributable to the enriched variety of healthcare
products.

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin of pharmaceutical
manufacturing business of the Group was 64.8%, representing an
increase of 4.0 percentage points compared with 2017, which was
mainly caused by restructuring and upgrading of the pharmaceutical
manufacturing business, continuous optimization of product portfolios
and improvement of manufacturing process.
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As of 31 December 2018, the pharmaceutical manufacturing business of
the Group produced and sold more than 430 pharmaceutical products.
During the Reporting Period, the Group had 49 pharmaceutical products
with annual revenue over HK$100.0 million, among which seven
pharmaceutical products achieved annual revenue over HK$1 billion.

The Group believes the research and development and product
innovation are important drivers for long-term growth, and will continue
to increase investments in research and development activities. During
the Reporting Period, the research & development expenditures were
HK$1,454.8 million. Following the government policies, industrial
technology development trends and market demand, the Group
integrates research and development capabilities on generic and
innovative drugs, focusing on therapeutic areas such as cardiovascular,
respiratory, oncology, gastroenterology and metabolism, central nervous
system, immune system, anti-infection, hematology and urology, so
as to improve the Company’s core competitiveness. As of the end
of the Reporting Period, the Group operates two nationally certified
engineering and technological centers, two nationally certified enterprise
technical centers and 15 provincially or municipally certified research
centers. In addition, the Group also puts in place post-doctoral research
stations with over 600 research and development personnel.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had 222 research and development
projects, including 32 projects regarding innovative drugs, mainly
focusing on research and development areas such as cardiovascular
system, metabolism and endocrine, respiratory system, tumor and
immunity, psychiatric and neurological system, anti-infection, blood and
genitourinary system. One of the oncology drugs is in phase Il clinical
research, while another respiratory system Category 1 innovative drug
has initiated IND (Investigational New Drug) application process with
the U.S. Food and Drug Administration. At the end of the Reporting
Period, 11 projects were pending for registration approval by NMPA.
During the Reporting Period, the Group obtained 33 patents, among
which ten products (such as the pegylated injectable recombinant human
erythropoietin (% 7, — g 8 40 A {2 41 &) 57 /& ) has been approved
by NMPA for dlinical trials, and four products (such as busulfan injection
(AHZESTR) ) has been approved by NMPA for production, which
further enhanced the Group's product line for the pharmaceutical
manufacturing segment. Moreover, the Group's Levetiracetam tablet
(Z£ 2R3 /) was included in the list of priority review and approval
published by Center for Drug Evaluation ( %525 5F A 2 ) in July 2018.



SEEERE RIS Salli
Management Discussion and Analysis

REERBHEMD - RISINE K 2B
AEBREELEE AT 2\ HE RSN B
BAE-REMERN NEFEPHR 2
PRE R KR E RO B2 Y AT R
RE - -HEPRE - BAETRBASE - i
bR R KRB HERSAERN AR
BERTEL FNEEAIE AEESSR
MER  RERF ERE FRERSE-
REHEA AEEERNSEZEER
RREENMSEENEHRE EPE
mE B E2a e —EEmprREE =
EURTRREG HERFAEARER
I B I # Xbrane A &) 5| #E 72 1ff 44 18 = 2 R
I MAEROE S E - S E A ARAER S
BE TENBINTFEREEMES-

AEESEERTBALZ @RS HREE
FREEsmEN —BUFE I -5
REHR ERFABRH—BEFEHEE
B B im40fE (KA 8 iE201E1E B A289H
gohmiE)  +THEEBECHETAENS
WERARAR \EARBELEERT EY
EHEBRARAR EP _FEMERL -
P BER KIEREA JEAHRESE
mEREKER — TN \FLAM+=
A AEESRKE TEREREEE
B REENREER S F F (5mg)fl
B 4 e B Fr (2mg) A (R R 4 7T ER R
) BBT BUERFE- I ZF—N
F—F KIERERA (10mgF25mg ) & i
—BMFETESHERILEEED -

The Group has collaborated with domestic and foreign research and
development institutions the way of technology licensing, service
outsourcing and establishment of joint laboratories. During the Reporting
Period, the Group conducted multi-directional strategic collaboration
with the National Center for Nanoscience and Technology of Chinese
Academy of Sciences (# B &} 82 Fr B S A4 K BHE A0 ) |, Union
Institute of Materia Medica (1% A1 2% F7) , Nankai University, WuXi
AppTec, Fujifilm Corporation in Japan, Pharmaron and Peking University
School of Pharmaceutical Sciences in various therapeutic areas, including
oncology, immune diseases, anti-infection and respiratory system. In
addition, the Group in-licensed a number of research stage new products
from overseas that carry significant clinical and market value, including
two Class 1 innovative chemical drugs and one biosimilar drug which
are in therapeutic areas of respiratory system and digestive system.
Furthermore, the Group introduced a product, Spherotide, a long-acting
microsphere-based injectable drug developed by Swedish company
Xbrane. This product is used in the treatment of prostate cancer, uterine
fibroids and endometriosis.

The Group puts strong emphasis and gives priority to facilitate
consistency evaluation work of generic drugs from different direction.
As at the end of the Reporting Period, over 40 consistency evaluation
projects have commenced (of which, over 20 projects are not in the
289 catalog). Over ten projects have commenced bioequivalence clinical
trials and eight products have completed bioequivalence clinical trials,
of which Metformin Sustained Release Tablets ( — R & A 42 F ) ,
Azithromycin Tablets (] a1 2 2 /) , Mifepristone Tablets (& 3E 7] Bl
F) and Finasteride Tablets ( FE Bl 4 fZ /) have completed application
filing. In July and December 2018, the Group received the approval
document for supplementary application of drugs ( %2 & i 7¢ B8 55 it
1% ) issued by NMPA on Amlodipine Besylate tablets (5mg) and Terazosin
Hydrochloride Tablets (2mg), respectively, which passed the consistency
evaluation. In addition, in January 2019, Mifepristone Tablets (10mg
and 25 mg) passed the consistency evaluation and obtained national
reference drug qualification.
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Pharmaceutical Distribution Business

Leveraging on the implementation of “Two-Invoice System” policy,
the Group optimized business structure, promoted transformation and
upgrade, and made continuous efforts in expanding its distribution
network, with a view to enhance the customer coverage and further
optimize product portfolios. In 2018, the Group’s pharmaceutical
distribution business achieved a segment revenue of HK$155,328.8
million, representing an increase of 7.4% compared with 2017.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group expedited its expansion of
distribution network in provinces in Western China. The Group also
enhanced construction of provincial platforms and penetrated further
at community-level to consolidate and promote its competitive edge
in regional markets, with an aim to further strengthen the control over
downstream terminals. As of 31 December 2018, the pharmaceutical
distribution network of the Group covered 28 provinces, municipalities
and autonomous regions nationwide, with customers including 6,581
Class Il and Class lll hospitals, 51,505 primary medical institutions and
26,964 retail pharmacies.

In recent years, the Group has continued to optimize its business
structure, further raising the proportion of the revenue from direct
distribution business to medical institutions out of the total revenue from
distribution business. As a result, the Group's pharmaceutical distribution
business recorded a gross profit margin of 7.3% during the Reporting
Period, representing an increase of 0.6 percentage point compared with
that of 2017.
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During the Reporting Period, by proactively following the guidance of its
policy direction, the Group has encouraged the further transformation of
its pharmaceutical distribution business, exploration and implementation
of value-added services along the supply chain, with an aim to strengthen
its core competitive advantages. The Group continues to improve its
efficiency by developing integrated and modernized intelligent logistics
system. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group’s distribution
business operates 170 logistics centers. The Group's distribution business
expanded upstream resources from various directions, enriched and
optimized product structure in the long run, strengthened import/export
services and increased categories of import drugs, and accelerated the
development of medical device distribution business. Meanwhile, the
Group actively explores innovative business models to further enhance
the capability of providing value-added services to its end customers.
As of 31 December 2018, the Group provided hospital logistic
intelligence (HLI) services to approximately 300 hospitals cumulatively,
and commenced dozens of network hospital logistics intelligence (NHLI)
projects.

During the Reporting Period, the pharmaceutical retail business of
the Group recorded revenue of HK$5,454.6 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 28.5% while the gross profit margin of the
pharmaceutical retail business was 14.6%, representing a decrease of
2.9 percentage points when compared with 2017. The decreasing of
gross profit margin was mainly due to the rapid growth of direct-to-
patient (DTP) business which has a relatively lower profit margin.
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As of 31 December 2018, the Group had 853 retail pharmacies in
total. During the Reporting Period, the Group further integrated
the pharmaceutical retail resources in terms of brand, product and
information system, built up centralized procurement platforms for
both medical and non-medical products, aiming to enrich and optimize
the variety of products. The Group also actively carried out a variety of
novel business models such as DTP and chronic disease management.

A B661E M o At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had 140 DTP pharmacies
covering 66 cities in the PRC.
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ACCELERATING BUSINESS EXPANSION TO
EXPLORE GROWTH POTENTIAL

For pharmaceutical manufacturing business, the Group has successfully
completed several external acquisitions of new TCM and chemical drugs during
the Reporting Period, which further expanded product portfolio and improved
business coverage.
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In May 2018, the Company and Jiangxi Government entered into a strategic
collaboration agreement, pursuant to which, both parties agreed to leverage
their relevant strengths, consolidate industry resources and establish long-
term and stable strategic business collaboration and cooperative mechanism.
As part of the strategic alliance, Jiangxi Government agreed to restructure
Jiangxi Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd (currently known as CR
Jiangzhong Group). In August and September 2018, CR Pharmaceutical
Holdings entered into a share subscription agreement and a supplemental
agreement thereto, respectively, with the then shareholders of Jiangxi
Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd (currently known as CR
Jiangzhong Group) for the subscription of the shares of Jiangxi Jiangzhong
Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd (currently known as CR Jiangzhong Group).
As at January 2019, all conditions for the effectiveness of the supplemental
share subscription agreement have been satisfied and the supplemental share
subscription agreement has taken effect. According to the supplemental
share subscription agreement, Jiangxi Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical (Group)
Co., Ltd (currently known as CR Jiangzhong Group) has conditionally agreed
to increase their registered capital by approximately RMB129.6 million, while
CR Pharmaceutical Holdings has conditionally agreed to make a capital
contribution of approximately RMB3,099.4 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,537.3 million) (subject to adjustment) by way of cash for the subscription
of the newly increased registered capital of Jiangxi Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical
(Group) Co., Ltd (currently known as CR Jiangzhong Group). In February 2019,
Jiangxi Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd (currently known as CR
Jiangzhong Group) has completed its relevant change of business registration
for the proposed subscription. Jiangxi Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical (Group) Co.,
Ltd (currently known as CR Jiangzhong Group) has become a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. CR Pharmaceutical Holdings directly hold
51% interests in Jiangxi Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd (currently
known as CR Jiangzhong Group), and thereby indirectly holds 43.03% interests
in Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical, a leading pharmaceutical manufacturer of OTC
products in the PRC. Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical has strong brand influence
and high market share in both Gastroenterology and oropharynx. In the future,
Jianzhong Pharmaceutical shall collaborate with the Group in various aspects
such as brand, product, manufacturing, research & development and sales
channels to realize synergies with the Group’s pharmaceutical manufacturing
business, which will enhance the Group's core competitiveness in TCM self-
diagnosis and self-treatment, as well as in product development of herbal TCM,
among others.

In 2018, CR Double-Crane successively acquired 45% and 40.65% equity
interests in Xiangzhong Pharmaceutical, upon completion of which CR
Double-Crane holds an aggregate of 85.65% equity interests in Xiangzhong
Pharmaceutical, with an aim to expand and strengthen the product pipeline of
psychiatric and neurological specialty drugs, and improve its hospital sales and
marketing capability of psychiatric specialty drugs. In addition, in June 2018,
CR Double-Crane announced the acquisition of 40% equity interests in China
Resources Double-Crane Limin Pharmaceutical (Jinan) Company Limited ( %
HEBANRESE (ER) B R 2D A (“Double-Crane Limin”), one of its
subsidiaries, using its own capitals. Upon the acquisition, CR Double-Crane
holds 100% equity interests in Double-Crane Limin, which helps to further
unify the business layout and integrate industry resources.
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For pharmaceutical distribution business, the Group continued to implement
the external merger and acquisition strategy of “establishing platforms at
provincial level and building distribution networks at municipal level” and
optimized business network layout in both width and depth on an ongoing
basis. During the Reporting Period, the Group has made business presence in
Gansu Province and completed several prefecture-level acquisitions in Fujian
and Jiangsu to consolidate business networks both vertically and horizontally,
which in turn further strengthen its competitive advantage in the regional
markets. CR Pharmaceutical Commercial proposed to subscribe, by way of
cash, all non-publicly issued share of Zhejiang Int'l Group Co., Ltd. (J#7 /T &
SEERR D AR A F)), and upon the subscription, it would hold 16.67%
equity interests in Zhejiang Int'l Group, which will help further sharpen the
comprehensive competitive edge of the Group in Eastern China.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, China Resources Pharmaceutical
Industrial Investment Fund LLP (the “Fund”), one of the diversified investing
platforms of the Group, has completed a number of investments in the fields of
TCM medical devices, biopharmaceuticals, etc., enabling the Group to improve
its business layout and to consolidate and strengthen the Group's leading
position in the industry, among which the Fund invested as a pre-IPO investor
in Fusen Pharmaceutical Company Limited, which successfully completed the
global offering in Hong Kong in July 2018. The investment projects of the
Fund have achieved business synergies with the Group in terms of research &
development, pharmaceutical manufacturing and distribution.

In addition, in 2018, CR Pharmaceutical Investment cumulatively increased
shareholding in Dong-E-E-Jiao by acquiring approximately 9.60 million shares,
resulting direct equity interests in Dong-E-E-Jiao increased to 8.12%. As at the
end of the Reporting Period, together with the 23.14% interests in Dong-E-E-
Jiao held by China Resources Dong-E-E-Jiao Company Limited ( %= & 5= fu] fa]
BB PR~ 7)), a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the Group
controls 21.22% equity interests in Dong-E-E-Jiao in total. Such increase in
shareholding helps to further enhance the overall strengths and synergies of the
Group's pharmaceutical manufacturing business.
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SYSTEMATIC INTEGRATION OF RESOURCES IN
BIOPHARMACEUTICAL SECTOR TO ENHANCE THE
STRENGTH OF BIOPHARMACEUTICAL BUSINESS

In June 2018, the Group restructured Angde Biotech, by injection of research &
development product dulaglutide from CR Pharmaceutical Holdings as well as
cash and research & development product insulin aspart from CR Biomedical.

Angde Biotech was established in 2001 and originally wholly-owned by Dong-
E-E-Jiao. Leveraging on years of development, the company has laid a solid
foundation in the research & development and production of recombinant
protein biopharmaceutical drugs. After the capital increase, CR Pharmaceutical
Holdings and CR Biomedical jointly hold 51% equity interests in Angde Biotech,
thus, the Group’s control over Angde Biotech was further consolidated.

Through the restructuring of Angde Biotech, the Group further complete the
integration of the research& development, production and marketing resources
related to the biopharmaceutical business. The two products injected are
recombinant protein products that treat the diabetes disease, which have huge
market potential and have potential to develop an advanced product portfolio
with Angde Biotech’s own research & development product, insulin detemir.
Meanwhile, taking advantage of the Group's capital and technology edges,
Angde Biotech shall be developed into a production and operation platform
for the Group's recombinant protein biopharmaceutical drugs by riding on the
marketing and sales terminal resources of the Group’s pharmaceutical business.

The Group devotes significant attention to the development of
biopharmaceutical business and continues to increase investment in this field.
Our biopharmaceutical business has equipped with advanced platforms for
research & development and production, with marketed products including
reteplase, interleukin-11, etc. and high-potential research & development
products focusing on oncology, immunotherapy, cardiovascular and other
therapeutic areas. Furthermore, the research & development products also
include the polyethylene glycol recombinant human endostatin (M2ES), a new
class of molecularly targeted long-acting anti-tumor candidate drug under
the National Class | New Drugs (BIZX — 2837 £%£) . In the future, the Group
shall accelerate the introduction of high-quality products through acquisition,
licensing, international cooperation and other methods to continuously
enhance the overall capability in biopharmaceutical business.
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INCLUSION IN HANG SENG CORPORATE
SUSTAINABILITY BENCHMARK INDEX

In August 2018, the Company was selected as a constituent member of the
HSSUSB, which came into effect on 10 September 2018.

The HSSUSB includes Hong Kong-listed companies with the best performances
in enterprise sustainable development involving corporate governance, human
rights, labor practices, environment, fair operation practices, consumers,
community participation, and development. The index is objective, reliable, and
highly investment-oriented. The selection process for the constituent stocks is
rigorous. An independent and expert examination body conducts sustainable
development evaluation, providing high-quality benchmarks for index funds
that focus on enterprises that show evidence of sustainable development.

The inclusion fully reflects the Group’s outstanding performance in
environmental protection, social responsibility, and corporate governance. The
Group's sound and sustainable development capabilities have been recognized
in the capital market.
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OUTLOOK AND FUTURE STRATEGIES

China’s pharmaceutical industry is currently in a period of significant
adjustment and transformation. With reforms continuing to deepen, the
industry showed features of the new era in terms of structural optimization,
quality upgrading, stricter supervision, and accelerated industrial
transformation. The market still has room for development and industrial
integration, and concurrently facing challenges and opportunities. Guided by
the needs of market and industry policies, the Group will seize the opportunities
of development and reform in China’s pharmaceutical and healthcare industry,
consolidate its core advantages, explore its organic development potential, and
actively plan for the core areas and core segments in the industrial chain. Also,
as driven by merger and acquisition as well as R&D, the Group will optimize
resource allocation, promote business modification and industrial upgrading,
accomplish long-term steady and sustainable development of its major business
segments, and continue to strengthen and enhance its leading position in
China’s pharmaceutical industry.

The Group will respond to the impact of policies regarding centralized
procurement, medical insurance premium control and reduction of
bid prices in line with policy changes and trends of market structure
adjustments. Also, the Group will continue to focus on key strategic
products and core therapeutic areas, further optimize product structures,
enforce practical management, strengthen the exploration of internal
potential, and improve product quality. Moreover, the Group will
strengthen its existing advantages across its brand, production, and
marketing resources relating to its pharmaceutical manufacturing
business. It will always keep abreast of changes to the disease spectrum
and develop the therapeutic areas of cardiovascular and cerebrovascular
diseases, anti-tumor treatment, central nervous systems, and respiratory
systems. It will further improve the proper concoction of drugs for
chronic disease treatment, as well as specialized and infusion therapies.
The Group will grab opportunities of government support to develop
in the TCM industry, focus on consumption upgrades and healthcare
needs, explore classic and famous prescriptions, promote the layout of
the entire Traditional Chinese Medicine industrial chain, and accelerate
the development of its healthcare business. Meanwhile, it will leverage
on any development opportunities for evaluating, and accelerating
the process of quality consistency evaluation work for generic drugs
and injections. The Group will improve its manufacturing capacity and
product quality by improving and optimizing processes associated
with production capacity layout, and promote sustainable and steady
development of its pharmaceutical manufacturing business.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2018 35

q



i

BRI DT

Management Discussion and Analysis

36

B (MRS ZEMITE DRZHE -
BESHERRHEERE AEBEERE
HB2EMGBHER - BB R TR
BHMBEMEZERRER FERCHE
EEFRLBNEERBNEE  MRME
BEREE - R R Y EFEENRS
BEmEGEBNEHER BIEESRE
MEE MREFEEHDHE EOEBH
BR-BELORGR MEERE=TTY
MEK -EBEERERYRAEE 8L
DTP  EWMEBFRIMEBEN  BE %
DRI RIEHREN TS AL 18
BEHPEBERBITENERERT -

AEBBIMERRELERFERNRITE
B HEECHEER TZEHEE U
BAMTAIHT - ERNRET  BRAKRFRAZM
BT EEMERFTERRE - AT
BN BESIERH AT FERTHE
BED - MR AT AIAE A R B X AT Bk e
o [[E - IR E A MRFTES
EERRE HEBELCENER ALK
DME - PEEE FREFHONEE
i MRAEMERR ZREVEAH
BRiiTa HEEMSHFELZHRLE

o0
an °

2018FFH FHBEEEARAF

With the full implementation of the “Two-Invoice System” and the
policies for hierarchical diagnosis and separation of medical and
pharmaceutical services, the Group will continue to develop its
specialized sectors, such as businesses at the municipal level and medical
devise business based on continuous promotion of the nationwide
expansion. The Group will continue to strengthen its coverage of basic
medical terminals and retail terminals and further penetrate regions
where it has the most advantageous position. At the same time, the
Group will improve services for upstream enterprises, optimize product
portfolio and business structures, strengthen operational efficiency and
quality, and accelerate development of medical equipment distribution
and importation. The Group will optimize the logistical structure and
accelerate the development of third-party logistics. Furthermore, the
Group will continue to promote innovative business models that involve
the intelligent integration of hospitals and logistics, DTP, and e-commerce
businesses, consolidate its leading position as a pharmaceutical
distribution solution provider, and actively promote a centralization for
China’s pharmaceutical distribution industry.

The Group will seize favorable opportunities for national pharmaceutical
innovation and development and continue to optimize its R&D
system and improve its innovation mechanisms. Meanwhile, driven by
technological innovation, product capacity improvement and clinical
needs, it will further refine its plan in developing innovation in capability,
increase R&D investments, attract talents, improve R&D capabilities,
and accelerate strategic transformation from a combination of generic
study and innovation to independent innovation. Concurrently, the
Group will actively seek cooperation in the field of R&D, expand access
to new products, and enrich the R&D product chain in anti-tumor,
immunotherapy, cardiovascular, central nervous system, and respiratory
system areas. It will also seek to accelerate development of biological
drugs, build a platform for bio-drug innovation technology, and other
core products with competitive market advantages.
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The Group will fully utilize any opportunity that integrates China’s
pharmaceutical industry in the PRC, focusing on the trend in reform
targeting state-owned enterprises in the pharmaceutical industry. It will
accelerate garnering access to high-quality resources through strategic
mergers and acquisitions, and realize external development. Meanwhile,
it will leverage on pharmaceutical industry funds to accomplish a
forward-looking layout in the fields of bio-drugs, innovative drugs,
and pharmaceutical retail to foster new business growth drivers. In
terms of its pharmaceutical manufacturing business, the Group will
focus on exclusive drugs or drugs variants with higher technical barriers
during its strategic investment in high-growth therapeutic areas such
as cardiovascular, anti-tumor, bio-drugs, and healthcare, selectively
acquiring enterprises with differentiated product portfolios or those
that complement its existing core products. In terms of pharmaceutical
distribution and retail businesses, the Group will further consolidate its
leading position in the industry by investing in or acquiring distribution
enterprises with high-quality customer resources and premium
pharmaceutical retail enterprises.

The Group will continue to improve the development and construction
of international cooperation platforms. Based on its existing domestic
business and competitive advantages, the Group will conduct multi-
faceted cooperation with international pharmaceutical manufacturers,
medical device companies and overseas pharmaceutical distributors.
Through various means of cooperation including import of products,
distribution agency, entrusted production, establishment of joint
ventures, and cooperative development, the Group will introduce high-
quality products, cutting-edge technologies and management concepts,
build a mutually beneficial and win-win cooperation model, jointly
expand the Chinese pharmaceutical market, and further promote the
optimization and upgrading of product portfolios and business models.
At the same time, the Group will carry out in-depth analysis and research
on the international pharmaceutical market to achieve a breakthrough in
the overseas business deployment.
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While further unleashing the synergies in its integrated business
deployment, the Group will expand the scope of business synergy,
innovate synergy modes, and promote the synergies among the
pharmaceutical manufacturing, distribution and retail businesses as well
as the subsectors of each business segment in the aspects such as market
entry, expansion of terminals and introduction of products. Leveraging
CR Leasing as a quasi-financial platform, the Group will explore new
opportunities for growth through the synergy of industry and financing
to establish market forces. Concurrently, by improving information
system, strengthening capital control and reinforcing comprehensive
management over internal resources, the Group will promote the
integration of the existing and new resources, strengthen overall control
and operational efficiency, and effectively control operational risks.

CHANGE OF FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY

In the past, the Company’s functional currency was RMB. Taking into
consideration that the Company is a public company listed on the Stock
Exchange where most of its investors are located in Hong Kong and overseas
and the Group is conducting its oversea business deployment, and the Group
is expanding its Hong Kong and overseas investment, the Directors have
determined that the functional currency of the Company should be changed
from RMB to HK$ with effect from 1 July 2018.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group adopts a prudent treasury management policy to maintain a solid
and healthy financial position.

The Group funds its operations principally from cash generated from its
operations, bank loans and other debt instruments and equity financing from
investors. Its cash requirements relate primarily to production and operating
activities, business expansion, repayment of liabilities as they become due,
capital expenditures, interest and dividend payments.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
HK$16,633.3 million (2017: HK$14,161.8 million), which were primarily in
RMB, USD and HKD.

As at 31 December 2018, the RMB-denominated, and HKD-denominated
bank borrowings accounted for approximately 77.0% (2017: 78.5%) and
23.0% (2017: 21.5%), respectively, of the Group's total bank borrowings,
and the bank borrowings which carried interests at fixed and variable rates
accounted for 35.2% (2017: 65.6%) and 64.8% (2017: 34.4%), respectively,
of the Group’s total bank borrowings. Among the Group's total bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2018, a substantial portion of approximately
91.9% (2017: 96.7%) would be due within one year.
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The Group's current ratio (being the ratio of total current assets to total current
liabilities) was 1.2:1 as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 1.2:1).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's gearing ratio (being the ratio of net debt
divided by total equity) was 56.7% (2017: 36.0%).

In 2018, the Group's net cash from operating activities remained solid at
HK$8,247.0 million (2017: HK$4,857.5 million). The Group's net cash
used in investing activities in 2018 amounted to HK$9,801.0 million (2017:
HK$8,511.6 million). The Group's net cash from financing activities in 2018
amounted to HK$4,667.4 million (2017: HK$3,126.9 million).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had not used any financial instruments for
hedging purposes.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's total borrowings amounted to
HK$40,664.5 million (31 December 2017: HK$32,209.8 million), of which
HK$408.8 million (31 December 2017: HK$548.7 million) were secured and
accounted for 1.0% (31 December 2017: 1.7%) of the total borrowings.

Certain of the Group’s trade and bills receivables with an aggregate net book
value of HK$934.0 million (31 December 2017: HK$1,320.4 million) have been
pledged as security.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (31
December 2017: nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's operations are located in the PRC and most of its transactions are
denominated and settled in RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risks on certain cash and cash equivalents, borrowings from banks and trade
payables denominated in currencies other than HK$, being the functional
currency of the Company, the majority of which are denominated in RMB.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not enter into any derivatives
contracts to hedge the foreign exchange exposure.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group's capital expenditure comprised mainly additions to property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets, investment properties and prepaid
lease payments, but excluding additions resulting from acquisitions through
business combination. The Group’s capital expenditure in 2018 amounted to
HK$2,614.1 million (2017: HK$2,005.6 million), which was primarily utilized for
expansion and upgrade of manufacturing facilities, development of distribution
networks, and upgrading of logistic systems. Such capital expenditure was
funded primarily by using cash generated from the Group's operating activities,
bank borrowings and proceeds from the Company's initial public offering.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed around 62,000 staff (31
December 2017: 56,000 staff) in the PRC and Hong Kong. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, experience and
prevailing market rate while performance bonuses are granted on a
discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include, for example, medical
insurance and training.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
28 October 2016 by way of a global offering, under which a total of
1,655,082,000 Shares (including Shares issued upon partial exercise of the
over-allotment option) were issued at an offer price HK$9.10 per Share,
raising total net proceeds of HK$14,767.4 million after deducting professional
fees, underwriting commissions and other related listing expenses (the “IPO
proceeds”).

The Company had not changed the uses of the IPO proceeds as set out in
the Prospectus. All the IPO proceeds had been utilized in accordance with the
intended uses during the year ended 31 December 2018.



i%%/[ﬁ:ﬁ&@

Corporate Governance Report

EEZEMARNARRBBE_T—
St HALEFEZARERRE-

NE+ZA

TERERER

AEERNGRSKENDEER  AMREIR
REVRACEXEERHBEL - ARTERMBDE
%Em?%ﬁ%ﬁ$%2¢%§mfﬂ B 7
SREEN RRERAEAN AR —HEET

TEBARTHETNZEER TJ'E\‘H'AK °

=

EECREASENBERBES TERAEKHE
HRBEREUAREREERRBE -SERE
MHERERUSRKBEIEEER BAHARQ
BEE e NBEEERARG SRETIEABET
L © %%AEW$EIWE@EEF&%
AEEAFEEREENENRET-E

B el FTIE Bae R & - ﬁﬁEJiEﬁé
ARGHERKAESGERINESEESI
o BERARNTEFENHEHE EEFDK
VHhEAEFEZE® HRIRNTZES Fit
ézﬁ‘tM§AE REZEGRGMEEARAT
S EEEEER]) EEEDMA%ZT
SZEBERTEBEBEMIEMEF-

]]]E}/\]]]

et Smo
4 189 W

PREFARRBIASEN ETERERR
A - WA DA RS A2 B B SR RIS M0
RBTRE -

ARBERHHEETWERFLRLFEE AL
R EEFUREFERZRRZRBEHE -

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintain high standards of corporate governance in
order to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and enhance the corporate
value and accountability. The Company has adopted the CG Code as its own
code of corporate governance. Save as disclosed in this annual report, the
Company has complied with all applicable code provisions under the CG Code
throughout the Reporting Period.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees the
Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and performance. Directors
may seek independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company's expense and are encouraged to consult with the Company’s
senior management independently. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the
senior management of the Group. The delegated functions and responsibilities
are periodically reviewed by the Board. The management is required to timely
report to and seek approval from the Board before engaging in any significant
transactions. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has established five Board committees, namely the Executive Committee,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee (together, the
“Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors have the obligations to carry out duties in good faith and in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and to act in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of legal

action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be reviewed by the
Board on an annual basis.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report, the
Board comprises the following Directors:

Chairman and non-executive Director
Mr. FU Yuning (resigned on 21 March 2019)

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. WANG Chuncheng (appointed as Chairman of
the Board on 21 March 2019)

Executive Director and President
Mr. SONG Qing (resigned on 6 August 2018)

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Vice President
Mr. LI Guohui

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Rong

Mr. YU Zhongliang

Mr. WANG Shouye (appointed on 18 May 2018)
Mr. LYU Ruizhi (@appointed on 18 May 2018)

Mr. WANG Chenyang (retired on 18 May 2018)
Ms. WANG Jing (resigned on 18 May 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne

Mr. KWOK Kin Fun

Mr. FU Tingmei

Mr. ZHANG Kejian

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Biographies — Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the year, the Board has met the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non—
executive Directors.

The Company has also complied with Rules 3.10(2), 3.10A and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board (with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise).

As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of them to be independent parties. Details are set out on page 81
of this annual report.
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None of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any other
Director, nor between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a
wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism
to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. Independent non—
executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments as well as the identity of the public companies or
organisations and an indication of the time involved, the Directors have agreed
to disclose their commitments and any subsequent change to the Company in
a timely manner.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction package covering
the statutory and regulatory obligations of a Director of a listed company. The
Company has also arranged in-house trainings for Directors in the form of
seminars and reading materials.

From time to time, the Board arranges visits for the Directors to have a deeper
understanding of the Group's business operations and matters relating to
pharmaceutical industry. In May-June 2018, four independent non-executive
Directors, Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne, Mr. KWOK Kin Fun, Mr. FU Tingmei
and Mr. ZHANG Kejian accompanied by an executive Director, Mr. LI Guohui,
had a five-day site visit in Chongqging and Chengdu. In September 2018, an
independent non-executive Director, Mr. ZHANG Kejian accompanied by an
executive Director, Mr. LI Guohui, had a two-day site visit in Foshan Shunde.
And in December 2018, two non-executive Directors, Mr. WANG Shouye
and Mr. LYU Ruizhi, had a one-day site visit in Shenzhen. During the visit, the
Directors obtained an understanding of the business environment and day-to-
day operation of the Group.
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EERFR2ENBESXERBANT Participation of Directors in continuous professional development during the
year is as follows:
FESERRAENE
Nature of Continuous Professional
Development Programmes
BEXE
HEE
2R/
nNiE_SZEA BB
ﬁﬁu =1 Eun?ﬁz %Aﬁfﬁz
k/% BEAQTE
WBHA HEENHER
Receiving Reading
training; regulatory —E-N\F —T-N\E§ —E-N\E
attending and/ updates or hERA nA +=A
or giving talks information May-June September December
atseminars, relevant to the 2018 2018 2018
conference Company or its Bt ZR BittZR B ZR
EEHF Name of Directors and/or forums business Site visit Site visit Site visit
FTERINTEE Chairman and non-executive
Director
BEELLE Mr. FU Yuning v v - _ _
(RZE—NF (resigned on
ZRZ+—H&A) 21 March 2019)
TE HITEEREE  Chairman, Executive Director and
#HITE Chief Executive Officer
TEBEA (B-F—A Mr. WANG Chuncheng (appointed v v - - -
F=ZRA-+—HEZ{ a5 Chairman of the Board on 21
REESTRE) March 2019)
HITEER fgﬁ Executive Director and President
RBERE (R Mr. SONG Qing (resigned on 6 v v - - -
NARH F%?E) August 2018)
HITEE BEHBKER Executive Director Chief Financial
Gl Officer and Vice President
FEERE Mr. LI Guohui v v % % -
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SEEXBRREME
Nature of Continuous Professional
Development Programmes
g2
HERTHE
EE VY
WERR EE el
RN EEEAN
k/% BEAQEG
WEHA HEENER
Receiving Reading
training; regulatory —Z-N\F —2-N\F —Z-N\F
attending and/ updates or 1ZERA nA +=A
or giving talks information May-June September December
atseminars, relevant to the 2018 2018 2018
conference  Company or its EER EER EiZR
EEgP Name of Directors and/or forums business Site visit Site visit Site visit
FHTEE Non-executive Directors
BRoREE Mr. CHEN Rong v v - - _
REBREE Mr. YU Zhongliang v v - - -
ITEELE Mr. WANG Shouye v v - - v
(RZB-N\&F (appointed on 18 May 2018)
AATN\BEZE)
REREL Mr. LYU Ruizhi v v - - v
(RZZ-N\%F (appointed on 18 May 2018)
TAT/\BEZHE)
IRGEE Mr. WANG Chenyang v % - - -
(R=Z—-)\E%RA (retired on 18 May 2018)
+NABRAE)
IRt Ms. WANG Jing v v - - -
(R=ZZ-\FHA (resigned on 18 May 2018)
+AB#T)
BUFHTEE Indlependent non-executive
Directors
BRELL Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne v v v - -
BEBEL Mr. KWOK Kin Fun v v v - -
BEXEE Mr. FU Tingmei v v v - -
RREEE Mr. ZHANG Kejian v v v v -
FRERITHAER Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

REBEREBTRTRGIEA2 G EFE
TERTBERACETARY RATRAL
-

RBERN EF@TFERARFITHERD
RIBEE EEEREFME LR ABEER
nREEMETARL - EF2XFaER
PBEFS2AFEAREXEHE BRLE
KRR MITHRARRNEERNEENBEEE -

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

During the Reporting Period, the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company were two separate positions held by Mr.
FU Yuning and Mr. WANG Chuncheng, respectively, with clear distinction in
responsibilities. The Chairman of the Board is responsible for formulating of
business plans, strategies and major decisions of the Group through the Board,
while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the overall management of
the Group.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Company has not
fully complied with Code Provisions A.4.1 and D.1.4 of the CG Code during
the year. In respect of Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all the non-
executive Directors are not appointed for a fixed term, and in respect of Code
Provision D.1.4 of the CG Code, the Company did not have formal letters
of appointment for Directors. Since all Directors are subject to re-election by
the Shareholders at the AGM and at least about once every three years on a
rotation basis in accordance with the Articles of Association, there are sufficient
measures to ensure the corporate governance of the Company complies with
the same level to that required under the CG Code.

Details of the Directors’ service contract are set out on page 81 of this annual
report.

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. With respect to regular meetings of the Board, Directors
usually receive at least fourteen days prior written notice of the meeting to
provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally
given. The agenda and accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the
Directors at least three days before the meetings to ensure that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and are adequately prepared for the
meetings. When the Directors or Board Committee members are unable to
attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman of the Board or the
relevant chairman of the Board Committee prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are recorded
in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board and the Board
Committees and the decisions made, including any concerns raised by the
Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and Board Committee meeting
are sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date
on which the meeting is held. Minutes of the Board and Board Committee
meeting are kept by the duly appointed secretary of the meeting and are open
for inspection by Directors.
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R-Z—\F EFGHTT/\REFETH
EREFHFESFESRNBERENTXK:

Director at the meeting is set out in the table below:

During 2018, eight Board meetings were held and the attendance of each

EEHS

FRRIATEF

BE=RE
(RZT—h%F
ZAZ+—BEE)

TE HITEEREEHTTE

FEMEE
(RZZE-NF=RA=-+—H
BZEREZEIF)

HITEFRABL

RBERE (R NFN\ANHEE)

HITEE BEMKEREKEZ
FEELLE

HPITEE

BRI ST

RERFKE

TFERE

(R N\FRA+N\BEZE)
BEERE
(RZZE-NFRATN\BEZEE)
ITRBEE
(RZZE-NFRAT/N\BERE)
EFR&E
(RZZE-NFRA+T/\BEIE)

BIHPTTEF
BRRZ L
B TE
mERLLE
R BEE

Name of Directors

Chairman and non-executive Director
Mr. FU Yuning

(resigned on

21 March 2019)

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. WANG Chuncheng

(appointed as Chairman of

the Board on 21 March 2019)

Executive Director and President
Mr. SONG Qing (resigned on 6 August 2018)

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Vice President
Mr. LI Guohui

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHEN Rong
Mr. YU Zhongliang
Mr. WANG Shouye

(appointed on 18 May 2018)
Mr. LYU Ruizhi

(appointed on 18 May 2018)
Mr. WANG Chenyang

(retired on 18 May 2018)
Ms. WANG Jing

(resigned on 18 May 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne

Mr. KWOK Kin Fun

Mr. FU Tingmei

Mr. ZHANG Kejian

EHEESERE
EHEEESRH
Attended/Eligible to
attend the

Board meeting

1/8

8/8

3/3

8/8

7/8
6/8
5/5

5/5
172

212

7/8
7/8
8/8
8/8
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EERERRBNREAEANRESE
(BERITER FE5) RIEENERSE
18 ;

2018F % FEHEEEEFRAR

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all
the Directors, each of the Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied
with the required standards as set out in the Model Code during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Executive Committee comprises all the executive Directors, namely Mr.
WANG Chuncheng (chairman), Mr. SONG Qing (resigned on 6 August 2018)
and Mr. LI Guohui.

The principal duties of the Executive Committee include but are not limited to
the following:

1.

to monitor the formulation, revision and implementation of the
Company's strategic plans;

to monitor the execution of the Company’s business plans and the
Company'’s business operations;

to monitor the operation of the Company'’s subsidiaries;

to approve the scope of authority delegated to the Senior Management
of the Company and its changes;

to exercise part of the power on behalf of the Board between regular
Board meetings, with its power restricted to the areas that are considered
by the Board as material and related to the formulation of the policy and
business development direction of the Company;

to review and approve operational matters which constitutes below
5% (for matters within the business plan of the Group) or below 1%
(for matters outside the business plan of the Group) of the audited net
asset of the Group in the previous financial year (except for notifiable
transactions and connected transactions for which announcements are
required under the Listing Rules);

to review and approve the financing matters within the financing plan
resolved and passed by the Board (including bank loans and trusts etc.)
and their corresponding guarantee matters;

to review and approve on behalf of the Board the financing matters
within the financing plan resolved and passed by the board of directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company (including bank loans and trusts etc.)
and their corresponding guarantee matters;
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10.

11.

12.

EARBMEMBARFE
FERR -

Z EABUT

REZFSHEABRDT REM
BARMFEEMR T AAASBAR
AABINBRIRER REMT
EERE
RREFGHAEMARANMEAR
Al %S A R T E R
H A B R B ;

REREFEHERRAAENER
7Kg N AR B R R
MERER/HELREE:

RREEFGHAERRE R HEM
BRAFALRITRESEEFLOR
HBAMEE (BREEEFAR
HEBBPAMGRLEESE) K

FEEME E A EEBBENRERHEX
 EINEARR A ENE - A R AL EE
A—RHUA L ARREETEERH
B AW

R (EEEEBBEEINE) REEZ
HEFSEH L ENHIMEEEE:

REFBEEE BINLETREFTINU
ARRRERINAERRETNEEWER
ES Y50k o] et

REHEFEREALZEGRENTMAE
M EER: &

to exercise the following power in accordance with the needs of the
Company and its subsidiaries:

to approve on behalf of the Board banking facilities and/or
financial instruments to be granted to or issued by the Company
for the needs of the Company and its subsidiaries;

to approve on behalf of the Board the grant of any loan or
other financial assistance to the Company'’s subsidiaries and/or
associates;

to approve on behalf of the Board the provision of corporate
guarantees, indemnity and/or letters of comfort by the Company
for its subsidiaries and/or associates;

to approve on behalf of the Board the opening of bank or
securities related accounts and other ancillary matters of the
Company and/or its subsidiaries, including appointing the
signatories and approving the terms and mandate for such
accounts; and

to affix the Company’s seal on any instrument or document related
to the above items and approve any one or more of the Directors
of the Company to sign the instrument or document;

to decide external donation matters which should be reviewed and
approved by the Board in accordance with the “Donation Management
Policy of the China Resources Group”;

to authorize one or more Directors for executing relevant documents to
be filed and/or submitted to regulatory authorities on behalf or in the
name of the Company;

to deal with any other specific business authorized to this Committee by
the Board; and
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SERITNRERE -

ﬂﬁ 2BERBHFEZEFERNBERERT

13.  to approve on behalf of the Board the relevant arrangements for
the publication of voluntary announcement(s), overseas regulatory
announcement(s) made pursuant to Rule 13.10B of the Listing Rules,
announcement(s) made pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules, next
day disclosure return(s), or announcement(s) on the principal financial
results of the subsidiaries of the Company on the HKEXNews website of
the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website.

The written terms of reference of the Executive Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During 2018, twelve meetings (including by way of circulation of written
resolutions) were held by the Executive Committee which primarily covered

banking and financing matters of the Group.

Attendance of each Executive Committee member is set out in the table below:

BHERE EHRER

BITERXRH R =
Attended/ Written
HITEEERE Executive Committee members Meetings held Resolutions Total
FEHEBEE Mr. WANG Chuncheng 11/11 11 12/12
(ATTZEELME) (Chairman of the
Executive Committee)
RiBFRAE Mr. SONG Qing 10/11 11 11/12
(RZZE—N\F (resigned on 6 August 2018)
J\ANAEHE)
TR A A Mr. LI Guohui 11/11 IVAl 12/12
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The Audit Committee comprises six members, including four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne (chairman), Mr.
KWOK Kin Fun, Mr. FU Tingmei and Mr. ZHANG Kejian, and two non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. CHEN Rong, Ms. WANG Jing (resigned on 18 May 2018)
and Mr. LYU Ruizhi (appointed on 18 May 2018).

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include but are not limited to the
following:

1. toreview and monitor the Auditor’'s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards;

2. to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to
supply non-audit services;

3. to discuss with the external Auditor before the audit commences, the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations, and ensuring co-
ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

4. to monitor integrity of the Group's financial statements, annual reports
and accounts, half-year reports and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports and reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them;

5. to review the Group's financial controls, risk management and internal
control system; and

6.  toensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Group, and reviewing and monitoring its

effectiveness.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During 2018, three meetings of the Audit Committee were held to discuss and
consider the following matters:

o reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance procedures,
internal control (including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function) and risk management
systems and processes.

REAZTEEREHELXZSSENBERENT  Attendance of each Audit Committee member is set out in the table below:
*x:
EHERE
FE R IR E
Attended/
EIFEEENE Audit Committee members Eligible to attend
BERLZ L Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne 33
(B ZESTE/E) (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
HEEEE Mr. FU Tingmei 273
BRER A4 Mr. CHEN Rong 33
BEELE Mr. LYU Ruizhi 212
(R=Z— \FRA+N\BEZI) (appointed on 18 May 2018)
TR+ Ms. WANG Jing 171
(R=Z— \FRATN\HEMT) (resigned on 18 May 2018)
FRB) T Mr. KWOK Kin Fun 33
oK 7 B A Mr. ZHANG Kejian 33
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The Nomination Committee currently comprises five members, including one
executive Director, Mr. WANG Chuncheng (chairman), and four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne, Mr. KWOK Kin
Fun, Mr. FU Tingmei and Mr. ZHANG Kejian.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include but are not limited
to the following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy;

2. to develop and maintain a policy for the nomination of the Directors
which includes the nomination procedures and the process and
criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee to identify, select and
recommend candidates for directorship during the year, and to review
periodically the policy and progress made towards achieving the
objectives set in the nomination policy;

3. todevelop, maintain and review periodically the policy concerning the
diversity of the Board;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and the succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive;

5. toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships with regard to the nomination
policy of the Company; and

6.  to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent on criteria
such as integrity, whether the individual can bring to the Board the perspectives,
how the individual can contribute to the diversity of the Board, experience, skill
and ability to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to the
Board for decision.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During 2018, two meetings (including by way of circulation of written
resolutions) were held by the Nomination Committee mainly to review the
Board Diversity Policy, which included the assessment of its effectiveness and
the appointment of non-executive Directors and member of Audit Committee.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2018 53

q



@

FHEEBRS
Corporate Governance Report

RIEZLZEEREHEXSSHMBERENT  Attendance of each Nomination Committee member is set out in the table
= below:
BHEXE, EMERER
HITEBRH R EL a5F
Attended/ Written
REZEERE Nomination Committee members Meetings held Resolutions Total
HEELEE Mr. FU Yuning 0/1 1”71 12
(RZFE-NEFE=H (resigned as chairman of
—+—HEHF the Nomination Committee
WEEZEELE) on 21 March 2019)
FEWEE Mr. WANG Chuncheng 1/1 171 212
(R=ZF—INF=H (appointed as chairman of
—F—HEZTA the Nomination Committee on
EEZEELE) 21 March 2019)
BRIt Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne 1/1 11 2/2
Bk b vt Mr. KWOK Kin Fun 1/1 11 2/2
HEELE Mr. FU Tingmei 171 1”1 212
R T B A Mr. ZHANG Kejian 1Al IVAl 2/2
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The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of a Board with a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives. Given the importance of the
Nomination Committee’s role in ensuring the balance within the Board and
to give greater focus and transparency in relation to the election of Directors,
the Company has established the Director Nomination Policy. This policy aims
to set out the approach to guide the Nomination Committee in relation to the
selection, appointment and re-appointment of the Directors, and to ensure
the Board has a balance of skills experience, knowledge and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.

Nomination Criteria: The Nomination Committee will assess, select
and recommend candidate(s) for directorship to the Board by giving due
consideration to criteria including (but not limit to) reputation for character
and integrity, region and industry experience, diversity in aspects, commitment
for responsibilities of the Board in respect of available time, and potential
contributions brought to the Board.

Procedures and Process for Nomination of Directors: The Nomination
Committee may consult any source it deems appropriate in identifying
or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from existing Directors,
advertising, recommendations from third-party agency firm and proposals
from Shareholders with due consideration given to the criteria; the
Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems appropriate in
evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as interviews, background
checks, presentations and third party reference checks; upon considering a
candidate suitable for the directorship, the Nomination Committee will hold
a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment; the Nomination Committee
will provide the relevant information of the selected candidate to the
Remuneration Committee for consideration of remuneration package of such
selected candidate.




FHEEBRS
Corporate Governance Report

EXRHE REZEENEHELEXEREZER
EmEZPFHEMNEFREETGHREMLS -

EFEAHRRY REZERENMRTE
ERABR  WHERBRBARIE —BYAXN
REAMFE AARRBBEERENEEE
ATARF-RAZ B S KA wIEM A BEAE
HEER] W RAEFSREFREMBRRET M
ik

ARARINEFRABRNA AR HER -

ARBERLRARAAEZ TICEFEXNENE
S UREEFTEEANZ T ERERHFE
IMERLHR —AELZTENEFTEHE
& (BRR) ARIEE - 788 - Beie ol )2 7T
& AR MR MEMEENEEEKE
WA IAMA -REZ B @R RFAHESS
MR YR EHEFAEFTSRhERER
NEREESERMFEEHNET - REE
BENHIERREFTERBZ BRI E
B EER LA ERRERERATE

CHIN

Rt EAE  REZBEREFELRMBE
REHEFEXBZITICWMBRGERR,
WREFSEHEE B RARERSR PR
ERE - EFGRSRAEERN-—TTEEZS
EHZ T YRR EEE -

Monitoring and reporting: The Nomination Committee will assess and report
on the composition of the Board in the corporate governance report.

Review of the Director Nomination Policy: The Nomination Committee
will review the Director Nomination Policy periodically to ensure that it is
transparent and fair, remains relevant to the Company’s needs and reflects the
current regulatory requirements and good corporate governance practice. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for approval.

The Company's Director Nomination Policy is available at the website of the
Company.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board,
and sees diversity at Board level as an essential element in maintaining a
competitive advantage. A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of
differences in the perspectives, talents, skills, regional and industry experience,
background, gender and other qualities of the members of the Board. The
Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the composition of the Board
and makes recommendations to the Board on appointment of new Directors,
and also oversees the conduct of the annual review of the effectiveness of the
Board. The Nomination Committee also develops and maintains the Board
Diversity Policy and periodically reviews the effectiveness of this Policy and
whether the measurable objectives are achieved and/or should be amended.

Measurable objectives: The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree
annually all measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and
recommend them to the Board for adoption. At any given time, the Board
may seek to improve one or more aspects of its diversity and measure progress
accordingly.
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Monitoring and reporting: The Nomination Committee will report annually,
in the corporate governance report of the Company, on the process it has
used in relation to Board appointments. Such report will include a summary of
the Board Diversity Policy, the measurable objectives set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy and progress made towards achieving these measurable
objectives.

Review of the Board Diversity Policy: The Nomination Committee will
review the Board Diversity Policy annually, which will include an assessment of
its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may
be required and recommend any such revisions to the Board for approval.

The Company’s Board Diversity Policy is available at the website of the
Company.

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, including one non-
executive Director, Mr. CHEN Rong, and four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. KWOK Kin Fun (chairman), Mdm. SHING Mo Han
Yvonne, Mr. FU Tingmei and Mr. ZHANG Kejian.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include but are not limited
to the following:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and
structure for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

2. toreview and approve the senior management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the corporate goals and objectives determined by the
Board;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management. These include
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

&

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors;
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5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;

6.  to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors and
senior management for any loss or termination of office or appointment
to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair
and not excessive;

7. toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;
and

8.  toensure that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During 2018, one meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee mainly
to make recommendation to the Board for the proposed adjustment of
remuneration of the independent non-executive Directors and to review the
remuneration policy.

Attendance of each Remuneration Committee member is set out in the table
below:

HMEESERE

B TE
(FrNZR 2 L/E)
BRERSEE
BRRZ L
mERLLE
R BEE

EHERE

FE R &

Attended/

Remuneration Committee members Eligible to attend

Mr. KWOK Kin Fun 11
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)

Mr. CHEN Rong 71

Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne 171

Mr. FU Tingmei 11

Mr. ZHANG Kejian 11
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The Corporate Governance Committee comprises six members, including two
executive Directors namely Mr. WANG Chuncheng and Mr. LI Guohui and four
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. FU Tingmei (chairman), Mdm.
SHING Mo Han Yvonne, Mr. KWOK Kin Fun and Mr. ZHANG Kejian.

The principal duties of the Corporate Governance Committee include but are
not limited to the following:

1.

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management on corporate
governance;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors;

to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report.

The written terms of reference of the Corporate Governance Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During 2018, two meetings were held by the Corporate Governance
Committee mainly to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
Corporate Governance Report in 2017, and to adopt the amended CG Code,
amended relevant policies and amended terms of reference of the Company.

Attendance of each Corporate Governance Committee member is set out in
the table below:

TEEREEERE

mERLLE
(ERERZRETE)

FEMEE
FEELLE
BERBE
FHEB KL
KB4

BHEXE,

P& R

Attended/

Corporate Governance Committee members Eligible to attend

Mr. FU Tingmei 2/2

(Chairman of the

Corporate Governance Committee)

Mr. WANG Chuncheng 12

Mr. LI Guohui 2/2

Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne 2/2

Mr. KWOK Kin Fun 2/2

Mr. ZHANG Kejian 2/2

HERRAE
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ATTENDANCE AT GENERAL MEETING

During the year, the Company held one general meeting, namely the AGM held
on 18 May 2018. Details of matters resolved and the poll results were published
on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website after the general
meeting on that day.

Mr. FU Yuning, the then Chairman and non-executive Director, Mr. WANG
Chenyang and Ms. WANG Jing, the then non-executives Directors, were unable
to attend the AGM held on 18 May 2018 due to other business appointments.
The chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Corporate Governance Committee attended the AGM to ensure effective
communication with the Shareholders. Separate resolution was proposed at
the AGM on each substantially separate issue, including re-election of each
retiring director, and was put to vote at the meeting by way of poll. Detailed
procedures for conducting a poll were explained at the meeting.
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Chairman and non-executive Director
Mr. FU Yuning (resigned on 21 March 2019)

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. WANG Chuncheng (appointed as Chairman of
the Board on 21 March 2019)

Executive Director and President
Mr. SONG Qing (resigned on 6 August 2018)

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Vice President
Mr. LI Guohui

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHEN Rong
Mr. YU Zhongliang
Mr. WANG Shouye

(appointed on 18 May 2018)
Mr. LYU Ruizhi

(appointed on 18 May 2018)
Mr. WANG Chenyang

(retired on 18 May 2018)
Ms. WANG Jing

(resigned on 18 May 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne

Mr. KWOK Kin Fun

Mr. FU Tingmei

Mr. ZHANG Kejian
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Details of the remuneration by band of the senior management of the
Company, whose biographies are set out on pages 71 to 76 of this annual
report, for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out below:

AE
& Z 4% Remuneration band Number of individuals
T 2 511,000,000 Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 1
711,000,001 7T 274 % 1,500,0007T HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 -
711,500,001 7T 2 7% #2,000,0007T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1
712,000,001 7T 7% #2,500,0007T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 5
712,500,001 7T 2 7% #£3,000,0007T HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 3
785 #£3,000,0017T & 74 #£3,500,0007T HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1
78 #43,500,0017T 2 7% #4,000,0007T HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 1
784,000,001 7T £ 7% #4,500,0007T HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 1
784,500,001 7T 2 7% #£5,000,0007T HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 -
75 #45 000,001 7T 274 #£5,500,0007T HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
745,500,001 7T 2 7% #6,000,0007T HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 -
786,000,001 7T 2= 75 #6,500,0007T * HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000* -

* RZF-NF+ZA —EENEZERERE * One individual was appointed as a senior management member in December
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2018, and the remuneration band reflects his remuneration upon appointment to
the senior management team.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 which give a true and fair
view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s results
and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information
as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of
the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval.
The Company provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on
Company'’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group'’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities on the

consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 95 to 103 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control systems to
safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets and reviewing the
effectiveness of such systems on an annual basis. The risk management and
internal control systems can provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, and are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in the process of attaining business objectives.

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management and internal
control system, and devoted significant attention to internal control measures
of its pharmaceutical manufacturing, pharmaceutical distribution and
pharmaceutical retail businesses. It has adopted stringent internal control
measures and operating procedures to regulate all stages of its pharmaceutical
value chain, from research and development to manufacturing, distribution
and retail. The Group's internal control system is designed according to
relevant industrial and management standards, including the GMP and GSP
requirements. The Group fully implements the procedures for periodic internal
control audit, internal risk management, and error correction and prevention.

With respect to dissemination of inside information, the Company has adopted
its “Information Disclosure Policy” setting out the procedures of proper
information disclosure. Release of inside information shall be led by the Board.
Unless duly authorized, all staff members of the Company shall not disseminate
inside information relating to the Group to any external parties and shall not
respond to media report or market speculation which may materially affect the
trading price or volume of the Shares.

The Group's internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the internal audit
department include reviewing the financial condition, risk management and
internal control of the Group and conducting comprehensive audits of all
subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis. The internal audit department
is required to report to the Audit Committee and the Board in relation to its
review of the Group'’s risk management and internal control system annually,
and if there is any material deficiency, such issue has to be reported in a timely
manner.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted an annual review of
the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
and considered the systems to be effective and adequate. The Audit Committee
has also assessed whether the Group's internal audit department is adequately
resourced and reviewed its effectiveness.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by the Auditor
to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately as
follows:

T (BT )

PR 7% $E B Type of services Amount (HK$’000)

% B AR 7S Audit services 13,296

IERZ B ARTS Non-audit services 890

BET Total 14,186
NEWE COMPANY SECRETARY
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The Company Secretary, Mr. LO Chi Lik Peter, is a practicing solicitor in Hong
Kong. Mr. LO, aged 69, was appointed as the Company Secretary on 20
May 2016. He qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1976 and has been in
continuous practice since qualification. He is currently a partner of Messrs. \Woo,
Kwan, Lee & Lo. Although Mr. LO is not a full time employee of the Company,
he reports to the Board and in his capacity as Company Secretary advises the
Board on governance matters. The primary contact person of the Company
with Mr. LO is Mr. LI Guohui, the executive Director, chief financial officer and
vice president of the Company. Mr. LO confirmed that he had fulfilled the
15 hours of Continuing Professional Development training requirement of a
solicitor of Hong Kong in respect of 2018.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and understanding of the Group’s
business, performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes the
importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of information, which will
enable Shareholders and investors to make the informed investment decisions.

The AGMs provide opportunity for the Shareholders to communicate directly
with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the
Board Committees will normally attend the AGMs to answer Shareholders’
questions. The Auditor will also be invited to attend the AGMs to answer
guestions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor’s independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a Shareholders’
communication policy which aims at establishing a two-way relationship and
communication between the Company and the Shareholders and maintains
a website of the Company at http://www.crpharm.com, where up-to-date
information on the Group's business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Al resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules, and the poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each general
meeting.

In accordance with Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the Directors
are required to call a general meeting if the Company has received requests
to do so from members of the Company representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the members having a right to vote at general meeting. Such
requests (a) must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at
the meeting; and (b) may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting. Such requests (a) may
be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered
office of the Company for the attention of the Board) or in electronic form
(by email: crpharm.ir@crpharm.com); and (b) must be authenticated by the
person or persons making it. In accordance with Section 567 of the Companies
Ordinance, the directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date
on which they become subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the
Companies Ordinance and such meeting must be held on a date not more than
28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.

Besides, Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance provides that members may
request the Company to give, to the members who are entitled to attend the
AGM, notice of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at its annual general meeting. The Company must give such notice
of resolution if it has received requests that it do so from (a) the members of
the Company representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
members who have a right to vote on the resolution at the annual general
meeting to which the requests relate; or (b) at least 50 members who have
a right to vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate. Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company in hard copy
form (by depositing at the registered office of the Company for the attention of
the Board) or in electronic form (by email: crpharm-ir@crpharm.com); (b) must
identify the resolution of which notice is to be given; () must be authenticated
by the person or persons making it; and (d) must be received by the Company
not later than (i) six weeks before the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is given of that meeting.
Section 616 of the Companies Ordinance provides that the Company that
is required under Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance to give notice of
a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s own expense to each
member of the Company entitled to receive notice of the annual general
meeting (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the
same time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the
meeting.
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Article 90 of the Articles of Association provides that the Company may from
time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board; no person,
other than a retiring Director or a person recommended by the Board, shall
be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless
notice in writing from a shareholder of his intention to propose that person for
election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to
be elected as a Director shall have been lodged with the registered office of the
Company; unless otherwise determined by the Directors and notified by the
Company to the Shareholders, the period for lodgement of the notices referred
to in paragraph (2) of this Article shall commence on a day after the dispatch
of the notice of the meeting designated for such election of Director(s). If the
Directors should so determine and notify the Shareholders of a different period
for lodgement of the said notice referred to in paragraph (2) of this Article, such
period shall in any event be a period of not less than seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the said notice of the meeting and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting.

Accordingly, if a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person to stand for election
as a Director at the general meeting, the following documents must be validly
served at the registered office of the Company, namely (1) his/her notice of
intention to propose a resolution at the general meeting; (2) a notice signed by
the nominated candidate of his/her willingness to be elected; (3) the nominated
candidate’s information as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules; and (4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to the
publication of his/her personal data.

The aforesaid procedures are available on the website of the Company.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on 17 December 2018. Subject
to the relevant criteria, the Company mat distribute not less than 20% of the
Group's annual distributable profit, excluding one-off gains, as dividends to the
Shareholders. Such declaration and payment of dividends shall remain to be
determined at the absolute discretion of the Board and subject to all applicable
requirements (including without limitation restrictions on dividend declaration
and payment) under the Companies Ordinance and the Articles of Association.

The Company will regularly review the Dividend Policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify the
Dividend Policy at any time, and Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend
at any time or from time to time.

The Company'’s Dividend Policy is available at the website of the Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the Investor Relations Department of the Company. The
contact details are as follows:

Investor Relations Department

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited
Room 4104-05, 41/F, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Email: crpharm-ir@crpharm.com

Tel No.: 852-2593 8991

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholding to the
Company'’s Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong or fax number: 2861
1465.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During 2018, there is no change in the Articles of Association.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. WANG Chuncheng, aged 56, was appointed as a Director in December
2014, designated as an executive Director in June 2016, appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company in June 2016 and the chairman of the Board
in March 2019. Mr. WANG also serves as an executive vice president of CR
Holdings, the chairman of CR Pharmaceutical Holdings, the chairman of CR
Sanjiu, the chairman of Dong-E-E-Jiao, the chairman of CR Jiangzhong Group
and a director of the board of the International Federation of Pharmaceutical
Wholesalers (IFPW). Mr. WANG has over 20 years of experience in corporate
management. He was the chairman of CR Double-Crane from January 2015
to December 2018. He served as a general manager of the human resources
department of China Resources Company Limited (formerly known as China
Resources National Corporation), a general manager of the standing board
office of CR Holdings, the chairman of Teck Soon Hong Limited, and the
chairman of China Resources Textiles (Holdings) Company Limited () %77 4%
((£@E)ABR 2 7)) and the chairman of CR Pharmaceutical Commercial. Mr.
WANG holds a bachelor’s degree in economics from Jilin Institute of Finance
and Trade (currently known as Jilin University of Finance and Economics) in
Changchun, the PRC.

Executive Director

Chief Financial Officer, Vice President

Mr. LI Guohui, aged 47, was appointed as a Director in March 2016 and
designated as an executive Director in June 2016. Mr. LI also serves as the chief
financial officer and vice president of the Company, a director of CR Double-
Crane, a director of Dong-E-E-Jiao, a supervisor of CR Sanjiu and a director
of CR Jiangzhong Group. Mr. LI has over 15 years of experience in financial
and business analysis and financial management. Mr. LI joined CR Holdings
in 2009 and served as the chief accounting officer of the finance department
from September 2011. Mr. LI obtained a bachelor’s degree in shipbuilding
techniques and equipment from the Faculty of Naval Architecture and Ocean
Engineering of Wuhan Institute of Water Transportation Engineering (currently
known as Wuhan University of Technology) in Wuhan, the PRC. He holds a
master’s degree in business administration from Wuhan University, the PRC
and a master’s degree in financial management from Nanyang Technological
University in Singapore. Mr. LI is a CFA charter holder and a certified accountant
of the Institute of Certified Public Accountant of Singapore.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. CHEN Rong, aged 46, was appointed as a Director in May 2016 and
designated as a non-executive Director in June 2016. Mr. CHEN was appointed
as the general manager of the Finance Department of CR Holdings in February
2016, a non-executive director of China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company
Limited (formerly known as China Resources Enterprise, Limited), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 291) in April 2016 and a non-
executive director of China Resources Land Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1109) in April 2017. Mr. CHEN has previously
worked in Epson Technical Limited, Walmart China Investment Limited and
Fuji Electric Technical Services Limited. Mr. CHEN joined CR Holdings in May
2007, he was the head of tax management of the Finance Department of
CR Holdings and deputy general manager and chief financial officer of China
Resources Vanguard Company Limited. Mr. CHEN holds MBA degree from
Xi'an Jiaotong University. He is an Intermediate Accountant and a Certified Tax
Agent in China. He is also a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Non-executive Director

Mr. YU Zhongliang, aged 54, was appointed as a non-executive Director in
June 2016. Mr. YU also serves as a senior deputy chief strategy officer of the
strategy management department of CR Holdings. Mr. YU has over 20 years
of experience in investment, business analysis and strategic development. Mr.
YU was successively the strategic development controller, an executive director
and a vice chairman of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1313). Mr. YU holds an MBA degree
of York University in Toronto, Canada.

Non-executive Director

Mr. WANG Shouye, aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive Director in
May 2018. Mr. WANG joined the BSCOMC in 2010 and is currently the chief
financial officer of BSCOMC. He was a Director from October 2011 to June
2016. Mr. WANG was also a non-executive director of CSC Financial Co., Ltd.,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6066), from August
2016 to February 2018. Mr. WANG has over 10 years of experience in financial
management. He was the director of finance and audit division of Beijing
Coal Corporation (3t T ik 422 7)) , the director of finance and audit
division, the director of finance and audit department, the director of finance
department, and the director of finance and price department of Beijing Jintai
Hengye Co., Ltd. (It R&REEFREE R F]), a subsidiary of Beijing
Jingmei Group Co. Ltd. (It R~ EEEFR E £ 2 7)) and the director of
finance department of Beijing Golden Tide Group Co. Ltd (It R& HEE A
R A &) , a subsidiary of Beijing Jingmei Group Co. Ltd. (It R R HEEBEH
R & TR F]) . Mr. WANG graduated from Fuxin Mining Institute majoring in
statistics in 1992 and graduated from the School of Continuing Education of
Renmin University of China on a part-time basis in 1997 majoring in investment
and economics management. Mr. WANG obtained a master’s degree in
business management and economics from Liaoning Technical University in
2006. He is also a senior accountant and senior statistician in the PRC.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. LYU Ruizhi, aged 46, was appointed as a non-executive Director in May
2018. Mr LYU joined BSCOMC in 2010 and is currently the general manager of
the investment management second division of BSCOMC. Mr. LYU has many
years of experience in investment management. He was the vice manager
of the securities department of Beijing Capital Development Co., Ltd. (1t &
B #FE D B R 2 7)) and the vice general manager of the investment
management division of BSCOMC. Mr. LYU was a part-time director of Beiqi
Foton Motor Co., Ltd (1 /5@ M /A E &7 B R A7) (a company listed
on Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600166) from September 2015 to
July 2018. Mr. LYU graduated from the department of investment economics
of Renmin University of China in 1995 majoring in investment economics
management and obtained a master’s degree in accounting from the School of
Business of Renmin University of China in 2002. He is also an economist in the
PRC.

Independent non-executive Director

Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne, 88s, /p, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in August 2017. Mdm. SHING was
appointed as a Justice of Peace of the HKSAR in 2013 and awarded Bronze
Bauhinia Star in 2017. Mdm. SHING is currently the chairman of Yinn Advisory
Services Limited. Mdm. SHING was a partner of Deloitte China for over 26
years until her retirement in May 2016. She is also a member of the 10th,
11th and 12th Jiangsu Provincial Committee of the CPPCC. Mdm. SHING
is a founding member and former president of the Association of Women
Accountants (Hong Kong) and the former chairman of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants Taxation Committee. She is now the vice-
chairman of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce Tax Committee
and member of Chinese General Chamber of Commerce. Her professional
qualifications include fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mdm. SHING's current
public appointments include treasurer of the Council of the Hong Kong
Academy for Performing Arts, member of the Corruption Prevention Advisory
Committee of the Independent Commission Against Corruption, member of
the Communications Authority, member of the Advisory Committee on Built
Heritage Conservation, court member of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
and advisor and member of the Finance Committee of Our Hong Kong
Foundation. In 2006, Mdm. SHING received the National Hundred Outstanding
Women Entrepreneurs Award in Great Hall of the People in Beijing. She also
received the Outstanding Alumni Award of Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2007. Mdm. SHING has been consecutively named from 2001 to 2015 in
International Tax Review as one of the World's Leading Tax Advisors in Hong
Kong and Mainland. Mdm. SHING graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
(currently known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and obtained a
Higher Diploma in Accountancy and is 2016/2017 University Fellow of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Independent non-executive Director

Mr. KWOK Kin Fun, 88s, Jp, aged 69, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in June 2016. Mr. KWOK also serves as an executive
committee member of Rehabilitation International and global vice chairman
of Social Commission of Rehabilitation International, the chairman of Incheon
Strategy Group Committee of Asia and Pacific Disability Forum, a vice chairman
of The Hong Kong Joint Council for People with Disabilities, a vice chairman of
The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation, the chairman of Fu Hong Society, a
member of Ethics Research Committee of Hospital Authority Kowloon Central
and Kowloon East Clusters, a member of Voting Members Committee of
Riding For the Disabled Association, the chairman of Accessible IT Development
Association Limited. Mr. KWOK has over 30 years of experience in disability
research and medical research ethics. He successively served as a senior lecturer,
a principal lecturer, a university senior lecturer and an associate professor of the
City University of Hong Kong from 1985 to 2009, and after retirement served
as full-time and part-time senior research fellow. Mr. KWOK was appointed as a
Justice of the Peace by the government of Hong Kong in 1997 and received the
Bronze Bauhinia Star awarded by the government of Hong Kong SAR in 2005,
“Kazuo Itoga” Memorial Prize awarded by the government of Shiga Prefecture,
Japan in 2006, and the Promoter title of “Asian and Pacific Decade of Persons
with Disabilities, 2013-2022" awarded by United Nations Economic and Social
Commission for Asia and the Pacific (UNESCAP) in 2012. Mr. KWOK holds a
bachelor’s degree in social science from the University of Hong Kong, a master’s
degree in social science from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and a Ph.D.
degree from the University of Nottingham, the United Kingdom.

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. FU Tingmei, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in June 2016. Mr. FU has over 20 years of experience in investment,
finance, law and business management. Mr. FU currently serves as an
independent non-executive director of CPMC Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0906), Guotai Junan International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1788),
Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1658) and COFCO Meat Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1610). Mr. FU was an independent non-executive
director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0392) from July 2008 to June 2017. Mr. FU holds a
master’s degree in law and a Ph.D. degree in law from London University, the
United Kingdom.
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Independent non-executive Director

Mr. ZHANG Kejian, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in June 2016. Mr. ZHANG also serves as an independent director
of Yifan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 002019), an independent director of Hunan Fangsheng
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 603998) and the Chief Scientist of The South China Center for
Innovative Pharmaceuticals. Mr. ZHANG has over 20 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical industry of PRC. He was an independent director of CR Double-
Crane from February 2016 to June 2018. He was employed as a professor
of School of Pharmaceutical Sciences of Sun Yat-sen University and the
director (Pharmacy Administration) of The South China Center for Innovative
Pharmaceuticals, a researcher at the Institute of Medicine, Chinese Academy of
Medical Sciences ( # Bl &5 2R} 287 ) B 35 F) |, and successively served as
a deputy director of Pharmaceutical Evaluation Center ( %% $ 28 5F 7 0 ) and
a deputy director of Medical Device Evaluation Center ( &8 224 S 1728 5T
) under the State Food and Drug Administration of the PRC (Bl 5 & & 2%
mEEEIMB) . Mr. ZHANG received a master's degree in pathophysiology
from China Medical University in Shenyang, the PRC and a doctor’s degree in
pharmacy from the School of Pharmaceutical Sciences of Chiba University in
Chiba, Japan.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LI Xiangming, aged 54, was appointed as the chairman of CR
Pharmaceutical Commercial in February 2019. Mr. LI currently holds various
internal positions including the chairman of CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical
Co., ltd. (ZEEHEREEZ B R F]) . He also serves as a vice president of
China Association of Pharmaceutical Commerce and a chief supervisor of
Beijing Pharmaceutical Association. Mr. LI was a deputy general manager
of Beijing Pharmaceutical Economic and Technological Management
Company (b 7 B8 ZE4C 7 1 1l 48 & /2 R]) , the general manager of Beijing
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (1t 7 & Z2 % 19 B BR 2 &) (currently known as
CR Pharmaceutical Commercial) and the president of CR Pharmaceutical
Commercial. Mr. LI is a traditional Chinese pharmacist. He obtained an EMBA
degree from University of International Business and Economics in Beijing, the
PRC.
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Mr. QIU Huawei, aged 51, is a director and a president of CR Sanjiu. He used
to be the chairman of Shenzhen San-jiu Pharmaceutical trade Co., Ltd. (%
I =hEEZ FHR2ARF) and a senior vice president of CR Sanjiu.
Mr. QIU holds a bachelor’s degree in genetics and genetic engineering from
Fudan University, is a senior engineer, and concurrently serves as the executive
president of China Non-Prescription Medicines Association ( & Bl 3E & 77 %54
%), a vice president of Chinese Rural Health Association ( 7 B 2T #1417
&) and a vice president of China Association of Traditional Chinese Medicine

(PRI ERE).

Mr. FENG Vi, aged 57, was appointed as the chairman of CR Double-Crane
in December 2018. Mr. FENG has served as a deputy division researcher and
director of the organization bureau, a deputy general manager of human
resource department of CR Holdings, a deputy general manager of China
Resources Snow Breweries (Panjin) Co., Ltd. (B ZEMEE (£5F)F R 2
7)), a deputy general manager of China Resources Land (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
(FEHEEH (L) RPN A R A F]), the chief human resources officer and
senior vice president of CR Bank, a senior vice president of the Company, and a
supervisor of CR Sanjiu and Dong-E-E-Jiao. Mr. FENG obtained an EMBA degree
from Peking University in Beijing, the PRC.
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Mr. QIN Yufeng, aged 61, was appointed as the president of Dong-E-E-Jiao
in September 2011. Currently, Mr. QIN also serves as a delegate of the 13th
National People’s Congress, a director of Dong-E-E-Jiao, an MBA practice
tutor of Communication University of China and a guest professor of Nanjing
University of Chinese Medicine. Mr. QIN has served as an assistant to the
factory manager in Shandong Dong-E-E-Jiao Factory (currently known as
Dong-E-E-Jiao) and a standing vice president of Shandong Dong-E-ElJiao
Co., Ltd. (currently known as Dong-E-E-Jiao). Mr. QIN has 3 international
invention patents and 58 national invention patents. He has presided over
the completion of more than 10 major scientific research and technological
reform projects at the national and provincial level, and has awarded special
government allowances from the State Council. Mr. QIN was awarded titles
of “Representative Inheritors of Dong’e Donkey-Hide Gelatin’s Production
Techniques, a National Intangible Cultural Heritage” ( B R A% 3£ & S0 10 3&
E R BRUERER R IEEAA) ,"National Outstanding Entrepreneur”,
“2015 China Outstanding Quality People”, “Model Worker in Shandong
Province” (11 B2 44 & 18 ) and “Top Ten Outstanding Engineers in Shandong
Province”. He was also awarded prizes like the First Class Prize for Progress
of Science and Technology of Shandong Province ( IR & RIF#EH — =
#%) ,“National May Day Labor Medal” ( 2B R —% 8145 ), “National
Poverty Alleviation Dedication Award” ( 2 BIfii B 2 B2 8 2 5 4%) and
Ishikawa Kano Award (/A )| E-55 87 22) . Mr. QIN obtained the qualification
of engineering technology application researcher in China and he obtained an
EMBA degree from China Europe International Business School in Shanghai,
the PRC.

Mr. WU Jun, aged 56, was appointed as a senior vice president of the Company
in December 2013. Currently, Mr. WU also serves as a director of CR Sanjiu,
a director of Dong-E-E-Jiao, a supervisor of CR Double-Crane. Mr. WU has
been a director and the general manager of China Resources Machinery and
Minmetals (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (Z=E# 4 1iE (£E) R A7), a deputy
general manager in the enterprise development department of CR Holdings,
a director and deputy general manager of CR Investment & Development
Company Limited (Z B &% & B 2 AR 2 7)) , a deputy general manager
in the internal audit department of CR Holdings and a vice president of the
Company. Mr. WU obtained the qualification of senior engineer in China
and he obtained a master’s degree in mechanical engineering from Tianjin
University and an MBA degree from University of San Francisco in San Francisco,
the United States of America.
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Mr. CHEN Hong, aged 58, was appointed as a senior vice president of the
Company in December 2013. Mr. CHEN has been a deputy factory manager
of Beijing Second Pharmaceutical Factory (1t 5125 — R BE ) |, currently
known as China Resources Saike Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (EEEE Rl & %
BREME2AF]), the chairman of Beijing Saike Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (1t
RERBEEFRETAA), currently known as China Resources Saike
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (ZEHER BEZEEFR E LR 7)), a vice general
manager of Beijing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (It R B EEBEERETARF])
and the vice president of the Company. Mr. CHEN was awarded prizes like
“Capital May Day Labor Medal” (& # i — 45 B) 8% ) , “Model Workers in
Beijing” and “National May Day Labor Medal” (2B L — 4 8485 ) . Mr.
CHEN obtained the qualification of assistant engineer in China and he attended
undergraduate class majoring in economic management in the Party School of
Beijing Municipal Committee of the CPC (FR At EH R ER) .

Mr. YIN Huijun, aged 48, was appointed as a senior vice president of the
Company in June 2017. Currently, Mr. YIN also serves as the chairman of
China Pharmaceutical R&D Center Co., Ltd. (7 B8 B R R P LB R
A A1), a deputy secretary-general of Medical and Health sector of All-China
Youth Federation ( # #= 2 B & B 2 225 £ R 51l) , a council member of
China Association of Youth Science and Technology (P B & & R &) ,
a standing member of Special Committee on Cardiovascular under Doctor
Society of Integrative Medicine (R FAE A5 a BRI E LMEEXEZEE),
a Ph.D. tutor of China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences, and a graduate
student tutor of Gansu University of Chinese Medicine. Mr. YIN has served as
the cardiovascular laboratory officer of Xiyuan Hospital under China Academy
of Chinese Medical Sciences (the former China Academy of Traditional Chinese
Medicine), a standing director of Specialty Committee of Cardiovascular
Diseases of World Federation of Chinese Medicine Societies, a vice president
of Affiliated Hospital of Gansu University of Chinese Medicine and the chief of
international cooperation department of China Academy of Chinese Medical
Sciences. Mr. YIN was awarded the “Star of Science and Technology” by
TCM Society and the Second Class Prize for Progress of National Science and
Technology ( IR BHF 3 26 — % 48) . Mr. YIN obtained the qualification of
researcher issued by China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences. Mr. YIN
obtained a doctor’s degree in Chinese internal medicine from Heilongjiang
College of Chinese Medicine (currently known as Heilongjiang University
of Chinese Medicine ( £ 5E)T # % %2 K £) ) in Harbin, the PRC. Mr. YIN
conducted his postdoctoral research in Institute of Genetics and Developmental
Biology, Chinese Academy of Sciences.
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Mr. FANG Ming, aged 60, was appointed as a vice president of the Company in
December 2007. Currently, Mr. FANG also serves as a supervisor of CR Double-
Crane, a supervisor of CR Sanjiu and a supervisor of Dong-E-E-Jiao. Mr. FANG
was an associate researcher at the Institute of Social China Academy of Social
Sciences. Mr. FANG has served as a senior manager of the research department
of CR Holdings, a deputy general manager of the enterprise development
department of CR Holdings, a director and the deputy general manager of
China Resources Development & Investment Company Limited, the executive
manager in charge of listing planning of China Resource National Corporation
(currently known as China Resources Company Limited), a member of the
management board and the general manager of capital operation department
of China Resources National Corporation (currently known as China Resources
Company Limited). Mr. FANG obtained a doctor of law degree in applied
sociology from the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in
Beijing, the PRC.

Mr. MENG Qingsheng, aged 50, was appointed as a vice president of the
Company in October 2016. Mr. MENG has engaged in the Information
Technology (IT) consultancy and management business for over 20 years. Mr.
MENG has extensive experience in areas like corporate IT strategic planning,
system structural design, project management and the training of professional
personnel. Mr. MENG successively held positions in SSA China Co., Ltd.,
Platinum China Co., Ltd. and Oracle China Co., Ltd.. Mr. MENG has also
acted as a deputy director of the Information Management Department of CR
Holdings.

Ms. TANG Na, aged 42, was appointed as the chief legal advisor of the
Company in March 2014. Ms. TANG served as a partner of Concord &
Partners and a director of legal affairs of CR Pharmaceutical Commercial. Ms.
TANG obtained the qualification of PRC lawyer and the corporate counsel
qualification. Ms. TANG obtained a bachelor of law degree from China
University of Political Science and Law in Beijing, the PRC and attended
postgraduate courses majoring in urban economics in the School of Economics
at Renmin University of China in Beijing, the PRC.

Mr. JIN Song, aged 43, was appointed as an assistant president of the Company
in June 2016. Mr. JIN served as a division-level consultant at the State Food and
Drug Administration of the PRC (currently known as the China Food and Drug
Administration of the PRC). Mr. JIN obtained a master’s degree in international
cooperation policy from Ritsumeikan University in Kyoto, Japan.
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Mr. ZHAO Bingxiang, aged 46, was appointed as an assistant president of the
Company and the chairman of China Resources Zizhu Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (ZE BRI ZEZE AR A A]) in September 2016. Mr. ZHAO had served
as a regional sales manager and a marketing officer of San-jiu Pharmaceutical
trade Co., Ltd. (= LB 2 & 5B R A F]) , a deputy general manager of
San-jiu Tongda Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (= JLEZE 2 EFR A F]) , a senior
researcher of the R&D center of CR Sanjiu and a general manager of China
Resources Sanjiu (Ya'an) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (ZESE =1L (H% ) B %
BMRAA]) . Mr. ZHAO has been named as an excellent entrepreneur and
an outstanding entrepreneur in Sichuan province, he has received the State
Scientific and Technological Progress Award — second-class and the Sichuan
Scientific and Technological Progress Award — first-class. Mr. ZHAQO is a
professor-level senior engineer and he holds a master’s degree in Pharmaceutics
awarded by Peking University in Beijing, the PRC.

Mr. TAO Ran, aged 53, was appointed as an assistant president of the
Company in June 2017. Mr. TAO has been a deputy chief of Import Division |
of China Resources National Corporation (currently known as China Resources
Company Limited), a senior manager of Investment Division, a general manager
of Strategy Division and a deputy general manager of China Resources Textiles
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. and a senior director of Strategic Development Division, a
general manager of Strategic Development Division of CR Pharmaceutical. Mr.
TAO holds a bachelor’s degree in engineering awarded by Shanghai Jiao Tong
University in Shanghai and a master’s degree in economics awarded by School
of Economics and Management of Beihang University.

Mr. WU Jianjun, aged 47, was appointed as an assistant president of the
Company in June 2017. Mr. WU had been a vice director of Workshop,
a vice head of Sales Division and a vice head of Foreign Trade Division of
Beijing Hua'er Company Limited (3t Rt Z B3 B BR 2 F]) , an assistant
researcher of Enterprise Reform Office of Beijing Municipal Commission of
Economy and Information Technology (Jt R AAZ (R E KB JE) , a vice
head of Enterprise Reform Office of the Stated-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Beijing, an assistant to the general manager of
Beijing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Jt REB & E B AFR Z (T2 7)), a director
of China Resources Pharmaceutical (Beijing) Industrial Development Co., Ltd.
(FEHEE (b)) EEERE AR A]), asenior director of Production and
Manufacturing Division of CR Pharmaceutical and a general manager of the
Office of CR Pharmaceutical. Mr. WU holds an executive master’s degree in
Business Administration awarded by Tsinghua University in Beijing, the PRC.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in the research and development, manufacturing, distribution
and retail of an extensive range of pharmaceutical and other healthcare
products. Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 104 to 105 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.13 per Share
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$0.11). Such final dividend
will not be subject to any withholding tax in Hong Kong. The final dividend
is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to be
held on 28 May 2019 and the final dividend will be distributed on or about
21 June 2019 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 5 June 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 22 May 2019
to 28 May 2019, both days inclusive, in order to determine the identity of the
Shareholders who are entitled to attend the AGM, during which period no
share transfers will be registered. To be eligible to attend the AGM, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 May 2019.

The register of members of the Company will also be closed on 5 June 2019,
in order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders to receive the final
dividend, during which no share transfers will be registered. To qualify for
the final dividend, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 4 June 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Company'’s business, a discussion and analysis of the Group's
performance during the year, the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group, the material factors underlying its results and financial position, certain
important events occurred since the end of the Reporting Period and the future
development of the Company’s business have been set out in the Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.

The Group shall comply with the relevant provisions governing environmental
protection and appraisal of environmental impact, as well as national
and provincial standards of environmental quality established by various
government authorities. The Group has carried out the relevant environmental
impact assessments and has obtained all the required permits and
environmental approvals for its manufacturing facilities. To ensure compliance
with relevant laws, rules and regulations on pollution control, the Group has
also established waste water treatment and waste management facilities at its
pharmaceutical manufacturing sites.

To the best knowledge and information of the Company, the Group has
complied with the relevant laws, regulations and other applicable requirements
that have a significant impact on the Group during the Reporting Period.

The Group recognizes the importance of good governance to its sustainable
growth and strives to maintain effective communication with its stakeholders,
including its Shareholders, investors, employees, customers and suppliers.

In addition to the above, general information regarding the Group's
performance on environmental and social-related policies, as well as
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group and an account of the Company’s relationships with its key
stakeholders are discussed throughout this annual report. Further details will be
also disclosed in the Company's Corporate Social Responsibility Report 2018 to
be published within three months from the date of this annual report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities for the last five financial
years is set out on page 21 of this annual report. This summary does not form
part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

For details of the use of net proceeds from the Listing, please refer to page 40
of this annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's sales to its five largest
customers accounted for 3.8% (2017: 4.4%) of the Group's total revenue and
our single largest customer accounted for 1.0% (2017: 1.1%) of the Group's
total revenue.

Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group'’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 11.0% (2017: 14.9%) of the Group's total purchases and our
single largest supplier accounted for 3.2% (2017: 7.6%) of the Group's total
purchases.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had any interest in the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
pages 108 to 109.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution,
amounted to approximately HK$951.3 million.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2018 are set out in notes 28, 30 and 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors up to the date of this annual report are:

Chairman and non-executive Director
Mr. FU Yuning (resigned on 21 March 2019)

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. WANG Chuncheng

(appointed as Chairman of the Board on

21 March 2019)

Executive Director and President
Mr. SONG Qing (resigned on 6 August 2018)

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Vice President
Mr. LI Guohui

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Rong

Mr. YU Zhongliang

Mr. WANG Shouye (appointed on 18 May 2018)
Mr. LYU Ruizhi (appointed on 18 May 2018)

Mr. WANG Chenyang (retired on 18 May 2018)
Ms. WANG Jing (resigned on 18 May 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mdm. SHING Mo Han Yvonne

Mr. KWOK Kin Fun

Mr. FU Tingmei

Mr. ZHANG Kejian

In accordance with article 78 of the Articles of Association, Mr. WANG Shouye
and Mr. LYU Ruizhi shall retire from office, and being eligible, have offered

themselves for re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with article 88(1) of the Articles of Association, Mr. WANG
Chuncheng, Mr. LI Guohui and Mr. FU Tingmei shall retire by rotation, and

being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set out in the circular to

the Shareholders dated 23 April 2019.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Company

are set out on pages 67 to 76 of this annual report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be independent
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 and remain so as of the date of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not terminable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or his/her connected entities had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, its parent company or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31
December 2018 and up to the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's operating
results, individual performance of the directors and senior management and
comparable market practices.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, and five highest paid individuals
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the Group are set
out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company had or was deemed to have any interest or short position in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year was
the Company, its parent company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for the equity
or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised
any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
gHORTSPOSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
HARE

As at 31 December 2018, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following
persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:
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Name of Shareholder

REEFAR QA
China Resources Company
Limited™

HEE RO
CRC®

CRC Bluesky Limited™

EHERO
CR Holdings

EHEE(BE)BRAAM
CRH (Pharmaceutical) Limited™

LR EH LD
BSCOMC® 2

I RBEERLREER
BIRAR®

Beijing State-owned Capital
Operation and Management
Center Investment Holdings
Limited®

IREERLREER
BIRAR®

Beijing State-owned Capital
Operation and Management
Center Investment
Management Limited®

50/ REME

Capacity/Nature
of Interest

A E =
Interest in controlled
corporation

A E =
Interest in controlled
corporation

EEtEE R E

Interest in controlled
corporation

A E =
Interest in controlled
corporation

BEBEAA

Beneficial owner

A E =

Interest in controlled
corporation

EEtEE RS

Interest in controlled
corporation

BEBEAA

Beneficial owner

a2z
R & E

Number of
Shares held

3,333,185,612

3,333,185,612

3,333,185,612

3,333,185,612

3,333,185,612

1,296,238,849

1,094,800,000

1,094,800,000

Long/
short position

e
Long position

e
Long position

R

Long position

e
Long position

e
Long position

e
Long position

R

Long position

R

Long position

(=R

IR 2

BABA D
Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding

in the Company
(%)

53.04

53.04

53.04

53.04

53.04

20.63

17.42

17.42
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@ CRH (Pharmaceutical) Limited (“CRH (Pharmaceutical)”) directly held
3,333,185,612 Shares. CRH (Pharmaceutical) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR
Holdings. CR Holdings is a beneficially wholly-owned subsidiary of CRC Bluesky
Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by CRC. CRC is an ultimately beneficially
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Resources Company Limited (formerly known
as China Resources National Corporation). By virtue of the SFO, each of China
Resources Company Limited, CRC, CRC Bluesky Limited and CR Holdings is
deemed to have an interest in the Shares held by CRH (Pharmaceutical).

@ By virtue of the SFO, BSCOMC is deemed to have an interest in the 201,438,849
Shares held by Beijjing Equity Investment Development Fund (Cayman ll) L.R, an
exempted limited partnership registered in the Cayman Islands, by reason of a
series of funds and corporate structures. Each of which, individually, is interested
in less than 5% in the voting Shares.

& Bejjing State-owned Capital Operation and Management Center Investment
Management Limited (“BSCOMC Investment Management ", formerly known
as Bejjing Pharmaceutical Investment Limited) directly held 1,094,800,000 Shares.
BSCOMC Investment Management is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bejjing State-
owned Capital Operation and Management Center Investment Holdings Limited
(“BSCOMC Investment Holdings ", formerly known as Bejjing Pharmaceutical
Holdlings Limited), which is in turn wholly owned by BSCOMC. By virtue of the
SFO, each of BSCOMC and BSCOMC Investment Holdings is deemed to have an
interest in the Shares held by BSCOMC Investment Management.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors were not aware
of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 12 December 2017 (the
“Share Option Scheme”). No share option was granted under the Share
Option Scheme since adoption.

A summary of the Share Option Scheme are set out below:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to effectively retain
and attract exceptional talents through a further optimized
remuneration structure, align the interests of the employees and
Shareholders, and effectively motivate both the management team
and key employees, thereby fostering the long-term development of
the Company and maximizing the interests of the Shareholders.

There are 199 incentive targets under the Share Option Scheme,
who are the Directors (excluding non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), senior management
(including general managers, deputy general managers, heads of
the finance department and those personnel with such functions,
board secretaries and other senior management pursuant to
the Articles of Association), and other key employees whose
management and technical skills may have a direct impact on the
results of operation and strategic development of the Group.

The total number of new Shares that may be issued upon exercise
of the share options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and
all other schemes of the Company (if any) shall not, in aggregate,
exceed 628,450,646 Shares, representing 10% of the Company’s
total issued shares as at the date on which the resolution approving
the Share Option Scheme is passed at the extraordinary general
meeting.

The Company may seek approval from the Shareholders at a general
meeting of the Company to grant share options exceeding the
above 10% limit, provided that share options in excess of such limit
are granted to those incentive targets specifically identified by the
Company before such approval is obtained.

The total number of new Shares that may be issued in relation to
the first grant of the share options to the incentive targets under the
Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the Company’s total
issued Shares.
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Unless approved by the Shareholders in the general meeting of
the Company, the total number of Shares which are issued and
will be issued upon exercise of the share options (including both
exercised and outstanding Share options) granted to any one of
the incentive targets under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company within any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the total issued Shares from time to time.
Where further grant of share options to an incentive target would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted and to be granted to such incentive target
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of such further
grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the total issued Shares,
such further grant must be separately approved by the Shareholders
in general meeting of the Company with such incentive target and
his/her close associates (or his/her associates if such incentive target
is a connected person) abstaining from voting, and in such case,
the Company will send a circular to the Shareholders disclosing all
relevant information necessary under the Listing Rules.

The limit on the number of securities which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and other schemes (if any) shall not
exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the Company in
issue from time to time, and no share option may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company if
this will result in this limit being exceeded.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid for ten (10) years from its
effective date, unless otherwise terminated pursuant to the terms
therein.

The incentive targets under each grant of the Share Option Scheme
may only exercise the share options two (2) years after the grant
date.

Once the conditions to the exercise are satisfied after the two-
year restriction period commencing from the grant date, the share
options may be exercised by three (3) years thereafter with the
proportion of 30%, 30% and 40% of the share options in each
year.
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The exercise price of the share options under the Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board, but shall not be less than the highest
of the followings:

(i) the closing price of the Shares on the grant date (which must be
a trading day) as stated on the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheet; and

(i) the average closing price of the Shares for the five (5) trading
days immediately preceding the grant date as stated on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the grant date.

The incentive targets, subject to the fulfillment of the relevant conditions
and within the relevant exercise period, may apply with the Company in
respect of the exercise of the share options granted to him/her and shall
pay the relevant subscription amount within 28 days.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company have entered into a non—
competition agreement (the “Non-competition Agreement”) with CR
Holdings on 14 September 2016.

According to the Non-competition Agreement, during the year of 2018,
given that the Company had received a written notice from CR Holdings
on its intention to invest in Wang Qi’s Chinese medicine program and due
to the limited synergy effect expected to be created between the program
and existing businesses of CR Pharmaceutical, CR Pharmaceutical therefore
issued a written reply to CR Holdings in accordance with the Non-competition
Agreement indicating that it will not participate in this investment project. In
addition, during the year of 2018, the Company had also received a written
notice from CR Holdings on its intention to invest in aerospace biological
projects. As aerospace biological projects are still at an exploration and early
stage, the prospects are still unclear, and the aerospace breeding business does
not fall within CR Pharmaceutical’s principal business scope, CR Pharmaceutical
therefore issued a written reply to CR Holdings in accordance with the Non-
competition Agreement indicating that it will not participate in this investment
project.
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The independent non-executive Directors have conducted a review of the
compliance with the Non-competition Agreement by the Company and CR
Holdings in respect of year 2018, including but not limited to the review of
the Non-Competition Agreement and internal confirmations by the Company
and CR Holdings. Having made all reasonable enquiries, save as disclosed
above, nothing has come to the attention of the independent non-executive
Directors that, except for the Retained Business (as defined in the Prospectus),
CR Holdings has engaged in, participated in or assisted others to engage or
participate in, or procure its subsidiaries (other than the Group) to engage in,
participate in or assist others to engage in, any business that competes or is
likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with our business within the PRC during
year 2018.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in
any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 7 May 2018, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings entered into a loan agreement
with CR Leasing in respect of a loan in the maximum facility amount of HK$3
billion with annual interest rate to be determined based on the applicable

CEHITERGE AE—F market rate offered by the People’s Bank of China for a term of one year.
REBE—E=—N\E+-fA= + EI FeEE R The Group has entered into the following continuing connected transactions
KEEE nTiT Bl % 45 B during the year ended 31 December 2018:
\ - LHRANES —%- )&
BEHERS BRZBEAL g WEE LR R5EH
Annual cap Transaction
Continuing Connected Connected Parties permitted under amount
Transactions involved Nature the Listing Rules in 2018
BEET BEAT
HK$million HK$million
RBERBE (HH1) ERRE MR RERRE 1525 1.5
Procurement Framework CR Holdings Procurement of supplies and products
Agreement (Note 1)
RBERGE (1) EREE R RE 280 200
Procurement Framework CR Holdings Procurement of services
Agreement (Note 1)
BRAERE (H72) EBRT BRRERRTEASERALE (RERKNE) 2,818.0 2,205.0
Strategic Cooperation (R Bank Maximum daily deposit amount placed with CR Bank
Agreement (Note 2) (inclusive of interest receivable)
B AFRE (HH2) ERRM EERIRTRENESRERNEARR 16910 8172
AERERMA
Strategic Cooperation (R Bank Maximum daily principal amount and interest in relation
Agreement (Note 2) to financial products to be provided by CR Bank
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BEHERS BRZBEAL *E WEE LR Ra¢H
Annual cap Transaction
Continuing Connected Connected Parties permitted under amount
Transactions involved Nature the Listing Rules in 2018
BEAT BEAT
HK$million HK$million
BRAERE (H72) EBRT EFRTRNATREDEDERERRRES 169.0 373
BRRBEALAL
Strategic Cooperation (R Bank Maximum service fees and commissions for other
Agreement (Note 2) financial products and services to be provided
by CR Bank
BRATERE (H72) EBER ERERRTREMERERNERRS 3380 &
AERERMA Nil
Strategic Cooperation CR Trust Maximum daily principal amount and interest in relation
Agreement (Note 2) to financial products to be provided by CR Trust
BRAERE (HH2) EHER ERERAREMNAMSRERRRBEH 79.0 11
ERRBERRAS
Strategic Cooperation (R Trust Maximum services fees and commissions for other
Agreement (Note 2) financial products and services to be provided by
CR Trust
EmRAFRR EHRARRF “E-N\E
BEBERS PReBEAL HE REELR SEUNEELR RFEH
Original annual cap Revised annual cap Transaction
Continuing Connected Connected Parties permitted under  permitted under amount
Transactions involved Nature the Listing Rules the Listing Rules in 2018
BEAT BEET BEAT
HK$million HK$million HK$million
BRAERS (H3) ERHE REEREERTRENESR 79.0 309.1 712
RERERNRSREER
S Yika
Strategic Cooperation (R Leasing Maximum service fees and
Agreement (Note 3) commissions for the financial
services and products to be
provided by CR Leasing
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PReBEAL

Connected Parties

Transactions involved
HEERRE (W) EBRR
Sales Framework CR Health

Agreement (Note 4)

31

Nature

HEBRREEER RN

EHRARAR -\E
WEELR R5EH
Annual cap Transaction

permitted under amount

the Listing Rules in 2018

BEAT BEBT
HK$million HK $million
1,465.0 781.5

Sales of medical and pharmaceutical products
and consumables
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Notes:

The Company has entered into a procurement framework agreement with CR
Holdings on 30 October 2017 (the “Procurement Framework Agreement
2017"), pursuant to which the Group may from time to time purchase from CR
Holdings and its subsidiaries various types of supplies and products (including
raw materials, ingredients, apparel and software products, but excluding the
procurement of utilities by the Group from CR Holdings and its subsidiaries in
the Group's ordinary and usual course of business) as well as services (including
logistics services, company secretarial services and services of an integrated
e-commerce and internet based service platform, but excluding IT technical
support services, property leasing services, and construction, decoration and
furniture services which are covered by separate agreements entered into between
CR Holdings and the Company) in support of our business. The Procurement
Framework Agreement 2017 has a term commencing from 30 October 2017
until 31 December 2018, subject to renewal by mutual consent and negotiation
between the parties. On 27 December 2018, the Company has renewed the
Procurement Framework Agreement 2017 and entered into the procurement
framework agreement with CR Holdings for a term from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2020.

The Company has entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with CR Bank
on 12 May 2017 (the “CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2017 "),
pursuant to which the Group may place deposits with CR Bank and use other
financial services and products of CR Bank, including (but not limited to) the
provision of letters of credit, guarantee, loans with collaterals, bill of exchange
and discount services, assignment of receivables, RMB and foreign exchange
settlement, entrusted loans and collaterals, financial and cash management
services, financial advisory services and other financial services and products as
agreed by the parties. The CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2017 has
a term commencing from 20 May 2017 until 31 December 2018, subject to
renewal by the parties. On 27 December 2018, the Company has renewed the
CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2017 and entered into the strategic
cooperation agreement with CR Bank for a term from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2020.
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The Company has entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with CR Trust
on 12 May 2017 (the “CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2017 "),
pursuant to which the Group may use the services and products provided by
CR Trust, including (but not limited to) cash management, asset management,
custodian trust loan services, assignment of receivables, advisory services in
relation to redemptory monetary capital for sale, and other financial or trust
services and products as agreed by the parties. The CR Trust Strategic Cooperation
Agreement 2017 has a term commencing from 20 May 2017 until 31 December
2018, subject to renewal by the parties. On 27 December 2018, the Company has
renewed the CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2017 and entered into
the strategic cooperation agreement with CR Trust for a term from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2020.

The Company has entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with CR
Leasing on 12 May 2017 (the “CR Leasing Strategic Cooperation Agreement
2017°"), pursuant to which the Group may use the financial services and products
provided by CR Leasing, including (but not limited to) financial leasing, leasing and
the related consultancy and guarantee services, and factoring in relation to the
Group’s principal businesses. The CR Leasing Strategic Cooperation Agreement
2017 has a term commencing from 20 May 2017 until 31 December 2018,
subject to renewal by the parties.

The Company has entered into a supplemental agreement in relation to the CR
Leasing Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2017 with CR Leasing on 7 May 2018,
pursuant to which the term of the CR Leasing Strategic Cooperation Agreement
2017 has been extended from 31 December 2018 to 31 December 2019, subject
to renewal by the parties, and the original annual cap for the financial services and
products to be provided by CR leasing for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
revised.

The Company has entered into the a sales framework agreement with CR Health
on 12 May 2017 (the “Sales Framework Agreement 2017 "), pursuant to
which the Group may from time to time supply medical and pharmaceutical
products and consumables, including prescription medicines and over-the-counter
(OTC) drugs to CR Health, its associates and/or the hospitals that are managed
by CR Health and/or its associates. The Sales Framework Agreement 2017 has a
term commencing from 12 May 2017 until 31 December 2018. On 31 December
2018, the Company has renewed the Sales Framework Agreement 2017 and
entered into the sales framework agreement with CR Health for a term from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2020.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the auditor
of Company to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
" Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
his unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 88 to 91
of the Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in Note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted as connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and in
compliance with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year, the Company had no
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions which fell to be
disclosed in accordance with the provisions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in relation to the disclosure of connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the charitable and other donations made by the
Group amounted to HK$38,115,000.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of directors who have served on the board of the subsidiaries of the
Company during the year and up to the date of this annual report is available
on the Company's website at www.crpharm.com under “Investor Relations —
Corporate Governance”.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities (including any such liability as mentioned in Section
468(4) of the Companies Ordinance) which he/she may sustain or incur in the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto, and
no Director or other officer shall be liable for any loss, damages or misfortune
which may happen to or be incurred by the Company in the execution of the
duties of his/her office or in relation thereto, provided that this article shall only
have effect in so far as it is not invalidated by the Companies Ordinance.

So far as may be permitted by the Companies Ordinance, if any Director
or other person shall become personally liable for the payment of any sum
primarily due from the Company, the Board may execute or cause to be
executed any mortgage, charge, or security over or affecting the whole or any
part of the assets of the Company by way of indemnity to secure the Director or
person so becoming liable as aforesaid from any loss in respect of such liability.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated
with defending any proceedings which may be brought against the directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The events after the Reporting Period are disclosed in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had, together with the management and external
auditor of the Company, reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 41 to 66 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued Shares, the
prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved by the Stock
Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules, was held by the public at all
times during the Reporting Period and as of the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year have been audited by
Ernst & Young. A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming AGM to re-
appoint Ernst & Young as independent auditor of the Company.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retired as the independent auditor of the Company
with effect from the close of the AGM held on 18 May 2018. The appointment
of Ernst & Young as the new independent auditor of the Company following
the retirement of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was approved by Shareholders at
the same meeting.

On behalf of the Board
WANG Chuncheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2019
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To the members of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Resources
Pharmaceutical Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 104 to 288, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Audiitor’s responsibilities
for the audlit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful lives

ABHRIEHFRHHEERBZRE

Goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful lives
as at 31 December 2018 were HK$19,805 million
and HK$1,322 million, respectively. The impairment
tests performed by management regarding various
cash-generating units ("CGUs") involved significant
judgement for the determination of the value in use
of the CGUs.

RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—RH BEBERAIEHA
FHNEENRERS A AE19,8058 BT KB
¥132288T - BEERTRBRSELSEM ([3]
TEABRN]ETETReELEMUFEREEN
BRI K B K 1 -

This is a key audit matter due to the magnitude,
the complexity, and the management’s estimates
involved in the impairment testing. The accounting
policies and related disclosures are included in note
2.4, 3, 17 and 18 to the financial statements.
ENRERBE LRE  EMIEE NEEER
L hRARES FE - SR AR ES
R mRMIEE2.4 -3 17518

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful lives included, but were not limited to:
BFIEMARERAIEAFHNHERERAREN GEFEIEENR
Ik

- Considered the reasonableness of the determination of the CGUSs;

- ERETRcELABMMNAENE:

- Evaluated the models used in determining the value in use of the CGUs;

- HMEARETRcELBEUEMREEMNER:

- Compared the cash flow forecasts to approved budgets, the historical
operating results and other relevant market and economic information
to ensure the reasonableness of the cash flow forecasts, as well as tested
the underlying calculations;

- BREAEV|AELEAETRE BELEXEERHEMBBATSM
RBEESETHL URARRESRER|ANSIEN  WinEHET

sl

- Reviewed the reasonableness of key assumptions used in the impairment
testing models and sensitivity analysis performed; and

- FBLEERENARUMGBRES T AMARERERNEENE: &

- Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures of impairment
assessment in the consolidated financial statements.

-  FHEREMBHRPRENERENEE M-

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2018 97

q



i

LIz 2N &5
Independent Auditor’s Report

AR ETEE (F)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Control over Dong-E-E-Jiao Company Limited (“Dong-E-E-Jiao”)

HRFBR G ERA & ([RAAFE) #9725 %

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company assessed
the Group's practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of Dong-E-E-Jiao, an investee of the Group,
unilaterally by considering the Group's absolute size
of holding in Dong-E-E-Jiao and the relative size of
and dispersion of the shareholdings owned by the
other shareholders and the practical right to appoint
the majority members of the board of directors of
Dong-E-E-Jiao.

BANER S MR MA3FTIKRE . BARESR
BBER SR R R R 48 S A4 K B A
PR FrFs A AR T IR AE S D B E - AR
ZERMMBESESABOKXENERES - A
iy EEEERETmEEEREHREMMN
BAERRE B B AL

This is a key audit matter due to the significant
judgement associated with management’s
assessment of control over Dong-E-E-Jiao.

AP B IR B R P B i R B P S )
BRHE - I EREAFE
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Our procedures in relation to the assessment of control over Dong-E-E-Jiao
included, but were not limited to:

T B R B B H R AR 2 2 B R A TR

- Reviewed the basis of management’s assessment of control against the
requirements of relevant accounting standards;

- DAHEEFHERIM ESRR B IR R L R e 2 B

- Assessed the impact of the Group's absolute size of equity interest
held with reference to the percentage of equity interest in Dong-E-E-
Jiao owned by the Group, the voting rights of the Group conferred by
the statutory documents of Dong-E-E-Jiao, and other evidence such as
composition of the board of directors, resolutions of the shareholders’
and board of directors’ meetings of Dong-E-E-Jiao; and

= ER EEEEARMMBORER S RN BEAEXH R
HhZR (R BERGEK RRRBRRLEFTSGR AR
R)BET ESENKRER Ut EEEFANRERENT
2h: Rk

- Assessed the impact of the relative size of the equity interest held by
other shareholders and its extent of dispersion with reference to the
number of the other shareholders, the percentage of equity interest and
voting rights held by the other shareholders.

- EPREAMBRAOPTEIE - FTERRE B o L R EHIRERE - ART
H R RRENTENARE S BIEE -
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Expected credit losses of trade receivables

B S RWHBEREEER

The gross balance of trade receivables as at 31
December 2018 amounted to HK$44,797 million,
against which allowance for expected credit losses
of HK$436 million was provided. The Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating expected credit
losses and has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.
RZZB-N\F+ZA=+—R BZREFIEN
RBERRBE4A797TBE T SR FTEHEMN TR
HEEBRREBAAEKBEETL. BESH
RAMBETEAERREERE BENEBHE
EEBBRLREY T REER  WERBEB AR
ERRTIEEREMEBERIBETHE -

This is a key audit matter due to the magnitude,
the complexity, and the management’s estimates
involved in the impairment testing. The accounting
policies and related disclosures are included in
note 2.4, 3 and 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.
ERRERBITS KRE  EMEE NEEE R
L THRARES FE - SR AR ES
RER A MR MEE2.4 - 3525

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Our audit procedures included, but were not limited to:

BPMEEFBEENRR:

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls over the
assessment of expected credit losses on trade receivables.

Al EEEAMEGIEEETEE S RRFIATR A EEEEN
B

Assessed whether the Group’s accounting policy for recognising
expected credit losses for trade receivables was in compliance with the
corresponding accounting standards;

il EEEHERESERRFEREREEEENSTRREET
AEESER:

Assessed appropriateness of the approach and the models used to
calculate expected credit losses on trade receivables;
AHERARFEE S RKRFATRREEFEN AR NEE T

Tested the ageing of trade receivables balances by tracing of selected
samples to supporting documents;
BIBERETEANBAIEXMN R E 5 RKFIRERDER
B

Reviewed the Group's historical credit loss experience;
L EEENBREIEEBELR:

Assessed the reasonableness of the assumptions used in the models as
well as tested the underlying calculation; and

A AR P ARSI WA E R

Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures on the trade receivables
in the consolidated financial statements.

AHERAMBRRTE S RUGARBENEE £ -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.
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BB ARSI BIRKAE  AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

WEE (&) THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
. N EEEMREACHBENBRE L REL . Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
FEHAETAEEEEN S E M reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

. HEEHARESCK ST EMMNMBEMEIE o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going

HEm - BIBEFMERNBESEE EE2 concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
BFEEZENEAEENERTEE whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
Ml geE Y SEEMEELE that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
ENEEERARE NRHEMRABAEGTEE a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
AT AN EEZEENRS PR are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
EEREIEGRAU RPN B disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
BoBREAENBENT B ES % are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
RFBREBER -BMONEREERNZH audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
ik B IEFTEVS B BE AR & future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
REBENIERATEES BEEBTRISE a going concern.

. T ESEAVERRNBENRIX EF Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the

MAR BEFEE UL RER consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
BRARRBEBTZMEIE- whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o o SEBANTRNEKTTNNEEE e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial

EERZTT BENFETES UHEGEEY information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
KHRxEXRER -RfAaE EEEE: express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
B EEMBIT R AR E RA responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
E2EEE- audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Wu Ka Lai Cary.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

HEZT—\F+-A=+—HILFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

®

2018 2017
B3 BT T BET T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Wz REVENUE 5 189,689,107 172,532,204
SHE KA Cost of sales (154,758,728)  (144,256,056)
EF GROSS PROFIT 34,930,379 28,276,148
Hapig A Other income 1,854,650 1,417,493
Hh e K &5 18 Other gains and losses 6 3,357 (32,486)
SHE M HAY Selling and distribution expenses (18,340,880) (13,868,785)
ITBHE Administrative expenses (4,793,429) (4,247,079)
Hak Other expenses (1,351,850) (872,789)
& R AR Finance costs 8 (3,196,631) (2,230,949)
DMEBE AR RASMERF]  Share of profits of associates and
joint ventures 137,168 140,795
B B4 A e PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 9,242,764 8,582,348
FriSfiFA X Income tax expense 11 (1,610,153) (1,715,482)
FE R F| PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 7,632,611 6,866,866
JEAf Attributable to:
KABEAEA Owners of the Company 4,037,890 3,483,036
FEFERR Non-controlling interests 3,594,721 3,383,830
7,632,611 6,866,366
ARB)EREERTEA EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
G ZRR AT ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 13
HEARR#E (B T) Basic and diluted (HK$) 0.64 0.55
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Consolidated Statement Of Comprehensive Income

BE-F—\F+-A=+—AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FREN PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 7,632,611 6,866,866
Hih2m (F518) e OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)INCOME
HE BRI AR EFT 5 B E 1B 7 Y Other comprehensive (loss)/income that
A 2m (EE) W - may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
DIEEE R RIE R FHENE Share of changes in translation reserve of
associates (39,094) 40,297
BREBIINEBEEANERLEZR Exchange differences arising on translation of
foreign operations (3,096,384) -
HizHiRn e EF D ERBER Net other comprehensive (lossyincome that
Hih2m (F518) W FRE may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods (3,135,478) 40,297
TEREEPHEF 7EZ B i Other comprehensive (loss)/income that
A 2m (EE) W - will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
BRERERERELNERZR Exchange differences arising on
translation to presentation currency (713,390) 4,236,619
REREHEMERSEYWE -BE  Gain on revaluation of property, plant and
KR e Mas - HBRTHIR equipment upon transfer to investment
properties, net of tax 30,924 21,036
REZBBEETEEFHIEEIBEEA  Net other comprehensive (lossyincome that
Hih2m (F518) W FRE will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods (682,466) 4,257,655
Hith2m (F18) Wa - HRBIE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)INCOME
NET OF TAX (3,817,944) 4,297,952
FRNEEBRRTE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 3,814,667 11,164,818
FEAL Attributable to:
ZN/NIEZEWN Owners of the Company 1,564,914 6,101,600
FEE R e e Non-controlling interests 2,249,753 5,063,218
3,814,667 11,164,818

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2018 105

1



RO AT &

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZE—N\E+-A=+—H Asat31 December 2018

2018 2017
B3 BT T BT T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
IRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y% BB MR E Property, plant and equipment 14 14,652,228 14,737,651
TEfS LT ERIA Prepaid land lease payments 16 2,590,622 2,673,260
BB Investment properties 15 1,541,437 1,413,085
GES Goodwill 17 19,804,854 20,544,612
mEEE Intangible assets 18 4,954,664 4,740,460
RNE &R ENER Interests in joint ventures 19 44,290 =
REEE RN RIA R Interests in associates 20 2,233,808 2,200,770
AHHEERE Available-for-sale investments 21 = 334,472
HiIEmeemEE Other non-current financial assets 22 222,673 =
BLEIREE Deferred tax assets 32 621,419 573,516
HEMIERBEE Other non-current assets 23 1,218,427 337,799
JEMENE ELREE Total non-current assets 47,884,422 47,555,625
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 24 21,527,923 21,406,298
B 5 & H b FEWRIE Trade and other receivables 25 54,847,015 67,127,969
TEfT b EFRIA Prepaid land lease payments 16 123,128 76,300
HmREemEE Other current financial assets 22 28,023,549 =
AHHEERE Available-for-sale investments 21 = 6,556,642
JE K BA B 5 SR IE Amounts due from related parties 43 2,402,557 115,364
A Y B F 18 Tax recoverable 57,895 40,572
EHERER Pledged deposits 26 3,428,676 2,566,981
RERBLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 26 16,633,301 14,161,833
127,044,044 112,051,959
DEABIERENEE Assets classified as held for sale 36 1,316,021 1,146,564
MEVEELRTE Total current assets 128,360,065 113,198,523
BEIN=NE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B 5 N E b FRIE Trade and other payables 27 56,198,259 56,495,692
HHRE S Short-term debentures 28 3,423,868 —
AHAa’E Contract liabilities 29 1,711,938 =
JE A< B HE: 5 5B Amounts due to related parties 43 4,057,107 1,247,636
HRITIER Bank borrowings 30 37,362,593 31,158,736
e ESH Bonds payable 31 = 2,272,782
FERFHIR Tax payable 603,263 559,549
103,357,028 91,734,395
HAMARKIEHERE Liabilities directly associated with
BEREENEE the assets classified as held for sale 36 1,341 =
MEV A BT Total current liabilities 103,358,369 91,734,395
RBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 25,001,696 21,464,128
REERABARG TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 72,886,118 69,019,753
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-Z—)\F+=-H=+—H Asat31 December 2018

2018 2017
HisE BET T BT T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

FEREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

SRITIER Bank borrowings 30 3,301,928 1,051,052

FEfHES Bonds payable 31 6,847,740 2,392,600

BEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 32 881,272 964,443

Hu3EnsasE Other non-current liabilities 33 1,326,119 1,474,488

FERBAEGEER Total non-current liabilities 12,357,059 5,882,583

EEFE NET ASSETS 60,529,059 63,137,170

S EQUITY

RAREE AELER Equity attributable to owners of

the Company
RN Share capital 34 27,241,289 27,241,289
(et Reserves 12,132,020 14,628,510
39,373,309 41,869,799
JEVER Non-controlling interests 35 21,155,750 21,267,371
R TOTAL EQUITY 60,529,059 63,137,170

WANG CHUNCHENG

FEE
LI GUOHUI
EF

Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZT—\F+-A=+—HILFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

ADAREAEL
Attributable to owners of the Company

R& BAfE  IERHER oftfE  UEERRE  EXRIEE REEAH £ FihEs L5
Statutory Property Exchange Non-
Share Capital surplus Merger revaluation fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* eamings* Total interests equity
BT BETT BT BRI BETR AT BT U BT BT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Kztd) (HfzEb) (Bke)
(Note d) (Note b) (Note ¢)
RZE-tF+ZAZ+-B  Asat31 December 2017 21,.201.289 (4812.238) 150,883 (513,534) 195321 957,521 18,650,557 41,869,799 2126731 63,137,170
RS RREEN Fifectof adoption of HKFRS 9 fMote 22)

RN (M) - - - - - - (143017) (143,017) 1,940 (141,0m)
RZF-N\VE—A—R (EEF) Asat 1 January 2018 restated) 27,241,289 (4812,39) 150,883 (513,534) 195321 957,521 18,507,540 4,126,782 21269311 62,996,093
i?\] bl Profit forthe year - - - - - - 403789 4,037,890 350,71 7632611
FREM2ERE/ (BB):  Othercomprehensive ncomefloss)

forthe year:
HERSRERMBIERES  Bchange diferences ariing on ranlatin tolof
HERZE presentation currency and foreign operatons - - - - - (2,464,806) - (2,464,806) (1,344,968) (3,809,774)
AEBELTERERNED  Share of hanges n tensation
resenve of assodiates - - - - - (39,094) - (39,09) - (39,094)
ERERENERERNE.  Ganon revauation of property plant and
FERAEORE TREE  equipment, upon tansle to investment
propertis, net of tax - - - - 30,924 - - 30,924 - 30,924
FREENREE Total comprehensive incore for the year - - - - 30924 (2,503,900) 4037890 1,564914 29,753 3,814,667
FERRRE Capital controution from non-<ontrling
shareholders - - - - - - - - 186,611 186,611
WENBLAA Hi7) Acquistons of subsidiaries ote 37) = S = = = S = = 94,636 94636
Wi kg Acquistons of non-contoling interests** - (1,667,611) - - - - - (1,667,611) (1,376,084) (3,043,655)
EE-E-tERDHRE 2017 final dividend dedlared ot 12)
(#&n) = = = = = - (691,207) (691,207) - (691,297)
BfAIRE (Fr) Specel dhidend paid (Mot 17 - - - - - - (15941 (1559479) - (15594m)
WAERBRERRS Dhidend decered to
non- controling sharefolders - - - - - - - - (12268517) (1,208517)
RIE-NEFZAZT-8  At31 December 2018 21,.201.289 (6,479,849) 150,883 (513,534) 226,245 (1,546,379) 20,294,654 39373309 21,155,750 60,529,059
* BEREROIEGEIBRAEXANZEERH  * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$12,132,020,000
#E#12,132,020,000T (= F —+ F B (2017: HK$14,628,510,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
14,628,510,0007T) °
* %k * K

BE—F—NFT_A=1T—HIFE F&

W B R B H R A /:75’557/49%&%
FEEXFELEFR L FIFII30% 1  EBELE
(IR BEHH R 2 AIFEII4.35% R - E B L85
FIR# (BR) FHIR 2 AIFESIMO0% AR 1E K R By
BRI BRG] ([RAAE)BEIM.47 %A

108 201854% zErssEsRAR

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group acquired additional 49 %
equity interests in China Resources Hunan Shuangzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.,
additional 30% equity interests in China Resources Tianjin Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd, additional 44.35% equity interests in China Resources Purenhong (Beijing)
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd, additional 40% equity interests in China Resources
Double-Crane Limin Pharmaceutical (Jinan) Co., Ltd., and additional 1.47% equity
interests in Dong-E-E-Jiao Company Limited (“Dong-E-E-Jiao”).
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-Z—-\F+-A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018
Statutory Exchange Non-
Captal surplus Merger fuctuation Retained conroling Total
(apita Teserve* reserve* Teserve* reserve* eamings* Tota nterests equity
BT BT BETT BETT BT BETT BETT BETT HETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Bikd) (Hitb) (M)
(Note ) (Note b) (Note )
W_E-t£-f-8 Asat 1 January 2017 27,241,289 (4,194,046) 142315 (513534) 174,285 (1,640,007) 16410043 37,620,345 16,681,509 54301854
ER Poitfor theyear - - - - - CuBBE 3@0% 3B 6865
EREpRENE: Other comprehensive Income for he year:
AEBERAEZEENEY  Share of changesin trensltion eserve of
500iates - - - - - 789 - 7892 32405 40297
BERSHELELNEREZE bchange diferences arsing on ransaton to
presentation currency - - - - - 2,589,636 - 2,589,636 1,646,983 4236619
SHERANFHEESNE.  Revaluation gan on property, plant and
BERGERNNE META  equpment upon transfer to investment
properties, et of tax - - - - 21,036 - - 21,036 - 1,03
FRRANGSE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 21,036 2597528 348303 6,101,600 5063218 11,164,818
WENBAT Acquiston of subscris 5 S = 5 5 S = 5 813 3132
Wk ilhiEs (i) Acquitions ofnon-contrling
nterests ote ) - 675,501) - - - - - (675,501) (208860) (884361)
BIELE-ZHERAEE  Deemed disposal o interest in a subsciary - 57309 = = = S = 57309 M6 W90
SE-F-ERERE 2016 inaldividend declared (ot 12)

(W) S S & S S = (565,606) (565,606) S (565,606)
BfRARE Specildiidend paid - - - - - - (663,348) (668348) S (663,348)
FERREE Capttal contrbution fiom

non-contraling shareholders - - - - - - - - 40250 40250
WAERBRERRS Didends dedared to
non- controling sharefolders - - - - - - - - (904,4%9) (904,499)
B3 Appropriaton = = 8568 = = = (8568) = = =
RZF-tFTZAZ+-R  At3! December 2017 27,241,289 (4812.239) 150,883 (513534) 195321 957521 18,650,557 41869799 2126731 63137170
Mita #E=F—+tF+=A=+—HIFFE FFE Notea. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired additional
Wefg R fEE1.99% KE Mg 77 © 1.99% interest in Dong-E-E-Jiao.
Hiith. EUEHER-F—NF—AMATHKKER  Noteb. Merger reserve represents the amount of issued capital and premium of the
BHE [ EWREERYE F TR R mBE5E - entities acquired under group reorganisations completed on 4 January 2016.
Miitc YXEEBEFHEYE BERZHEERZIREY  Notec  Property revaluation reserve represents the gain on revaluation of the property,
FEFHE G Ww - IR E o plant and equipment upon transfer to investment properties, net of tax.
Wiitd EXfEHFEEDIEEREmHE2ELY Noted.  Capital reserve mainly represents (1) the difference between the amounts

FENTE 1 AJESMERS IR B A B B2 BT
B RQEHZEZTEEFRANB LR
F—AFEHELRRR L EEM302,758000
i o

by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid to acquire the additional interest in subsidiaries and (2) a
shareholder’s contribution of HK$302, 758,000 resulted from the combination

of China Resources Pharmaceutical Retail Group and it subsidiaries in 2015.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZT—\F+-A=+—HILFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
fiysE BETT BETT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
RETHMERERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BB AR R Profit before tax 9,242,764 8,582,348
AT EIERE Adjustments for:
RERAR Finance costs 8 3,196,631 2,230,949
DL DA REECEEH Share of profits of associates and joint ventures 4 (137,168) (140,795)
FISWA Interest income 7 (716,102) (253,959)
LSU N Dividend income 7 (2,216) 6,618)
AHRHERENRERA Investment income on available-for-sale investments 6 = (154,070)
HENE BERXEEENER Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment 6 7,048 7,540
HEEFEENNE Gain on disposal of intangible assets 6 (18,037) (10,746)
HETHLEREN KR Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments 6 = (7,701)
HEBE AR KR Gain on disposal of associates 6 (550) B)
HERM L EREN KR Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease payments 6 - (1,321)
TEQ/LFTEDU\TE S EREBEN Fair value changes of financial assets at fair value
AREEE through profit or loss 6 (88,167) =
nE- BERSEOTE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 7 1,311,302 1,262,790
REMEANBEZD Fair value changes of investment properties 6 (81,354) (57,772)
EVEERH Amortisation of intangible assets 7 206,101 226,615
BN T EFAE Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 7 99,065 76,300
HESEKTIRFERRNAESE Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables, net 6 91,224 66,507
SEMERTIRFERRAAESE Impairment loss recognised on other receivables, net 6 8,270 12,486
WYE - BEREBERBRRN Impairment loss recognised on items of property,
mEER plant and equipment 6 22,545 14,094
HRERRNAEER Impairment loss recognised on goodwil 6 20,109 59,244
RAREERERRNAEEE Impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale
investments 6 - 10,919
T8 Government grants 33 (90,010) (105,503)
BEEREFERNEE Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete inventories 4 44,359 36,564
13,115,814 11,847,868
BEERL/ (M) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 29,484 (746,254)
B 5 KAt U Increase in trade and other receivables (3,370,677) (4,514,253)
FE UK BEE 7 3R0E (380),/ D (Increase)/decrease in amounts due from related parties (257,095) 82,79
HiIERE EE}E& >/ (#10) Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets 17,462 (23,363)
”’% REAREMSTE CRd) /Em (Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables 223,660 106,789
A8 fiim ill Increase in contract liabilities 318,057 =
J‘E EREE A EIEE I (F) Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to related parties (8,422) 4,579
HidEnaaEnd Decrease in other non-current liabilities (9,821) (27,642)
FE RS RR & FE IS Increase in amounts due to non-controlling interests 20,101 =
FERSEERERRANRTHIERS  Decrease in amounts due to companies held by
non-controlling interests - (3,934)
REfEREE Cash generated from operations 10,078,563 6,726,586
BRMEHR Income tax paid (1,831,598) (1,869,048)
ReTBMERERETF Net cash flows from operating activities 8,246,965 4,857,538
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
fiysE BETT BETT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REZDFIERERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HENE WERZEERMGHE Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment 27,993 67,775
HEMRNEREMERE Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investments = 3,256,646
HEARBSREEMGHE Proceeds from disposal of other current financial assets 16,988,082 =
HERF LA EFBRMEHE Proceeds from disposal of prepaid land lease payments = 13,990
HERYEEMGRE Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 21,717 27,622
HEBE AT WZE'; HE Proceeds from disposal of associates = 46
RIEHEREA Deemed disposal of a subsidiary 38 (148) =
B HRTT ﬁﬂﬁ@]ﬁ*%ﬁi Net changes in pledged bank deposits (232,331) 283,037
EKHE Interest received 716,102 253,959
EWRHGE R ER RS Dividend received from unlisted equity investment 2,216 6,618
B U2 N B S Dividend received from associate 54,485 4,861
AHRHERENRERA Investment income on available-for-sale investments = 154,070
RZMBARER Repayment from fellow subsidiaries - 61,503
W BRI 5 46 B Receipt of government grants 33 83,887 94,366
Bt/ (BB)0E BER Deposits for property, plant and
RERe equipment (paid)/refunded (3,144) 9,528
RERMNIWHAEREEZS Deposits for prepaid land lease payments refunded - 46,093
BNEFEERS Deposits for intangible assets paid (12,035) (7,404)
BEVE BERERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,513,502) (1,566,712)
BERENE Purchase of an investment property (8,736)
EEBVEE Purchase of intangible assets (446,648) (206, 141)
BETHAEFE Prepayments for land lease payments (2,624) (232,779)
Wi B e ?DB?EHEEi Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of cash paid 37 (338,733) (2,205,19)
RERBE R RAELE Investment in associates and in joint ventures (136,126) (43,855)
BET —H u”jETx Purchases of available-for-sale investments = (7,150 422)
BN Advances to associates (2,095,274)
BEEM méﬂ‘i\ BEE Purchases of other current financial assets (21,053,648) =
IHBEFEREREAF Payment for acquisitions of associates in prior years (1,284,556) (945,049)
SHBAFE W% HEA 7 18 Payment for acquisitions of subsidiaries in prior years (567,979) (434,222)
FERRRE Repayment from non-controling shareholders = 54
FEW e fo&fﬂ HEARFIERD  Decrease in amounts due from companies
controlled by non-controlling interests - 44
RETBFANREREFH Net cash flows used in investing activities (9,801,002) (8,511,567)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Bzt BT T BT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BETHHERENE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
RITERMBHE Proceeds from bank borrowings 76,973,500 60,079,512
BITEATEIE Proceeds from issuances of bonds 4,552,255 =
RHRESMGEIE Proceeds from short-term debentures 3,423,868 =
e h UNETE-E Advances from an intermediate holding company 3,002,493 2,262,740
R IERTE Capital contribution from non-controlling interests 198,036 40,250
EBEIRTER Repayment of bank borrowings (67,933,640) (46,319,111)
EEEMNES Repayment of bonds payable (2,350,507) (5,770,350)
BE-FKPEZERARZR Repayment of advances from an intermediate
holding company - (2,262,740)
EREERAES Repayment of asset-backed securities (2,984,931) =
ERFIES Interests paid (2,835,035) (2,115,904)
ERRE Dividend paid (691,297) (565,606)
[REREEF L) Special dividend paid (1,559,479) (668,348)
W FE AR i Acquisitions of non-controlling interests (3,368,025) (884,361)
ERIEERERRE Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (1,759,795) (669,211)
METBMERERETH Net cash flows from financing activities 4,667,443 3,126,871
BEFBLEEMEM/ b )BE  Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,113,406 (527,158)
R—A—BREERELSEY Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 14,174,734 13,972,252
NEEXZHMTE 8 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (651,803) 729,640
FREGRALEED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 16,636,337 14,174,734
Re kR SENERST ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
BARBRNRAMRESRBTES  Cash and bank balances as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position 26 16,633,301 14,161,833
=18 AR Em R R HIERER Restricted time deposits with maturity less than
three months 26 3,036 12,901
ReMERMTRE KEEEED Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
the statement of cash flows 16,636,337 14,174,734
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&

1.

2T \E+A=1+—HIFE

NEAIREEEHR
ARBB—RREBETMAZOERMNE
RAR EEROREEBARXZABRA
ALEm B-F-—R"FTA-TN\BEL
Mo HEERERARAEBRE (BE)E
RAR (MEEEE (BE)]  —RNRE
BAES ([RBRABES])EMAILH
DA MESKKERABDATRERS
RAE ([HEER] (AEATEERR
DA —RKRRPEARKME ([FE])
RIZEBARE) -

AR R RER 9 R R A B E B E (TS
26 EMAELIE - AR AN EBLEE
e AE B ST B EE265RE R AELE
4104-05% °

RARRREERAR -AEBEFERSE
BEMBRENRE DHETE-

BENBARNER
ARBEEMBRBNFBET

1.

For the year ended 31 December 2018

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
with effect from 28 October 2016. Its immediate holding company is
CRH (Pharmaceutical) Limited (“CRHP"), a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and its ultimate holding company is
China Resources Company Limited (“CRCL") (formerly known as China
Resources National Corporation), a state-owned enterprise established in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The address of the registered office of the Company is 41/F, China
Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
principal place of business of the Company is Room 4104-05, 41/F,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wan chai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacturing, distribution and retail of pharmaceutical
and healthcare products.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

R

Name

ERBENRERLA ([EHBEER])
(B2 BI0)

China Resources Pharmaceutical Holdings
Limited Company (“CR Pharmaceutical Holdings"”)
(Note 3) ()

ERBEREERNA ([EHBERE])
(Hi#GIb))

China Resources Pharmaceutical Investment
Company Limited (“CR Pharmaceutical Investment”)
(Note (3) (b)

EFR-NBERMABRRAR ([EB=N])
(Wt (RGId)

China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical
Co, Ltd. ("CR Sanjiu”) (Notes (1), and (3) (d))

TR/
Bap k) E T
Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

hE/ BN

PRC/Mainland China

hE/ BN

PRC/Mainland China

hE/ BN

PRC/Mainland China

BERTEER/
AR A KAREGERERD L TEXK
Issued
ordinary/ Percentage of
registered equity interest Principal
share capital attributable to the Company activities
2018 2017
AR 100% 100% HREZER
15,000,000,0007C
RMB15,000,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
ARE 100% 100% HREZER
500,000,0007T
RMB500,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
AR% 63.60% 6360% EmEERHE
978,900,0007C
RMB978,900,000 63.60% 63.60% Manufacturing and sales
of pharmaceuticals
products
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

1. REAIREEER (&)

BEEMBLRNESR (&)

£

Name

EHRMEE (MG0)
China Resources Dong-E-E-Jiao (Note (3) (b))
REBB (HE0) QRGI)

Dong-E-E-Jiao (Notes (1), (2) and (3) (d))

TRBEEEERETAR (HHG))

Beijing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Note (3) (@)

EREBEERNERAR ([EHES])
(WEEGC)

China Resources Double-Crane Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
("CR Double-Crane ") (Notes (1) and (3) (@)

EEERELSRARAT (HiLo)

China Resources Pharmaceutical Commercial
Group Co., Ltd. (Note (3) (b))
FYEE=NBEESERAA (HEO)

Shenzhen Huarun Sanjiu Medicine Trading
Co., Ltd. (Wote (3) (b))

RYEBNFERBROF (WEGI)

Shenzhen Huarun Jiuxin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(Note (3) (b))
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1.

Bauaye
B Y ES
Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

R/ R R
PRC/Mainland China
R/ RE R

PRC/Mainland China

R/ RE R
PRC/Mainland China
R/ R R

PRC/Mainland China

E/HERL

PRC/Mainland China

E/ R

PRC/Mainland China

E/HERL

PRC/Mainland China

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BRTZER/
RS
Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

AR
422,771,6757C
RMB422,771,675

AR
654,021,5377C
RMB654,021,537

AR
2,320,000,0007T
RMB2,320,000,000

AR
724,470,6317C
RMB724,470,631

AR
5,191,703,3567T
RMBS5,191,703,356

AR
60,000,0007T
RMB60,000,000

AR
500,000,000t
RMB500,000,000

RAARERERD

Percentage of
equity interest

t

attributable to the Company

2018
56.62%

56.62%

21.22%

21.22%

100%

100%

59.99%

59.99%

100%

100%

63.60%

63.60%

63.60%

63.60%

2017
56.62%

56.62%

19.75%

19.75%

100%

100%

59.99%

59.99%

100%

100%

63.60%

63.60%

63.60%

63.60%

TEEHK

Principal
activities

REER

Investment holding

EnEERHE

Manufacturing and sales
of pharmaceutical
products

REER

Investment holding

EnEERHE

Manufacturing and sales

of pharmaceutical
products

pu

EnE

Trading of pharmaceuticals
products

BnEE

Sales of pharmaceutical
products

EoiE
Manufacturing of

pharmaceutical
products
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

1. REAIREEER (&)

BEMBLRNESR (&)

£

Name

ERUREEARLA (HEOW)

China Resources Shandong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(Note (3)(6)

EREREEARLA (HHOW)

China Resources Liaoning Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(Note (3) (b)

ERTREEARAT (HE0W)

China Resources Henan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(Note (3) (b))

TRHEBEEBREMR[(HHGI)

Double-Crane Pharmaceutical (Anhui) Co., Ltd.
(Note (3) (b))

TREREXLEBRETRR (HEOL)

Double-Crane (Beijing) Pharmaceutical Management
Co., Ltd. (Note (3) (b))

EWEAREERAR (H26W)

China Resources Nantong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(Note (3) (b))

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

EMEL/ BRTEER/
BB E S RS ARAEERERDL TEEH
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity interest Principal
business share capital attributable to the Company ~  activities
2018 2017
E/HERL AR 100% 100% #ERHE
500,000,0007t
PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of pharmaceutical
products
E/HERL AR 100% 100% #ERHE
150,000,0007T
PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of pharmaceutical
products
E/HERL AR 100% 100% #ERHE
505,146,8007T
PRC/Mainland China RMB505, 146,800 100% 100%  Sales of pharmaceutical
products
E/HERL AR 59.99% 59.99% HEREE
82,608,7007T
PRC/Mainland China RMB82,608,700 59.99% 59.99% Manufacturing of
pharmaceutical
products
R/ RE R ARE 59.99% 59.99% ERHE
59,326,8007T
PRC/Mainland China RMB59,326,800 59.99% 59.99% Sales of pharmaceutical
products
E/HERL ARE 100% 100% miE
50,000,000t
PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of pharmaceutical
products
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HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

1. RAIREBER (&) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

BB RARMNER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)

SR/ BRTEER/
£ BaupE Y ES RS ARAEERERDL ITEEH
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity interest Principal
Name business share capital attributable to the Company ~  activities
2018 2017
EETLBEERAA (WZGI) hE,/ R E A N 100% 100% ZEmie
330,000,0007T
China Resources Hebei Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB330,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of pharmaceutical
Note (3) (b)) products
ERIHBEARAR (H2OWL) E/HERY ARE 100% 100% EmiE
500,000,0007t
China Resources Jiangsu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of pharmaceutical
Note (3) (b)) products
ERECR (LR BERRAR (H2GI) hE /R E R N 100% 5565% EmiHE
16,000,0007T
China Resources Purenhong (Beijing) Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China RMB16,000,000 100% 55.65%  Sales of pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Wote (3) (b)) products
ERRRBERRAR (WO E/HERY ARE 100% 0% ERHEE
200,000,0007T
China Resources Tianjin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 100% 70%  Sales of pharmaceutical
Note (3) (b)) products
ERMLBEERLA (WHOL) E /BN ARE 60% 60% ZEmiHE
352,000,0007T
China Resources Hubei Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB352,000,000 60% 60% Sales of pharmaceutical
Note (3) (b)) products
ERNREABEERAA (H26I) E/HERL ARE 100% 51% BmiEE
50,000,000t
China Resources Hunan Shuangzhou PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100% 51% Sales of pharmaceutical
Pharmaceutical Co., (Note (3) (b)) products
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

1. REAIREEER (&)

BEMBLRNESR (&)

£

Name

ERERBEERAT ([EHERBE])
(H#6)a)
CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd
("CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical”) (Note (3) (3))
ERRE(LB)BRAR (MHGL)

China Resources (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(Note (3) (b))

ERNRRRBEBRAR (WG

China Resources Hunan Ruige Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Note (3) (b))

EHESBEERAT (WO

China Resources Qingdao Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(Note (3)(6)

ERSHBEARLR (HZGI)

China Resources Jilin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(Note (3) (b))

RENERBRERREAR (MBI

Beijing Saike Changsheng Pharmaceutical
Company Ltd. (Note (3) (b))

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

EMEL/ BRTEER/
BB E S RS ARAEERERDL TEEH
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity interest Principal
business share capital attributable to the Company ~  activities
2018 2017
hE /BN AR% 70% 0% ERHEE
405,755,0007T
PRC/Mainland China RMBA405,755,000 70% 70%  Sales of pharmaceutical
products
hE /BN AR% 70% 0% ERHEE
50,000,000t
PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 70% 70%  Sales of pharmaceutical
products
hE /BN AR% 51% 51% BmiEE
100,000,0007T
PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 51% 51% Sales of pharmaceutical
products
E/HERY ARE 100% 100% EmiE
100,000,0007T
PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of pharmaceutical
products
B/ HERL ARE 100% 100% e
200,000,0007T
PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of pharmaceutical
products
E/HERL ARE 59.99% 59.99% ERHE
2,800,0007T
PRC/Mainland China RMB2,800,000 59.99% 59.99% Sales of pharmaceutical
products
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

1. REAIREEER (&)

BEEMBLRNESR (&)

£

Name

£ (L) BEERAA (WOH)

China Resources Xinlong (Shanxi) Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (Note (3) (b))

ERERENERBRAOF (WG

China Resources Shenghuo Pharmaceutical
Holdings, Inc. (Note (3) (b))

SREX (8R)ARAERA (HEEGIL)

Double-Crane Pharmaceutical (Hainan) Co., Ltd.
(Note (3) (b))
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1.

TR/
BaupE Y ES
Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

i/ hER

PRC/Mainland China

i/ hER

PRC/Mainland China

i/ hER

PRC/Mainland China

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BRTZER/
aftiRA
Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

AR
51,000,0007C
RMB51,000,000

AR
88,067,0007T
RMB88,067,000

AR
75,000,0007T
RMB75,000,000

RAARERERD

Percentage of
equity interest

t

attributable to the Company

2018
60%

60%

63.60%

63.60%

59.99%

59.99%

2017
60%

60%

63.60%

63.60%

59.99%

59.99%

TEEHK

Principal
activities
“miEE

Sales of pharmaceutical
products

EoiE
Manufacturing of
pharmaceutical
products
EoiE
Manufacturing of

pharmaceutical
products
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

= P22 <ARIN =
1. REIREEER (&) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

BEAWBATNER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Hiat - Notes:

(1) FEF=/RRAFBIRFYES BT (1) CR Sanjiu and Dong-E-E-Jiao are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
FMEEERE TR LR BAT LT o and CR Double-Crane is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

2) REE-—T—FEf=A=F—HIFEE (2)  During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired additional
N £ [ U B T ST B ) BB 1 1.99% R4 equity interests of 1.99% in Dong-E-E-Jiao and the Group’s equity interests
R R B R [P B H R 1R 2 /1 17.76% in Dong-E-E-Jiao increased from 17.76 % to 19.75% accordingly. During
EIZE19.75% - REE-E—/\F+=H the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group acquired additional equity
=+ —HIFFE AN E YR B interests of 1.47% in Dong-E-E-Jiao and the Group’s equity interests in
BEIN. A7 % RHE - J5 7N B B B P R R Dong-E-E-Jiao increased from 19.75% to 21.22 % accordingly.

TEREZ 119.75% 58 11221.22% °

3 RAEIK T A 2 F R B AR (3)  For those subsidiaries established in the PRC, their kinds of legal entity are

S as follows:

(@) FINEE A ERA] @  sino-foreign equity joint venture

) BREFLRAE] (b)  limited liability company

© SEEELA] (c)  wholly foreign owned enterprise

@ REERZA] (@ joint-stock limited company
GEMBRETRARNANRIEEZREI BT Except for CR Pharmaceutical Holdings, which are held directly by the
BEMMBAR RARAHERE - Company, all other subsidiaries are held indirectly by the Company.
TREVNEERATESEREFENEE The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
HEEMNARRNBRR -EERAEWF opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the
SIEMHBATINERESERBER- Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

2.1 MRBLELSE 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

BBHmRDBRBEEEGHMAE ([FE
BRG] ) BRANE M BREER
(IEAMBHRESER]) (ETREFE
MHmELR  FAGAEA ([FAES
EADERE) BEARGTEINE
BREMED RAELKAERE  ER
RABEFENKREME URETER
RBERERIN - FHERENHEHRR T
BRESFRAENMAABERLEKARE
MEEEZ2Y CE—THIRRKITF2.4)
MBEHRABEZ2H MAESEBNES
REENTIT ZAERERIN-

AAREFCEFNTHARRLHERE
ENARAIRERBELE b BORTE
RRABMNEERBE T N\FLHA—H
ERAREERREE ([BE])-

v

ZERAMBRRNBEZY -

b=1l

REVBEBREEARALEMBAA
([ A&EEDHBEE-"T—-N\F+_H
St-RLEFENUBRR-MBRAR
HAAREEREEIEFNER (BIEE
BUEER) EXAKEEIBR2HEREHR
MEBMAENZRENEARIEREER
AEnREGRENVEEENREHRESR
MENTERREER (SAKEBRAA
ENESREHRNARADRNNEGRE
M) B S HE I
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The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, and certain debt and equity investments that
are measured at fair value. Disposal groups held for sale are stated at the
lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell as further
explained in Note 2.4. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

The directors of the Company re-evaluated the economic environment
of the Company and determined that the functional currency of the
Company should be changed from RMB to Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
from 1 July 2018 as a result of the change in investment strategy of the
Company.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).
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HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

2.1 ImBEE (& 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

HWARBERAEERAEREHRNERR
RN DR — 2 AIAREERFEE
ERBRBHEEHRNENREERE 1)
HEEERBER 8

(a) ERBEHFRHEMKREFEANAGHD
ZHE:

(b)y EMANRHMELNERN: K&
(0 AEBNREERBERZE-

B8 B e B S R T st AR A R AR R Y
WEHR YRAERNETBRER -
(RPN E STz SRk s 2:0l=
Hiega AR THEFe A\REE Lt
ZHIER LN RIS -

BalkHb2ERANSEXED HEE
RAEEF AR BRERE ARFZRE
o B0 AE UL 28 5| BRI AR 2R SR 1S S A Y
B -FMASBARRHENEERAE:
Rz WA X R BEAEBEKE QAR
MR ZHEENREREGNES ARKE
U 8H -

B EE RBRBR XA ey =84 6
ETRERNEF -BRZEFE AIXNEE
BEHFHEEEDAZEFRELAR R
MEBAREAEERNEE (LMK EE
W) IARINBERR S -

oA Bk = — T B & R A EE I - B
HEHRROZHNBARNEE (R
BRBE (VEMFERESNREE
R (iR RN R R HER g
ROMBRENRREE  (DFFRE T
BRE A AEERGER P EAE L E
EMESBSEEE TR EMEEKER
BERNAEBERGMOEFOBRERRL
REEN (ER)  WAKEEERHLE
HEEEXRBENANR —EEER -

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(0 the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.
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22 B BRZEEHREE 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements.

AEBRANFEPBRRERXKAATH
A MBI BB GRS ER -

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of

BERMBHRE UKROBERNANKS

AR 255 W5 R AT E Share-based Payment Transactions
(EFTA)

ERUBRE KEEFLESAIRNE HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
AEHI| 1555 with Customer

ERUBRE BEEBEHEERE Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
FREISS 15K EFLEARINK from Contracts with Customer
(EFTA) #

EAEAVKERE oI A HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
AR5

ERMBRE AT BB ETERE Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
B 55 45R 4F R A A — G JE Instruments with HKFRS 4
(BETA) HEBY B #HEERE Insurance Contracts

9T A

g REY EEEZE Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property
AEHI| 4055
(EFTA)

B (BHBES EXZRATAKE HK (IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
BHmERE Advance Consideration
ZBg) —
BREE225

ZE-WNEFE BEYBFHREGEREIS Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1
ZE-RE  REEBEEIERFE28% 2014-2016 Cycle and HKAS 28
BEzFE BIEET
o HE

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 4 and Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of
the Group's financial statements, the nature and the impact of the new
and revised HKFRSs are described below:

BEEWBREENBSRETAREE
MBREEN_E—MEE_T—XFH
Mz FRBE (ZMBARRRAKBEMG
WRER) N AT RKETREMBR
SEAMEERFEBALT
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22 SRS ERIKE (&) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

BUEFTRE-[EAT268E  BEG
HHAEURSEERNINZR
SNFTE: BREBEITEARD Y
HEZHBEELMBENE TZEN
BEEFRBEEREZURD AER
NROR B0 HE R AR A&
AR R Z GRS EL <
HOoBRmRSAEERERGE
BRI ST RRIE - X FERIEBAT
ENEGHEERNINZREZNE
BIREZ ARTEZMEAR AR S
REBROIN 2R S Mo %ZFE
RISl A—EFISMER - Eim B E T 15
i REBETHERTMBENS
TERENAERFHEAERTE AR
MARERNRNR S DHBESRR
BREEERNS 2R 5 thoh - %
FEIEE WREFEROHIMZ
R ZEFIMEIHRIER] - S EK B
REHERNIN2RS AR
BEFTEHEFRESERERNDX
N2 RP AR o R FAEFT AL FEE A
KSENTBRAXKRELEERE
& ARSI EEFANESEER
DRI RG AV BERMABIAE
MBS E R AR BER R
5 e

These amendments address three main areas: the effects of
vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction; the classification of a share-based
payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding
a certain amount in order to meet an employee’s tax obligation
associated with the share-based payment; and accounting where
a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based
payment transaction changes its classification from cash-settled
to equity-settled. The amendments clarify that the approach
used to account for vesting conditions when measuring equity-
settled share-based payments also applies to cash-settled share-
based payments. The amendments introduce an exception so
that a share-based payment transaction with net share settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet the
employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-
settled share-based payment transaction when certain conditions
are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms and
conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction are
modified, with the result that it becomes an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for as
an equity-settled transaction from the date of the modification.
The amendments have had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group as the Group does not have any cash-
settled share-based payment transactions and has no share-based
payment transactions with net settlement features for withholding
tax.
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22 SR BERIKE (&

124

BAEVHRELRFB 155 R EER]
BREAGHEZUNFNRELS
A BAREGERE18% M KA
R B (BRI EPIIMERIN E
ERREPANELZMBRE &
M RERNBISHEAKREEP
BRZWE AREY — B RSB
X RIBFBIEIREERE155%
WHRERREEBAAIIBAR
FEZEMARFMBEEES K
ELRER BBV BHRELENFES
SHRA SR E R G SRR
BRHEBILMITE - ZERITNSIAE
REMNEERBERE  BFENF
WA BRETEE TRHHE
ZHAMNEENBERBAESRNE
AR T BEHE R AENER - B
BEHNMEIRRIMES - AR B
BAPBHHRELEAF 155 AEEE
BEUBMKRMT2.4T F AN =R
REERTHR -

REBARETENERATEY
B ELERIFE 1558  \RFULTTE - %
HEAATRBXRERRMEARZE
BHREREANZ A HARTRE
ABH-AEBCDEEBENEAR
“TE-N\F-A-—HEATKNE
#) o

AEBMERSREEERKRE MR
MWEE DHEATEARETEHRA
EmHE -AEERAS BRERE
78 B 76 i o5 2E I 551 557 3 M 78 R
BRMNE_ZT—-N\F—-A—BEH
BEMAE  WIIRRAEEREP
MEEmEHIER A Ak 6
ARBETRENRBHNERZ -
o

201853 FHBEEEEFRAAF

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and
it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15, establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are included in Note 5
to the financial statements. As a result of the application of HKFRS
15, the Group has changed the accounting policy with respect to
revenue recognition in Note 2.4 to the financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified retrospective
method of adoption. Under this method, the standard can be
applied either to all contracts at the date of initial application
or only to contracts that are not completed at this date. The
Group has elected to apply the standard to contracts that are not
completed as at 1 January 2018.

The Group is in the business of providing the manufacturing,
distribution and retail of pharmaceutical and healthcare products
and principally derives revenue from sales of products. The Group
concluded that no transitional adjustment is required to be made
on 1 January 2018 to retained earnings upon initial adoption
of HKFRS 15. It is because the Group recognised revenue upon
the transfer of control, which coincides with the fulfilment of
performance obligations.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) EFBBBHEERE1SFEREE (b) HKFRS 15 and its amendments (continued)
7] (#&)
TX#HIWR=ZFE—N\F—H—H Set out below are the amounts by which each financial statement
PN E B ISR R 155 MY line item was affected as at 1 January 2018 as a result of the
EMBWMRCETHEBEKRTE Y adoption of HKFRS 15:
SE:
REATZERENSEE
Amounts prepared under
BBUBRE ZRINE B
XRISE155%  BAESIREER] i OR2)
Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=F Liabilities
2 5 RE A FERFRIE Trade and other payables 55,101,811 56,495,692 (1,393,881)
aBR8E Contract liabilities 1,393,881 - 1,393,881

R E 78 %5 & 2RI F 155
Al ARBERBUEEFRERES
REMBNFA  REBABVBRSE
EAFIH ZE2BOBRENEA

& e

Bt REEAE BT R E LS
155 % NEERBRESRES
#1,393,881,0007C & 5 K& E b f&
NRBEEHSEAREHNEE-

rEBEE-_Z-NF+A
=+t RLEFENGRERR A
PHBSEREGEARERERTE
REEAFE TRBARRRER
s mEEREISHEME A EBR
—E-NF+ZRA=T—ENEE
MBRARRZBEETHBEKRNF
B AXEPTENETHBEARES
itk -

Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group recognised
consideration received from customers in advance as trade and
other payables. Under HKFRS 15, the amount is classified as
contract liabilities.

Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group reclassified
HK$1,393,881,000 from trade and other payables to contract
liabilities as at 1 January 2018 in relation to the consideration
received from customers in advance as at 1 January 2018.

There are no material impact on the Group's consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31 December 2018. The following table
summarises the impact of applying HKFRS 15 on the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018 for each of the line items affected. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) EFBBBEHEERE1SFEREE (b) HKFRS 15 and its amendments (continued)
7] ()
R-ZE—-—NFE+-_A=+—HH% Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
AMBRRK: e
REUTRERAENEZE
Amounts prepared under
BBMBRE ZATNE B
RIS BIEmEER B ORd)
Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
BB T BB BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=N Liabilities
Z 5 REA IR Trade and other payables 56,198,259 57,910,197 (1,711,938)
AHaE Contract liabilities 1,711,938 = 1,711,938
(0 BEBNBREERESR (0 HKFRS9
EEURELERFO R H T AR HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial
—E-N\F—A—B"gzERBZ Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
FERABDMAKREE G EAE395% beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three
T TA: HRARGTE EESRT aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: classification
BEREBEMN=AFHE: pERE & and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.
BEREPEET-
MrANEEE B FEHAFE s st o With the exception of hedge accounting, which the Group has
REEBCHR _ZE—N\F—HA—HH applied prospectively, the Group has recognised the transition
TN B RV SR ERIBE A - adjustments against the applicable opening balances in equity at
bt EBEEWEES B GEER 1 January 2018. Therefore, the comparative information was not
BEEGHEREIRRER restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 39.
DRI E Classification and measurement
TH BRI R E B g & The following information sets out the impacts of adopting HKFRS
BIEOSREamEaMERRN KRN E 9 on the consolidated statement of financial position, including the
BIEAEBT GG ERFE R TE effect of replacing HKAS 39's incurred credit loss calculations with
HzEEX ([FBHEEBRL]) R HKFRS 9's expected credit losses (“"ECLs").
BAGHEANEIORNEELEEE
BEAENTE-
126 0554 znsmsmaRAF
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(0 BERMBR

PR E (B)

EHERISE5E (&)

KoZ—N\F—A—B BEERIE
BIE30% A T B EE AL AT S

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
() HKEFRS 9 (continued)
Classification and measurement (continued)
A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under HKAS 39
and the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 is

WM EERFEORIB T T2 WMAVA as follows:
BRI
Z8-tF+2A=t-A DafE =2-N\5-F-B
prEseeizny  BOOR BEERRR  (DARED  ppmsmpseense
31 December 2017 Fair value 1 January 2018
UnderHKAS39  Reclassification ECL ("FV") Under HKFRS 9
£ £ ] Eia ] Ea £ ] i} L2
Category Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Category
BETT LAy v BETT L ave
HKS000 HK9000 HKS000 HKS000 HK9000
SREE Financial assets
B A REMENGE- () Trade and other receivables() ) L&R 67,127,969 (19,150946) 50909 - 48027932 AC
AfpraemEE Other curent financil assets
EoRNSERENEE Trade and bilsreceivable - 19,150,946 11847 (175453) 18,987,340 AVOC]
FUPL(E)
ERfES Asset-backed securtes - 175617 - - 175617 FUPL{debt)
FUPL(E%)
SRER Finandal producis S 6,381,025 S S 6,381,025 APL(Gebt)
A E R Avalable-forsale investments(i) AFS 6,891,114 (6891,114) = = = R NA
BEERER Asset-backed securtes 412484 (12484 S S =
FLTRERE B Unlisted equityinvestments, atcost 97605 (97,605) = = =
SHER Fiancil products 6,381,025 (6,381,025) 5 5 =
FRBSHEE Non-current finandl assets
FVPL(E%)
ERRES Assetbacked securtes - 236,867 - - 236,867 FUPL{debt)
FUPL (&)
FrakERE Unlisted equity investments - 97,605 - (48.950) 48655 APLlequity)
ERERAE Due from related parties 18R 115364 = = = 115364 AC
BERER Pledged deposis 18R 256691 5 = = 2566981 AC
RERRLSEN Cash and cash equivalents 18R 14,161,833 5 = = 14,161,833 AC
90,863,261 - 62,7% (224403 90,701,614
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22 S BER2BBRIE (&F) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

() BBHBMEERIESE (&) (c) HKFRS 9 (continued)
SEREE (E) Classification and measurement (continuec))
8-LFf2Rzt-R B haflE 8-NF-A-R
paEsesemgng  EOR RARERR  (DABRD  pemsmmssense
31 December 2017 Fair value 1 January 2018
Under HKAS39  Relassification ECL ("FV") Under HKFRS 9
55 Ei ] Ei ] x| pit ] k] 55
Category Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Category
BETT LAy v BETT AR
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
cHER Financialliabilties
27 REMENGE Trade and other payables A 52,805,119 - - - 52,805,119 AC
EHBRANE Due to relted partes AC 124763 5 = = 14763 AC
HERMER Intetestbearing bank borowings AC 32209788 5 = = 32209783 AC
FEfifE% Bonds payable AC 4,665,38) = e e 4,665,38) AC
HpEE Other assets
EEHBEE Deferted tax asefs 573516 - (15,769 33%9 594,086
E# Equity
B0 ()i Retained earnings ()i} 18,650,557 - 2473 (185.490) 18,507,540
SETRIRIER) (i) (i) Non-controling interests() i i) 21267371 - 451 (2574 21269311
Hiat - Notes:
! ;; ;\’Cxlﬁ HRASEEAAR M2 AN ZH 2 1 FVOCI: Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
2 AFS < A ﬁi‘f ER i 2 AFS: Available-for-sale investments
3 L&R < B R & %{fy\ f o o 3 L&R: Loans and receivables
4 ;‘ic KRR ENEBEENEHE 4 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised cost
5 AVALERRBEGARzNEBEE 5 FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
» ARIE (35 1 B R B A ARASF MR T 2 0] The Group has classified trade and other receivables that are held within a

TR M EHE 5 RE M EW R E R

< ~ : business model both to collect cash flows and to sell upon transition to fair
DIEREAANBEFT AR M2 E K 25

value through other comprehensive income.

(i)  BZREMEREREREEEREE (i)
BB IREERF N BRI RIBAE
EHEE HEE S REMERTEE N
FIAEFE B IR & ZE ) 20 R 1R B8 4 8 0

Impairment allowances of trade and other receivables was remeasured
based on ECLs approach under HKFRS 9, resulting in increase in trade
and other receivables and decrease in deferred tax assets and increase in
retained earnings.

(i) BT RAFEIORA T EHA (i
BESBE FLTRERERENE
& EREEEAHRERIZIREH S
BBBEAR BEHA M

Available-for-sale investments, asset-backed securities, unlisted equity
investments and financial products under HKAS 39 were reclassified to fair
value through profit or loss under HKFRS 9.

Ij
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22 BtBER BB RIFE (&)

() BBUBRELERESE (F)

TREREFEER

R 253957 /Y

MR ERERERRETEMG
BELEUFORNAREEBERE

DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 9 (continued)

(0

Impairment

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

The following table reconciles the aggregate opening impairment
allowances under HKAS 39 to the ECLs allowances under
HKFRS 9. Further details are disclosed in Note 25 to the financial

IR - AN BRENMBERERNE statements.
25 -
RZZ2-N\F
R=Z-tF —-A—H
+=A=+-H REE B
BEFEET HAEBIZE9IR M
% B 55395% Y RHEE
RERE ENOE Bt E BRERE
Impairment
allowances

under ECL
HKAS 39 allowances
at31 under HKFRS 9
December at 1 January
2017  Re-classification Re-measurement 2018
BT BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BH WA Trade receivables 477,858 (59,235) (45,942) 372,681
Hih A Other receivables 158,990 - (4,967) 154,023

Hit e emaE Other current financial assets
-BHRKE - Trade receivables - 59,235 (11,847) 47,388
636,848 - (62,756) 574,092
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22 S BER2BBRIE (F) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

() BBMBMEERIESE (&) (0 HKFRS 9 (continued)
Y REDE Tl 57 £F Impact on retained earnings
BEEEBVEREEDFE LR The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on retained earnings is as
BRNZENT follows:
REEF
Retained
earnings
BT
HK$'000
BEBEEE G ERIE39HN
—T—tFt+-A=1—BH&ER Balance as at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 18,650,557
RBEEBVBEREERBIRERE S R Recognition of ECLs for trade and other
HE W IENTEREEB X receivables under HKFRS 9 63,619
BT ERAABETARMEEKES Remeasurement of trade receivables measured at
B 5 M GRIA fair value through other comprehensive income (177,866)
BFTERAAEEFABENIELTRAERE  Remeasurement of unlisted equity investments at
(BERBEEB G EREISRIZAARTE) fair value through profit or loss previously
measured at cost under HKAS 39 (49,623)
8 it A B IRIE R IR Deferred tax in relation to the above 20,853
RBRE B mEEREIHRN
—E-N\F-HA—B8#H Balance as at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 18,507,540
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22 B BRZEBREE (& 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

BB G ERFIREITREEE
BESYME(EREEZRERTY
F)BARELREMENRRE %
SIERTHER MEREENZYEN
ARTHENAREMEZEERE
EREAREGRLEEIR I HL
e EREEBHMEMEZER
WETEURBAEREEME-
FASCHINE: IR SR 3
ERBEEEEMTE-

EX (MBHEREZEE) 2
FE 552257 5 5 88 DA SN ES UG BR sl 32 1+
ENREMERIFEELKEEERE
BEWBRT ERAEESFER
F2IREF - ENMNETR S HHIR
HIgS| R BEE HREETRVS
BREMEE RAZRA (HHEF
HO)TRNERE SSEHAE
BB R E A S B FE B
MEARFEEEHEEE (MBEHK
H)SKIEEBHAE (MEEKRA)
Z B WERBHAIEBNTFESZER
NS BEURR  BRARTEEMNR
BERIBWBMBEBNREREER S A
B zRETESAE BN BEERE
BEREMNYE REARNEEAEE
FEBEESFEK BRI THER
MERMNEERNSFTIRREZRE
FrigftaysEal — 5k -

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity should transfer
property, including property under construction or development,
into or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet,
the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the
change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the
use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.
The amendments have had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

HK (IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to determine the
date of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the situation
where an entity receives or pays advance consideration in a
foreign currency and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability.
The interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction for
the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of
it) is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-monetary liability
(such as deferred income) arising from the payment or receipt
of the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance of recognising the related item, the entity must
determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. The interpretation has had no impact
on the Group’s financial statements as the Group's accounting
policy for the determination of the exchange rate applied for initial
recognition of non-monetary assets or non-monetary liabilities is
consistent with the guidance provided in the interpretation.
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2.3 Eﬁﬁ{ﬁ@ﬁ*i?&Z%\%ﬂﬂ% 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
R %Al FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

# ZI— A
NEFBW N EHRRPERIATEEM The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that

B8 RER 2 #a] MRIERT B AM B S

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

ARl o
EBMBRE £FaTFE? Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business®
AEHI| 353
BRI A
ERUBRE ABB#HERIEFELRF Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
AR5 e Compensation’
BRI A
EEMEHE REZHABHLZ A ZD Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
ZRIE105 RZAWEELESF and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or
rEEgET B Joint Venture?
AERI| 552855
—_ET——
FNERTA
EARUBRE HE HKFRS 16 Leases’
AR 21655
ERBRE R4 HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
AR SE1755
ERestER BBAHTE? Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
FIRRED and HKAS 8
=l
FE8IASE] A

ARG AR

it BIEAT ~ MR X 1T

Amendments to HKAS 19

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

E19% Settlement’
EHEN
EHSER REBENGIRAZDPEL Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
285 RAE and Joint Ventures'
EHES
75 (HE FriZH e FE 2 Tt E 14 HK (IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
MmERE Treatments’
Z8®) —
REE23%R
—E-—NEE EHFEIEERES Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
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Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets to be considered a business, it must include, at
a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively
from 1 January 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or
loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate
or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion of a
broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However,
the amendments are available for adoption now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK (IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases-Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees-leases of low-value assets and short-term leases.
At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability
to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing
the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-
of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless the
right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property in HKAS
40, or relates to a class of property, plant and equipment to which the
revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease
payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability
upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors
will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as
in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance leases.
HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures
than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

The Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group
plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise the
cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2019 and will not restate
the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right-of-use asset will
be measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised
in the statement of financial position immediately before the date of
initial application. The Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by the
standard on lease contracts whose lease terms end within 12 months as
of the date of initial application. As disclosed in Note 41 to the financial
statements, at 31 December 2018, the Group had future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of
approximately HK$1,080,952,000 (2017: HK$1,008,609,000). Upon
adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein may need to
be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. Further
analysis, however, will be needed to determine the amount of new rights
of use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised, including, but not
limited to, any amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and short
term leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new leases
entered before the date of adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material if it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the primary
users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2020. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of HKFRS
9 only includes interests in an associate or joint venture to which the
equity method is applied and does not include long-term interests that
in substance form part of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture, to which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore, an
entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the impairment
requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interests.
HKAS 28 is then applied to the net investment, which includes the long-
term interests, only in the context of recognising losses of an associate
or joint venture and impairment of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture. The Group expects to adopt the amendments on 1 January
2019 and will assess its business model for such long-term interests
based on the facts and circumstances that exist on 1 January 2019 using
the transitional requirements in the amendments. The Group also intends
to apply the relief from restating comparative information for prior
periods upon adoption of the amendments.

HK (IFRIC)-Int 23, addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12. The interpretation does not apply to taxes or
levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain
tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the assumptions
an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an
entity considers changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is
to be applied retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use
of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of application
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial application,
without the restatement of comparative information. The Group expects
to adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The interpretation is
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates or
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in
the associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of

the Group's investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or
joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment

and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as
held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current

Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Al
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwiill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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POLICIES (continued)

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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POLICIES (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets,
investment properties and non-current assets classified as held for sale),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.
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POLICIES (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwiill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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Related parties (continued)
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(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

@)

(ii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group; and the sponsoring employers of the post-
employment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or a jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as held for
sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as
further explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and
disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Buildings 2.71% t0 4.75%
Machinery and equipment 9.5% to 19%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of

the lease terms and 20%
Furniture and fixtures 9.5% t0 19%
Motor vehicles 19%
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POLICIES (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.
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POLICIES (continued)

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties
or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the
Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to
the date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sales
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case,
the asset or disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly
probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal
group are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the Group
retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment properties
and financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower
of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets classified as held for sale are not
depreciated or amortised.
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POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives such as certain trademarks
are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The
useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised
and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of
resources to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.



ORI
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

24 EXRETTBERME (&

i EERAE CRERFERIN) BAED |
HEEREBEAEBENHEGARI SR
EME-mEMERYE HEEENK
A EEE N RBER R EERRA
WERBERE (FIEMAERIN) AR A
RERFBERE - ENMCBEREMFE
MEE BREBMEMEMNENLHEEN
FoBIAME  BMELREA AIREE
FHAEENMG A EAFHME R
RESAEFE - LABHENREXNABE
BRPHER UREEFHAAELERE
BRI,

FRRELEHEHBANERSNEET AR
BEHE BRESNMGE I ERFHAR

o

HBEADRBEEAEOBARE D B &
EEROEEGARISREHE - RHA
SEAHEA AEERELEHELHE
MEEIAFRBDEE MELHEERT
ERESZEEFMAEREF ARS
R-MAEER/AEAN KEHEERTRE
AR HEA WA A RERIR
HEFHUNERERNEBRRAME -

REMEBRTWAN L HEERENHIR
AR - ER N EF AR ERERE

27
o ©

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss
50 as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature are
accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at

cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.
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POLICIES (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for manageing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
"“Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)"” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group's business model for manageing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt
instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling.

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt
instruments) (continuec))

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income,
interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed
in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to the statement
of profit or loss.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or
non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as
a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative;
and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or
a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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POLICIES (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with positive net changes in
fair value presented as other income and gains and negative net changes
in fair value presented as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
These net fair value changes do not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable before 1
January 2018)" below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and
only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2018 155



ORI
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

24 EXRSTHBEME (& 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

Bl R FEW KR

B Bl E 3 T E N SB N BAER BT S 3R
BENERMERKBERIFTESREE -
RGBT ER REEEERAERME
TR SRR AR R E B 5T 8 - 5
BHENAE - SEEBEMRBITESE
& WEt ABREFRFRAR 5 HE D8
BRAA - BERMEREHE DT ABEER
B B A WA R W g o OB EE AR Y B TR T
BaER AR RE R RE KA R &R
EREMEM -

o7 {H HH A= <
e /ﬁuu =iz

A ESRRERIFLTRERERE
BREFTFHITESBREE - N RARAH
HENRBIRENERIEDERFEEE
XIFEE /B A EE AR BRER
B BRI THESES DiE RS ER
B ATRERSESFRLAMNKE
i S ERES -

RAaRERER  JHEESRIBTERRN
RAEBEFE RERKEHEERAH
HERBEEMHREHERSEMEE K
HERILERRE (Rt mEnE
BRABEZREBPRA) SIREREER
ERE(RTRaExBEEEIHEERE
BREEFTIBREEGRMNEMKER
BR) B - BEAHEESRIRE AR
BB R B D R 2 AT B WA RS
WA ARBETX [HamfER (RF—N
F-A—BER) ] TEBRNEERA
ERR/EAMUA -

156 01854% zErscEsRAF

POLICIES (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses
for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assets
in unlisted equity investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are neither classified as held
for trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “ Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January
2018)" below.



ORI
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

24 EXRSTHBEME (&) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

EILTEERENDAEBEAN QAR
BEEAEMABEMNBUZRENE B
B A (b) i €6 [E A B AR ET A R 2 A
BEFEYARET AR EEM R AT SE
FPER  REREUKNRERIKERSE
FIBR

Ssp /g )
X g (#5/

AEEFHEERHALEETHEESR
BEMENRERNZENAEE - HERIK
BRT  EAREEERZERETSMEE
BEEZSeREER WEEERRENR
ERAEABRNREAXSEELAREE
A AEEEEENROBRLEERE
o

RUEATHEEENEF O BN REEN
TOEMOBEEENAAEERBERS
HA B AR - AT 2 R R R %
BET RSB IRRABRMNEERR
BRI B F N AT AR - ST KA
SR HNENZRTRAEERN
FENBERNRFRANBHE MEEHR
WEBERCHE M ARSNESREN

DEREBRBR-

POLICIES (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continuea)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its available-
for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate. When, in
rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial assets
due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets if management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the
fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest
rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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POLICIES (continued)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income,
the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At each reporting
date, the Group evaluates whether the debt investments are considered
to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation,
the Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt investments.
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POLICIES (continued)

The Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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POLICIES (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component and
lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unguoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted
equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an
investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective
evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there
is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale, impairment
is assessed based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at
amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Future interest
income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount
of the asset using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest
income is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses on debt
instruments are reversed through the statement of profit or loss if the
subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and
only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, except for the gains or losses arising from
the Group's own credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive
income with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (policies under HKAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and
only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on a weighted average method and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially
measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher
of (i) the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the
general guidance for provisions above; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the guidance for revenue recognition.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
puUrposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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POLICIES (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to the statement of profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments
or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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POLICIES (continued)

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the grants are
recorded at the fair value of the non-monetary assets and released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful lives of the relevant
assets by equal annual instalments.

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no or at a
below-market rate of interest for the construction of a qualifying asset,
the initial carrying amount of the government loans is determined using
the effective interest rate method, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Financial liabilities” above. The benefit of the government
loans granted with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which is
the difference between the initial carrying value of the loans and the
proceeds received, is treated as a government grant and released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continueq)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale of pharmaceutical products

Revenue from the sale of pharmaceutical products is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer.

Some contracts for the sale of pharmaceutical products provide
customers with rights of return and volume rebates. The rights of return
and volume rebates give rise to variable consideration.

(i) Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return
the goods within a specified period, the expected value method
is used to estimate the goods that will not be returned because
this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group will be entitled. The requirements in HKFRS 15
on constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied in
order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can
be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised.
A right-of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost
of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products from a
customer.
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POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continueq)

(i) Volume rebates
Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain
customers once the quantity of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are
offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the
variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the most
likely amount method is used for contracts with a single-volume
threshold and the expected value method for contracts with
more than one volume threshold. The selected method that best
predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by
the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The
requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration
are applied and a refund liability for the expected future rebates is
recognised.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Other income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.
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POLICIES (continued)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on
the following bases:

(@  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b)  rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(0 interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(d)  dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established.

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for
the earned consideration that is conditional.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to
a customer for which the Group has received a consideration (or an
amount of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays the consideration before the Group transfers goods or services
to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.
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POLICIES (continued)

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria
are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract
that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(©  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the pattern of the revenue to which the asset related is recognised. Other
contract costs are expensed as incurred.

A right-of-return asset represents the Group's right to recover the goods
expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the
former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any expected
costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value
of the returned goods. The Group updates the measurement of the asset
recorded for any revisions to its expected level of returns, as well as any
additional decreases in the value of the returned goods.

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the
consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and is measured
at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to return to
the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and
the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each
reporting period.
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POLICIES (continued)

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises the agreed
contract amount. Costs of rendering services comprise labour and
other costs of personnel directly engaged in providing the services and
attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised based on the
percentage of completion of the transaction, provided that the
revenue, the costs incurred and the estimated costs to completion can
be measured reliably. The percentage of completion is established by
reference to the costs incurred to date as compared to the total costs
to be incurred under the transaction. Where the outcome of a contract
cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent that
the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management. Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
treated as an amount due from contract customers. Where progress
billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due to contract
customers.

Pension scheme

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme or state-managed
retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the local government in the PRC.
The Group is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll
costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is
to make the specified contributions.

Hong Kong

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme which is
registered under a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees.
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POLICIES (continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group
measures foreign currency transactions in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries. In determining the
functional currencies of the group’s entities, each entity takes into
consideration the currency that mainly influences sales prices for goods
and services; the currency of the country whose competitive forces and
regulations mainly determine the sale prices of the entity’s goods and
services; and the currency that mainly influences labour, material and
other costs of providing goods or services; and the currency in which
financing activities were made and the currencies in which receipts from
operating activities are retained.

Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange rate for the
period.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
average exchange rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Control over Dong-E-E-Jiao

The Group has accounted for Dong-E-E-Jiao as a subsidiary of the Group
and is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. As at 31 December
2018, the Group directly holds 8.12% (2017: 6.65%) in Dong-E-E-Jiao
and indirectly holds a further interest in Dong-E-E-Jiao through China
Resources Dong-E-E-Jiao Company Limited ( £ 8 5 f ff B B R
7)) ("CR Donge"), a 56.62% subsidiary of the Company which holds a
23.14% (2017: 23.14%) equity interest in Dong-E-E-Jiao. The remaining
68.74% (2017: 70.21%) of shareholdings of Dong-E-E-Jiao are owned
by thousands of shareholders that are unrelated to the Group. As at
31 December 2018, The Group's equity interest in Dong-E-E-Jiao was
21.22% (2017: 19.75%).
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AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Control over Dong-E-E-Jiao (continued)

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not the Group has
control over Dong-E-E-Jiao based on whether the Group has the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of Dong-E-E-Jiao unilaterally. In
making their judgement, the directors of the Company considered the
Group's absolute size of holding in Dong-E-E-Jiao and the relative size
of and dispersion of the shareholdings owned by the other shareholders
and in addition, the Group has the practical right to appoint the majority
members of the board of directors of Dong-E-E-Jiao. After assessment,
the directors of the Company concluded that the Group has sufficient
dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities of Dong-E-E-Jiao
and therefore the Group has control over Dong-E-E-Jiao.

Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the directors of
the Company have reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group's investment properties are held under
a business model whose objective to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred tax on investment
properties, the directors of the Company have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale
is rebutted.

As a result, the Group has recognised deferred tax on changes in fair
value of investment properties on the basis that the deferred tax reflects
the tax consequences that will follow from the manner in which the
Group expects at the end of the reporting period to recover the carrying
amount of the investment properties.
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AND ESTIMATES (continued)

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and equipment
have any indication of impairment, in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies. The recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment have been determined based on the higher of the fair value
less cost of disposal and value in use calculations. These calculations and
valuations require the use of judgment and estimates on future operating
cash flows and discount rates adopted. In case where the recoverable
amounts of property, plant and equipment assessed are higher or less
than expected, a material reversal or recognition of impairment of
property, plant and equipment may arise, which would be recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which such recognition takes place.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generated unit to which the asset belongs.

When determining whether goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to which goodwill and
intangible assets have been allocated, which is the higher of the value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
or change in facts and circumstances which results in downward revision
of future cash flows, a material impairment loss/further impairment loss
may arise.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Provision for expected credlit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables.
The provision rates are based on the ageing of trade receivables for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns
(i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and
coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are expected
to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group'’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs
on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in Note 25 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Impairment of interests in associates

The carrying amount of interests in associates is reviewed for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 whenever certain events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The Group determines the recoverable amount which is the higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use is based
on the estimations of future expected cash flows from the associates and
a suitable discount rate. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
or more than expected, or there are favourable or unfavourable events
and changes in facts and circumstances which result in revision of future
estimated cash flows, a material impairment loss may arise or reverse.
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3.

—NFE+-A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

BX

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Allowance for inventories

The Group makes allowance for inventories based on an assessment
of the net realisable value of inventories. Allowances are applied to
inventories where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
net realisable value is lower than the cost of inventories. The identification
of obsolete inventories requires the use of judgement and estimates on
the conditions and usefulness of the inventories. In cases where the net
realisable value of inventories assessed are less than expected, a material
recognition of allowance for inventories may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which such recognition takes
place.

Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2018, deferred tax assets of HK$621,419,000
(2017: HK$573,516,000), in relation to unused tax losses and deductible
temporary differences have been recognised in the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the taxable
future profits generated are less or more than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which result in revision of future taxable profits
estimation, a material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax
assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting
policy for research and development costs in Note 2.4 to the financial
statements. Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires
management to make assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to be applied and the expected
period of benefits.
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4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segment based on the
reports reviewed by the board of directors that are used to make
strategic decisions. The board of directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker (CODM), considers resource allocation
and assesses segment performance from a different business type
perspective.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as
follows:

(@  Pharmaceutical manufacturing business (Manufacturing segment)
— research and development, manufacture and sale of a broad
range of pharmaceutical and healthcare products;

(b)  Pharmaceutical distribution business (Distribution segment)
— distribution, warehousing, logistics, and other value-added
pharmaceutical supply chain solutions and related services to
pharmaceutical manufacturers and dispensers, such as hospitals,
distributors and retail pharmacies;

(©  Pharmaceutical retail business (Retail segment) — operation of
retailing of pharmacy stores;

(d)  Other business operations (Others) — property holding.

No operating segments have been aggregated to derive the reportable
segments of the Group.

Inter-segment sales are conducted at prices and terms mutually agreed
amongst those operating segments, with reference to the selling prices
used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

The board of directors assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of revenue and segment results.
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4, DEER () 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DESEEIE T R BEEAM U A - Eablk Segment results represent the profit earned by each segment without
ShER-TTHEY HMBEX - o582 allocation of other income, other gains and losses, administrative
NEIREEOHEELBMERAT &9 expenses, other expenses, share of results of associates and joint ventures
SMEEEEHE T o I BB RO R R IR and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
HAEFERERAREEROAEEE purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.
BERSHRBERESHBESEER For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating

resources between segments:

o FIABEE (BERHBARNKE R o all assets (including investments in subsidiaries and the amounts
FEWAREFBNEETENNIE) DD due from group entities within the Group) are allocated to
EARESPEE  TBEIFELEFE reportable segment assets other than deferred tax assets and tax
BERITKEHIE: & recoverable; and

. MEaE (pEENAEBAERE . all liabilities (including the amounts due to group entities within the
BUNHIE) SR ENREDLAE - Group) are allocated to reportable segment liabilities other than
TEREAETFHMENRIE  ENT certain other payables, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities, bank
BORLERIEAE RITER BE borrowings, short-term debentures, bonds payable and other non-
HEE s EREFLREMIERSE current liabilities.

/B
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HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018
4. DEER () 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DEY IR N ELE Segment revenue and results
L,{T;Eﬁz—jeg&i& & 4 i) o> 2B S N 5 B UK The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
m BB DT reportable and operating segment:
BE-_E—-NE+-A=+—HLEE Year ended 31 December 2018
L DD ZENH Hity st
Manufacturing  Distribution Retail
segment segment segment Others Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
axdl 6 Segment revenue
ShEbEEE External sales 31,939,850 152,150,542 5,454,635 144080 189,689,107
DEEEE Inter-segment sales 3,103,805 3,178,293 - - 628,098
35,043,655 155,328,835 5,454,635 144,080 195,971,205
#i- Elimination:
HEHHEHE Elimination of inter-segment sales (6,282,098)
AE MR Segment revenue 189,689,107
PEEE Segment results 8,689,898 7,714,721 105,959 78921 16,589,499
EfA Other income 1,854,650
Atz REE Other gains and losses 3357
1B Administrative expenses (4,793,429)
Hifx Other expenses (1,351,850)
MEBEDRRAE L E SR Share of profits of associates
and joint ventures 137,168
BEKAK Finance costs (3,196,631)
BRERTRT Profit before tax 9,242,764
186 018544 zusmsemEsRLAF
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HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

4. DEER () 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DEIN R ELE (4E) Segment revenue and results (continued)
HE—_Z—+FE+-_B=+—HIEE Year ended 31 December 2017
BESH Wik -pa! ZEND Hty st
Manufacturing  Distribution Retail
segment segment segment Others Total
BET T BETFT BETT BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
panill Segment revenue
IMPEHE External sales 26,362,495 141,826,457 4,243,563 99,689 172,532,204
DEEEE Inter-segment sales 2,974,037 2,769,030 = = 5,743,067
29,336,532 144,595,487 4,243,563 99,689 178,275,271
#: Flimination:
BB D BEHE Elimination of inter-segment sales (5,743,067)
DEE Segment revenue 172,532,204
PEEE Segment results 7,666,497 6,564,397 116,496 50973 14,407,363
RN Other income 1417493
Hiwlham REiE Other gains and losses (32,486)
TBAY Administrative expenses (4,247,079)
Hiwm% Other expenses (872,789)
PEHERFIRAELERT Share of profits of associates and
joint ventures 140,795
BEMA Finance costs (2,230,949)
TNl Profit before tax 8,582,348
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HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

4. DEPER () 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
PEEERERE Segment assets and liabilities
AT RIZATME RS e BEAEBEE The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
REBR AN : reportable and operating segments:
—E-NF+ZHA=+—H 31 December 2018
HEAT piK BN ZE0H At i wst
Manufacturing ~ Distribution Retail
segment segment segment Others  Elimination Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BETT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
NHEE Segment assets 55,367,088 106,839,747 3,960,300 18,317,298  (8,919,260) 175,565,173
EEREEE Deferred tax assets 621,419
Ak E A Tax recoverable 57,895
BEE Total assets 176,244,487
NEAE Segment liabilties 15140972 55297571 1753478 7,636,920 (17,853,129) 61,975,812
AAREE Unallocated liabilities 53,739,616
raf Total liabilities 115,715,428
—E—+F+-A=+—H 31 December 2017
HEDH piXi B ZENH 2 i st
Manufacturing ~ Distribution Retail
segment segment segment Others  Elimination Total

AETT  ARTT  A%TR  AETR  ABTR  B%Tx
HK$000  HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

PREE Segment assets 50,087,540 100,140,907 3,630,903 61,912,049 (55,631,339) 160,140,060
REFEEE Deferred tax assets 573,516
U EFIA Tax recoverable 40,572
BEE Total assets 160,754,148
PHEE Segment liabilities 11513218 57458446 1,651,173 22,593,897 (35473406) 57,743,328
*oRERE Unallocated liabilities 39,873,650
waf Total liabilities 97,616,978

' 188 0185 4% zrrssmsRA=
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HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

4, DEPER} (4 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
BE—E—-NE+=-_HA=+—HIEE Year ended 31 December 2018
BENH DD ZENH Hith st
Manufacturing  Distribution Retail
segment segment segment Others Total
BETT BT T BT T BET T BEF T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SR EDBEENTE: Amounts included in the
measurement of segment results:
nE BEREERE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 738,958 222,890 23,827 - 985,675
BRTBEFIRES Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments 6,420 2,822 - - 9,242
BV AESH Amortisation of
intangible assets 57,504 96,079 - - 153,583
THREFANAESS Amounts regularly provided to
MR AGTED BEEK the board of directors of
DEEENFIE: the Company but not included in
the measurement of segment
results or segment assets:
BENEAABEEDHAEENYE  Gainarising on change in fair value of
investment properties - - - 81,354 81,354
EHRAMBYGTIERERORMESE  Imparment recognised on trade
and other receivables 67,065 30,525 733 1171 99,494
RHERREFERE Allowance for slow-moving and
obsolete inventories 44,097 262 - - 44,359
nE BELEGBRIANAESE Impairment recognised on
property, plant and equipment 22,545 - - - 22,545
PEAEBRANAE Impairment recognised on goodwil 20,109 - = - 20,109
W% BERRENE *Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 154,749 151,765 3,532 15,581 325,627
AT BT *Amortisation of prepaid
land lease payments 60,981 27,354 98 1,390 89,823
“EIVEERE *Amortisation of
intangible assets 36,124 16,394 - - 52,518
HEXRRAX **(Capital expenditure 1,856,200 679,704 48,541 29676 2,614,121

/B
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HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2017

4. DEER (&)

Hftb o #BEHR (&)
BE-_FT—tFt-A=1T—"HLEE

BENH PEHD ZENH HAth st
Manufacturing  Distribution Retail
segment segment segment Others Total
BET T BEF T BETT BETIT BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SAGENPERNFTE: Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss:
nE BEREERE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 712,189 281,481 6,962 - 1,000,632
BRTEEFIRES Amortisation of prepaid
land lease payments 18,283 8,483 126 4,066 30,958
BREAESE Amortisation of intangible assets 47,846 25,773 = = 73,619
EHRETARAESE Amounts regularly provided to
T s A ED BEES the board of directors of
DEEENFE: the Company but not included in
the measure of segment
profit or loss or segment assets:
BENEAABEEDHAEENYE  Gainarising on change in fair value of
investment properties - - - 57,772 57,772
HEHREMEYGIEHRLFE  Impaiment recognised on
trade and other receivables 6,445 71,952 5% - 78,993
BHERREFERE Allowance for slow-moving and
obsolete inventories 10,969 24,498 1,097 - 36,564
BOE BE R ERROHE Impairment recognised on
property, plant and equipment 9,931 3,805 282 76 14,094
PEERANAE Impairment recognised on goodwil - 59,244 = = 59,244
W% BERRENE *Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 196,804 63,530 1,824 - 262,158
AT BT *Amortisation of prepaid
land lease payments 27,806 11,662 102 5,772 45,342
BV EERH *Amortisation of intangible assets 92,636 60,360 S = 152,99
EARY **Capital expenditure 1,333,009 615,229 23478 33,915 2,005,631
* TBE S BB £ i E B Y * Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments, depreciation of property,

2 B RREITEREEER

** BAHZBREYE B RRE REYE e
REBEE (BIEWKENBRAFELZ
BE)a)E

190 01854% zErsEcEsRAR
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plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets are included in
administrative expenses.

Capital expenditure consists of addiitions to property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and intangible assets including assets from
acquisition of subsidiaries.
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HE_ZT— ) \F+-_A=+—HIFE Fortheyeare

4. DEER (&) 4,
632 % 4}
(@) REINEBEP #aE

nded 31 December 2018

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information
(@  Revenue from external customers

A [ A 3t Mainland C
EB Hong Kong

2018 2017

BT T EETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

hina 188,584,682 171,577,064
1,104,425 955,140

189,689,107 172,532,204

P ER YRR P -

(b)y RWMBUBESNIERDEE

AEENKETBMUNPE RETF
PHREENES INERBDEE
BRI R -

EHEETERFMER
RERERT EERZENREET BB
AREEBINZTAI0% ©

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the
customers.

(b)  Non-current assets by geographical location

The Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC and
substantially all non-current assets are located in the PRC by
location of assets.

Information about major customers
No revenue from customers in each reporting period individually
contributed to over 10% of the total revenue of the Group.

5. U&= 5. REVENUE
W DM : An analysis of revenue is as follows:

2018
BET T
HK$'000

REREFE LMK Revenue from contracts with customers
HESRBSER Sale of pharmaceutical products 189,574,548

R B E A AR Revenue from other sources

REREMFEHESWA Rental income from investment properties 114,559
189,689,107
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BE-F—\F+-AS+—AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

5. Uz (&) 5. REVENUE (continued)
2017
BT
HK$'000
HEBEEEM Sales of pharmaceutical products 172,432,515
REREMENTHSKA Rental income from investment properties 99,689
172,532,204
REEFEHNRE Revenue from contracts with customers
i)y HDEUREER (i)  Disaggregated revenue information
BE-_EZE—N\E+-A=+—HLEE For the year ended 31 December 2018
HEDH piXi B ZENH 2 ik o)
Manufacturing  Distribution Retail
segment segment segment Others  Elimination Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
R ERN R Timing of revenue recognition
R BRI 2 Atapoint in time 35,115,531 155256959 5,454,635 29,521  (6,282,098) 189,574,548

REEFENNRHAR

with customers

Total revenue from contracts

35,115,531 155,256,959 5,454,635 29521 (6,282,098) 189,574,548

TRETIN AR E R ERNF A SRS S
MNataEnkEA kBt BEAETT

MBENRERIBNKEZ SR

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised
from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

2018
BETT
HK$°000
ERRNTT ARSEHYE OB ENKE: Revenue recognised that was included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
EmiEE Sale of goods 1,393,881
192 oissea EnsmsmaRAF
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HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018
5. W& (& 5. REVENUE (continued)
(i) E\TEME (i) Performance obligations
AR AEEETEENER S Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
T summarised below:
B fiE Sale of pharmaceutical products
PR BREE DHEE  WERERHN For sale of pharmaceutical products, revenue is recognised when
PR T IABR BRIR P, — control of the goods has transferred. The trading terms with its
MBETERMZIEIN  AEBEERXE customers are mainly on credit, except for new customers, where
BOBRAITEAEERFR -HLHAEL payment in advance is normally required. Some contracts provide
AEPRMHESHEELHELOIN  HE customers with a right of return and volume rebates which give
HHIRIERH MES ] ZRE- rise to variable consideration subject to constraint.
R-ZE—NF+_A=+—H %7~ The remaining performance obligations as at 31 December 2018
BITEEEHEN —FRNER- are expected to be recognised within one year.
6. Hithz KR E#E 6. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
2018 2017
B 5 BT T BT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HERE QR Mk Gain on disposal of associates 550 3
HEHEERENRE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments - 7,701
HEEREENRE Gain on disposal of intangible assets 18,037 10,746
HEME BERRENER Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (7,048) (7,540)
HEBM LA EREAWZE  Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease
payments - 1,321
ME - BE KR EER Impairment loss recognised on property,
HRVE SR plant and equipment 14 (22,545) (14,094)
FE F R FIEERAEERE © Impairment loss recognised on trade
R receivables, net 25 (91,224) (66,507)
FLE M FE U B AR B8 + Impairment loss recognised on other
R receivables, net 25 (8,270) (12,486)
FEERRANRERE Impairment loss recognised on goodwill 17 (20,109) (59,244)
FAIH L SR ERRAFFERE  Impairment loss recognised on available-for-
sale investments 21 - (10,919)
LAREBEFTEAHEZEHFT A Fairvalue changes on financial assets at
BalemEENAREERZE fairvalue through profit or loss 88,167 =
KREYERNAEBEEZS Fair value changes on investment properties 15 81,354 57,772
A HERENRERA Investment income on available-for-sale
investments - 154,070
HAh Others (35,555) (93,309)
3,357 (32,486)
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HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

7. BRBIRRA

AEBEOBRBANER DEME (GHA)

AN B BEEER:
2018 2017
B3 BEET T BET T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
= EH Directors’ remuneration 9 15,840 23,637
EERNFX Employee benefit expense
(TBREEEEHM) (excluding directors’ remuneration)
TERES Wages and salaries 7,352,368 6,969,907
RIRAEFIET B 5K Retirement benefit scheme contribution 734,386 689,659
B TR A4R%E Total staff costs 8,102,594 7,683,203
1% 2R B 357 T Auditors’ remuneration 13,296 18,012
M BERERETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 14 1,311,302 1,262,790
mEEEE Amortisation of intangible assets 18 206,101 226,615
TEfS T 1o FE & FRIB 8 Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 16 99,065 76,300
HHEMREESRE Allowance for slow-moving and
obsolete inventories 44,359 36,564
BRAEEKAHFERAR Cost of inventories recognised as cost of sales 153,748,713 143,463,829
EE X (FrARMFA) Research and development expenditure
(included in other expenses) 1,015,244 858,024
KEHBEE THERENRK Minimum lease payments under
operating lease 636,122 532,910
B EE, (M) F58 Foreign exchange loss/(gain), net 257,388 (44,511)
B Donations 38,115 14,765
AR B A Dividend income (2,216) (6,618)
S Bh Government grants (348,213) (364,641)
MEYA Interest income (716,102) (253,959)
REYENES WAL Gross rental income from
investment properties (114,559) (99,689)
VRN =/E I EVCob kA Less: direct operating expenses arising from
IWATMEENBEEZEKLEER rental-earning investment properties 36,414 39,716
(78,145) (59,973)

194 018558 zErscEsRAR
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HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

8. BhEMA

8. FINANCE COSTS

2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITERFE Interest on bank borrowings 2,702,405 1,901,920
BAREEFAEME KD Finance costs arising from initial measurement
B 5 W FRIB VA TR E £ 8 of trade receivables at fair value through
B &R AN other comprehensive income 274,226 =
FEREHFE Interest on bonds payable 219,883 299,682
A —RAEIER A B ERF B Interest on borrowings from
an intermediate holding company 4,931 65,398
B E - HE RRENE RS Less: Interest capitalised in property,
(K1z2) plant and equipment (Note) (4,814) (36,051)
3,196,631 2,230,949

Wit . BAEFERRIE mliZE B EENE
Bt REXEREHEE W%469% (= F
—EF  5.8%)HIFEINEFIETE & B

BEELHHY -

9. EERESITTHRAENHME 9.

RBELETRA FE Q&P E383(1)
@ () OkOHERAR (REEENR
BERDROFE2HABRBEAFENESE R K

annum to expenditure on qualifying assets.

REMUNERATION

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

Note: Capitalised interest arose on funds borrowed specifically for the purpose
of obtaining qualifying assets and on the general borrowing pool which
is calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 4.69% (2017: 5.8%) per

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

STHBAEHBESNT Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
PN
Group
2018 2017
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
wme Fees 1,268 1,244
Hae : Other emoluments:
e M H =R Salaries and other allowances 14,417 22,260
RRBFET 850 Retirement benefit scheme contributions 155 133
HAtb Others 541 486
15,113 22,879
16,381 24,123
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HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

0. %?&E'E'ﬁ S1TBRABNME 9. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
(#&) REMUNERATION (continued)
LB ERESTHAENHESEBSIEAR The above directors’ and chief executive's remuneration only included
NEEBIIERITES - HITES NIEH remuneration during the tenure of each Independent non-executive
TEENEH S director, Executive director and Non-executive director of the Company.
(a) BYIEHITES (@  Independent non-executive directors
FRABILIEHITEEL B S The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the
(1 N year were as follows:
2018 2017
BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRIzt Mdm Shing Mo Han Yvonne
(RZZE—EFNALBEZT) (appointed on 7 August 2017) 300 102
TR Mr. Tsang Hing Lun
(RZE—LFXAMAEHE) (passed away on 4 June 2017) = 250
B KL Mr. Kwok Kin Fun 300 251
BEERLSE Mr. Fu Tingmei 300 251
ok 7o BR S A Mr. Zhang Kejian 368 390
1,268 1,244
FRASEBMBERES N THILIER There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
TEEMNEMHFEH (= —+F: non-executive directors during the year (2017: Nil).
/) o
196 0554 EnszsmaRAF
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9. EEREBSTHAENEE o

==

=
=l

(b) HITEF FATEERZSTHA

=
=

7

IEREERAREBNEERITE
REXBBEZHFMHERBRERER

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)  Executive directors, non-executive directors and the chief executive

Mr. Wang Chuncheng is the chief executive officer of the Group
and the emoluments disclosed above include those for services

HITEIREM R - rendered by him as the chief executive officer.
ek BIMERIFE
ik HRE 3 Hty st
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees  allowances contributions Others Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
“E-N\§ 2018
HiTES: Executive directors:
TEREE Mr. Wang Chuncheng - 5,638 78 178 5,894
RELE Mr. Song Qing
(RZE-NENARBEL) (resigned on 6 August 2018) - 5,347 59 140 5,546
FEEEE Mr. Li Guohui - 3432 18 23 3,673
- 14,417 155 541 15,113

FHTES:

BEERE

EES

aEERE
(R=B-NFRA+\BEZf)

RERELE

ITRESE
(R=B-NFRA+\BEZf)

IRGRE
(R=B-NFRATNARE)

IRzt
(R=B-N\FRATNARE)

Non-executive directors:
Mr.Fu Yuning
Mr.Chen Rong
Mr Lyu Ruizhi

(appointed on 18 May 2018)
Mr.Yu Zhongliang
MR Wang Shouye

(appointed on 18 May 2018)
Mr. Wang Chenyang

(resigned on 18 May 2018)
Ms. Wang Jing

(resigned on 18 May 2018)
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HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

0. %;5& ES{THRAENNE 9. DIRECTORS’' AND CHI EF EXECUTIVE'S
= REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) HITES IERTEERZSITHA (b)  Executive directors, non-executive directors and the chief executive
8 (&) (continued)
Hek BINEFGE
Hne HRE 3 Hty st
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees  allowances contributions Others Total
BET T BETT BETIT BT BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
I 2 2017
HiTES: Executive directors:
TEREE Mr. Wang Chuncheng - 8,254 78 208 8,540
RELE Mr. Song Qing = 7,345 37 112 7,494
FEEEE Mr. Li Guohui - 6,661 18 166 6,845
- 22,260 133 486 22,879
FRTES: Non-executive directors;
BEELE Mr. Fu Yuning = - - - -
REELAE Mr. Chen Rong S = = = =
RERTAE Mr. Yu Zhongliang S = = = =
TREEE Mr. Wang Chenyang - - = = =
TR&t Ms. Wang Jing = = = = =

FARBEEXERITRABRRE
HABMEEAME 2 28k

198 201854

EHEEEEARAR

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year.
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HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

10. A2 EBeEFMES 10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
ERNELREEFMNEERIE—REE (&£ The five highest paid employees during the year included one director
RARBFEEER -_ZE—NENB/NHE (not include Mr. Song Qing as he had resigned on 6 August 2018)
T ZEBEMBEERN) (ZE—+HF: = (2017: three), details of whose remuneration is set out in Note 9 above.
) WEZME BN L XM - Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2017:
BTHE (ZE—+F ML) WIFERAT two) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
EERRETHRAEBNRESHEEENENRN executive of the Company are as follows:

T
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
e RHEMER Salaries and other allowance 17,380 11,488
RIRTEFIET B3R Retirement benefit scheme contributions 340 116
17,720 11,604
IEERIIGRTRABZEHNESR The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
ZHMBATEROAZRDT employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:
2018 2017
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
754,000,001 7T 2 % #4,500,0007T HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 3 -
755,000,001 7T 2 % #55,500,0007T HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 1 1
756,000,001 7T 2 % #6,500,0007T HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 - 1
4 2
HEzE-_Z-\FER-FE—+tF+=A No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
E+-RLEFE AEEYERALERR individuals (including directors and employees) as an inducement to join
FMAL (BRERESRES)XNEME or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
Bl ¢ 4% b0 B2 7N &2 (3] o 0 BB 7 £ (B 0F i 22 D the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
B AEE
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B=E
11.

—E—)\FF+-A=Z+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

FRiEHi & M

BANEHEFREBEENGBTERR
HHE165% (ZFE—+4F:16.5% ) KT
RaHig e

RETFECXRAGHREA([EEMRER
E) REEMBTEERGS - D EME
RABZZEENF— A HiiZ25%H
GRS O W @b E ) PN
Bl o

ATHEFEEENHERAREGRE DM
BERmEREMEERT SR
¥\ B AH=F BEREMHEBEIM
BRERZZE—AFE_FT - \FHMEESX
5% B RBEMERBE-

Btk 2 Sh - AR BB RL[2012]129% & B &
[2011]585%% NEE A TH R A E R
A EAPAFAETEMBRENERE
B RN ZE——FE T _TFKE
EHEMZEZI5%NEER R AL iR
15% MR EAHHEBLE-

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year.

Under the Law of PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of PRC
subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards, except for those
subsidiaries described below.

Certain subsidiaries operating in Mainland China were accredited as
“High and New Technology Enterprise” by the Science and Technology
Bureau of relevant provinces and other authorities for a term of three
years, and were registered with the local tax authorities to be eligible to
reduce to 15% enterprise income tax rate in period from 2015 to 2018.

Apart from that, according to the Guo Shui 2012 No. 12 and Cai Shui
2011 No. 58, certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group are engaged in
the encouraged business activities under the Development of Western
Region Program, and a preferential tax rate of 15% is granted for an
extended period from 2011 to 2020. As a result, the tax rate of 15% is
used to calculate the amount of current taxation.

2018 2017
BT T BET T
HK$000 HK$'000
BNEAFRIE Current tax
H Bl R PTIS PRC Enterprise Income Tax
(T EIREMRER]) : (“PRC EIT"): 1,823,546 1,795,459
BEBMEFH Hong Kong Profits Tax 3,555 6,311
A& B TER Dividend withholding tax = 171,089
BEFE (BERE) BETR (Over)/underprovisions in prior year
B 1h PTG AR PRC EIT (12,980) 39,928
BEBMFH Hong Kong profits tax (847) —
1,813,274 2,012,787
EERIA (MH5E32) Deferred tax (note 32) (203,121) (297,305)
FARIBS K85 Total tax charge for the year 1,610,153 1,715,482
200 01855H zHBmsEERAF
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HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

. IEHRER (&)

BHEAM (K2 EEARNERERE)
RERERFERBADEN 2 @A R ERX
HIFERRERAE 2 HBAR 2K U
FERBE(MEERK)BEREREX

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rates for Mainland China, where majority of group companies
are domiciled, to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a
reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the

HERWT ¢ effective tax rates, is as follows:
2018 2017
BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B B B Profit before tax 9,242,764 8,582,348
1R25%m) R Bl 1 PTIS I R ST E HTHIE Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income
T —+F:25%) Tax rate 25% (2017: 25%) 2,310,691 2,145,587
DB E RN R G EDEEEN Tax effect of share of results of associates
Mg and joint ventures (34,292) (35,199)
ERGHEBEERWAZRBTZ  Taxeffect of income not taxable for
tax purposes (9,601) (60,117)
ERBEAEAAHBAL ZHIEFE  Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose 156,487 157,087
B 35 A AN 5 B Rk Special deduction of research and
development costs (123,567) (86,773)
HEBWMETHNMEH Income tax on concessionary rate (551,805) (304,930)
EEREKEEEERN AT ERN Effect of different tax rates of group entities
ma operating in Hong Kong (1,858) 17,446
AR ERMTIEEE Utilisation of tax losses not recognised (60,993) (107,585)
FABTRERNAREREE Utilisation of deductible temporary differences
previously not recognised (4,226) (981)
AERHIEEENTIELE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 84,195 141,692
ARERATNREREENTIBELE Tax effect of deductible temporary differences
not recognised (2,307) 4,909
BAFE (RREEE) / BETR (Over)Yunderprovisions in previous years (13,827) 39,928
FARREWE R AR RS RIS/ Deferred tax on undistributed earnings of
BRI TR PRC subsidiaries - 45,657
f% B IBFOF Dividend withholding tax = (171,089)
& B FENFH = Reversal of dividend withholding tax (195,504) =
HAh Others 56,760 (70,150)
FABIEZ H Tax charge for the year 1,610,153 1,715,482

1.4 B B [201813%% + 74 e B P9 o 5 50 R
(BR 2 85 5 h AR B TR 0B EHR A < AN
B SENREREBLRERE
e B PO b B 2 ) AR .+ LA BRS

B iy 5

T AKX =T |3ﬁ

BRAAMNE-—FPER RILBEFE 25
REENBEER  BR-_Z-NF+-A
=t ABEEEHE R

liability was provided as at 31 December 2018.

According to Guo Shui 2018 No. 3, the dividend withholding tax will be
provided when the dividend is paid out of Mainland China. The Group is
in a position to control the quantum and timing of the distribution and
decides to retain the dividend in the subsidiaries in Mainland China for
the further development of such subsidiaries. Therefore, the deferred
tax liability provided in previous years was reversed and no deferred tax
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12. DIVIDENDS

() HWEMAE-—ZT—-—XR"E+AT+tAH
WARRIBRERMAEKE EHEE
(B#) LtrBEEFLREERSR
RAR ([EREERE ] BTN
BHITE B MR AA) KBeijing Equity
Investment Development Fund
(Cayman Il) L.P. (5 RA ARG LAl
RARABERHRZBRE)IENZFT—RX
F+RANBIERKBY2,227.88
BT RIS ([ RIAR B IR EOR 3

EPI

BREARAIBRAE=ZZT—N\F+
) AN = /NE- - - =
ZEINARQBWMBZA DK
Fl-ZFEEeRARTRFRRKREE
#1,559,479,408.507T * H f1 1R &
BRREBRERZRS B MAER
EE(BE)RIEREERERN
FEH1,122,825,174. 12T R
436,654,234.3870 (= ZF — & :
A 1£668,348,3179370) " HE - &
—N\FE+ZA=+—8 HRKRES
#2227 8EELBE_E—N\FE
& /) 7 ¥ 1,559,479,408.50 L & Al
EHEE (88 MILREEREE
HURAT ©

(if)

(i)

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 17 October
2016, CRHP, BSCOMC Investment and Management Co.,
Limited ("BSCOMC Investment”, formerly known as Beijing
Pharmaceutical Investment Limited) and Beijing Equity Investment
Development Fund (Cayman Il) L.P,, being the then shareholders
of the Company prior to the listing of the Company, approved
the Special Dividend of approximately of HK$2,227.8 million on 9
October 2016 (the “Special Dividend Shareholders’ Resolution”).

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 18 October
2018, the board of the directors announced that, taking into
account the distributable profits attained by the Company,
the board of the directors resolved to declare a special
dividend in the amount of HK$1,559,479,408.50, of which
HK$1,122,825,174.12 and HK$436,654,234.38 would be
distributed to CRH (Pharmaceutical) and BSCOMC Investment,
respectively, pursuant to the Special Dividend Shareholders’
Resolution (2017: HK$668,348,317.93). Up to 31 December
2018, the Special Dividend in an aggregate amount of
HK$2,227.8 million, including of HK$1,559,479,408.50 declared
in 2018, has been fully paid to CRHP and BSCOMC Investment.

2018 2017
BT T BEF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRERAEDIRNAABEBEBRIE  Dividend for ordinary shareholders of
PSR &, - the Company recognised as distribution
during the year:
R LEFR—ERTBERKR Final 2017 — HK$0.11 per ordinary share
BEONMT (ZE—+%F: (2017: Final 2016 — HK$0.09 per ordinary
ZE-RER—ERETRER share)
75 #0.097T) 691,297 565,606
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B=_%

12.

RE (&)

RBERIAE AN ESRERBE
—E\E+-A=t+-BIEEEER
R S @RI TE ST (B4
HEO1IEBIT) B EE 40,13
F(ZB—F E0.117T)  HBHR
FREEREAS G S AR

RFERERE WBATNESCER
RS BEEB= N -RMMBREHE
BHEEZZE—N\F+ZA=+—HLF
ERRBERE KESHEIFATRY
BRARE3ID ARBI100D R AR
27.9% BB H R A ARME381,771,000
7T (HERABA35,711,425 T) ~ AR
654,021,5377C (185N E 746,428,240
7o) R AREE291,063,3217T (HEERN B
332,187,6587L) ' ER BIRNBE S ER
BB RARMBRRAEEME QRN ER
RERRE L#ER FEEER-

—NFE+-A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

12. DIVIDENDS (continued)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 of HK$0.13
(2017: HK$0.11) per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of
HK$817 million (2017: HK$691.3 million), has been proposed by
the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
of subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2018 in
respect of CR Sanjiu, Dong-E-E-Jiao and CR Double-Crane,
of RMB39 cents, RMB100 cents and RMB27.9 cents per
ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of RMB381,771,000
(equivalent to HK$435,711,425), RMB654,021,537 (equivalent
to HK$746,428,240) and RMB291,063,321 (equivalent to
HK$332,187,658), respectively, has been proposed by the
directors of the subsidiaries, and is subject to approval by the
shareholders of the subsidiaries in the forthcoming general
meeting of the respective subsidiaries.

13. &R __]f”t BIRERIEFE ARE(  13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
BRERF TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
NGRSt Hﬁ}\yg{glﬂ EAR The calculations of the basic earnings per share attributable to ordinary
MIER T EHE equity holders of the Company are based on:
2018 2017
BT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000
| Earnings
AR EEREREN AR T] Profit attributable to owners of the Company
A AT used in the basic earnings per
share calculation 4,037,890 3,483,036
ROEAR Number of shares
AR EERERBFNFA Weighted average number of ordinary
BEITERRINEFIHE shares in issue during the year used in
the basic earnings per share calculation 6,284,506,461 6,284,506,461

HREZE-Z—N\FEZZE—tF+=
A=+ BLEFETERTEEEEY
Bl WEREHIRANERERELR
F o

Diluted earnings per share equals to the basic earnings per share as there
were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017.
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14. ¥ -BERFZRE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BT BHRXE HENEEs A8 BFAREE W ERIR st
Machinery Furniture ~ Construction
and Leasehold Motor and in
Buildings  equipment improvements vehicles fixtures progress Total
BETr  BETn  BETn BETT BETT BT BETn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A Cost:
R-E-\E-f-H At 1 January 2018 1121039 6,034,249 466,190 372824 1442490 1109937 20,636,086
AE Additions 24,092 337815 42,067 49,876 4424 1217933 2,156,207
e Disposals (54,100 (293324 (17.21) (74,607) (78,035) (13057)  (530,400)
ERZRENENEE Transfer to assets held for sale (Aote 36)

(Hii36) = (62,112) - (4.486) (290) (385,592)  (452,480)
WEWBAR (H257) Acquisition of subsidiaries (\ote 37) 258,560 43,861 911 2,662 5,630 1,736 313,360
HENBLR (Hit38) Disposal of subsidiaries (Mot 38) (1,036) (42,408) = ®) (1,044) = (44,496)
ERERENE (M:E15)  Tansferstoinvestment properties

(Note 13) (61,320) - - = - (2,607) (63927)
SRETENE (WiH15)  Transfer from investment properties

(Note 13) 5993 = = = = = 5993
BEZREALWHAETE  Tansfer toprepaid land lease payments

(H1216) (Note 16) - - - = = (107367)  (107,367)

i Transfers 385,764 147,786 2,189 667 91,860 (628,266) =
ERAE Exchange realignment (573362 (339,619 (15,417) (16,315) (85,613) (87367)  (1,117,69)
RZE-\ETZA=1—H At31 December 2018 11394987 5826248 478,663 330613 1659422 1105350 20,795,283
ZitHE: Accumulated depreciation:
R=E-\E-A-H At 1 January 2018 1812253 2,644,401 244,39 189,867 697,660 - 5588577
FR:HE Provided for the year 384,874 566,041 40,138 54,997 265,252 - 131130
e Disposals (32787)  (45529) (1,800) (11,079) (67,607) = (418,802)
ERZRENENEE Transfer to assets held for sale

(H1#36) (Note 36) = (47,978) = (4,486) (200) - (52,664)
HENBR A Eliminated on disposal of subsiclaries

(H:#38) (Note 38) (500) (36,413) - )l (677) = (37,597)
SRERENE (M215)  Transfer toinvestment properties

(Note 13) (31,062) - = = - = (31,062)
ERAE Exchange realignment (1016700  (126.297) (12,105) (10,017) (43,185) - (293,274)
RZE-\ETZA=1—H At31 December 2018 2031108 2754225 270,629 159,275 851,243 - 6066480
HfE: Impairment:
R=E-\E-A-H At 1 January 2018 - 51,408 162 - 311 257,977 309,858
FRaHE Provided for the year 6,665 9,447 = = 138 6,295 22,545
e Disposals - (10,182) - - - (1,111) (11,293)
ERSRENENEE Transfer to assets held for sale

(H#36) (Note 36) = (14,134) = = (56) (214908)  (229,09)
B A% Exchange realignment - (2,525) - - - (12912) (15437)
RZZF-\E+ZA=+—H At31December 2018 6,665 34,014 162 - 393 35,341 76,575
RESE: Net carmying amount;

RZBE-N\E+ZA=1—H At31 December 2018 9357214 3,038,009 207,872 171,338 807,786 1,070,009 14,652,228
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14. Y% -BWEKRE (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
BT  BERRE HENERB A8 GAREE ERIE gt
Machinery Furniture  Construction
and Leasehold Motor and in
Buildings  equipment improvements vehicles fixtures progress Total
BET T BT T BT BB BB BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A Cost:
RZE-+5-A-H At 1 January 2017 8,956,686 5,262,065 340,446 339,735 1,083,630 1140881 17123443
AE Additions 65,317 219,999 97,086 48,487 197,865 937958 1,566,712
& Disposals (47.132) (240,055) (8,075) (57,157) (57.7118) (11.418) (421,555)
WEMBAR (H:237) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) 653,239 176,542 7934 16,487 20257 28990 903,449
SRETENE(ME15)  Tranfers from investment properties
(Note 15) 156,669 - - - - - 156,669
BRZRENE (M215)  Transfer toinvestment properties
(Note 15) (8,095) - - - - - (8,095)
2 Transfers 703,052 243,154 7346 973 125,641 (1,080,166) -
&% Exchange realignment 730,660 372,544 21,453 24299 72815 93,692 1315463
RZZF—+F+ZA=+—HF At31December 2017 11,210,3% 6,034,249 466,190 372,824 1,442,490 1109937 20,636,086
ZitHE: Accumulated depreciation:
RZE-+5-A-H At 1 January 2017 1,320,725 2,117,426 192,429 176,433 532,797 - 4,339,810
EMHRE Provided for the year 408,247 575,734 43370 48587 186,852 - 126279
irk4 Disposals (23,737) (210,135) (2,166) (49.638) (49,846) - (335,522)
BRZRENE (M215)  Transfer toinvestment properties
(Note 15) (4.853) - - - - - (4.853)
AR Exchange realignment 111,871 161,376 10,763 14,485 27857 S 326,352
RZZF—+F+ZA=+—HF At31December 2017 1812253 2,644,401 244,39 189,867 697,660 - 5,588,577
B Impairment;
RZE-+5-A-H At 1 January 2017 - 39,914 162 - 2431 241,049 283,556
Rzt Provided for the year - 13,738 - - 356 = 14,094
& Disposals - (8,088) - - (2,630) = (10,718)
AR Exchange realignment - 5,844 - - 154 16,928 22,926
RZB—+EFZA=1—H At31December 2017 - 51,408 162 - 311 257,977 309,858
FEFE: Net carying amount:
RZF—+F+ZA=+—HF At31December 2017 9,398,143 3,338,440 21632 182,957 744519 851960 14,737,651

/A
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14. Y% - BEKRZE (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HRAEEETYE BELKXHFENER
MEERRNRE ZEME BE KK
ERNEmEHERERE EE TN
F+-_A=Zt+—BLFECHEIARES
BB 22,545,000 (ZE—+EF: B
14,094,0007T) - HHEEE M 7] B & 58
BIEHENEREERT -

AEBNBFHMLRFEAN B AT H
BHFAE -

RZEMBRREMNER  REF KK
BER-ZE—-N\E+-_A=+—HB2EA
{8 A75%1,904,037,0007T (ZE—+4:
75 #2,889,307,0007) 2 R EMELZEE
FTEREEY B NERFEEEE -A%HE
BEREZSYWENTEESERER
H-RRAREZRE B HBTHEE LK
ZEMEZEBAE IR -

A& B RMEEAE 83,328,000 (=&
— 4 B #44,553,000T ) N IEFEE
HEBAEEERE TRITERNIEA
(Ff7E30) ©

HE-_ZT—N\F+ZA=+—HLHF
BB A4,814,000 (ZF—tF B
36,051,00070) WA B X BEEARLERE
BIRe

BE-_Z—N\E+-_A=+—HBILFE"
AEERABYE=H /BEWNBAGH
FAETANRPEAE Y I &%
FTERYEEREWSE (WE15) W
REREBHNEEERARBED B
A5 #32,865,000T (ZF — £ F - &
3,242,0007T) & & #74,097,0007C (= F
—+ 45 ##24,278,0007T) - ARNEBES
RERAEEMN Z588%41,232,000t (= F
— & & %21,036,0000T) FEE L2
WSk BEMA WS-

BHE-_Z2—N\F+-_A=+—HBLHF
E-aBYE=h/REKBAFGEA
METIREMEREAERER (R
THEEREEMETR ) BREEYE .-
BMELEHE REZEBH MEIALE
B %5,993,000c (Z T —tF: 8K
156,669,0007T) FEW %« W FE R & ERIE
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(continued)

Due to physical damage and technical obsolescence in respect of the
Group's certain property, plant and equipment, the carrying values of
these property, plant and equipment were impaired and impairment
losses of HK$22,545,000 have been recognised for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$14,094,000). The recoverable amounts of
the relevant assets have been determined based on their respective value
in use.

The Group's buildings are all situated in Mainland China and are held
under medium term leases.

At the date of the approval of these financial statements, the Group had
not yet obtained the building ownership certificates of certain buildings
with a carrying value of HK$1,904,037,000 as at 31 December 2018
(2017: HK$2,889,307,000) and are still in the process of application
of title certificates. The Group continues to possess these properties
without objection from the relevant authorities. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the risk of the relevant government authorities
confiscating these properties is relatively low.

The Group's buildings with a carrying value of HK$83,328,000 (2017:
HK$44,553,000) were pledged to secure the bank borrowings granted
to the Group (Note 30).

The interest expenses of HK$4,814,000 during the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: HK$36,051,000) were capitalised into
construction in progress.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group rented out certain
properties located in Mainland China to independent third parties/fellow
subsidiaries and transferred owner-occupied properties to investment
properties (Note 15). The carrying amount and fair value of the
properties were approximately HK$32,865,000 (2017: HK$3,242,000)
and HK$74,097,000 (2017: HK$24,278,000) on the date of transfer,
respectively. The excess of HK$41,232,000 (2017: HK$21,036,000)
of the fair value over the carrying amount was recorded in other
comprehensive income as a revaluation gain.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, certain investment properties
which had been rented out to independent third parties/fellow
subsidiaries have been transferred to property, plant and equipment
upon the change of their uses, evidenced by commencement of owner
occupation. The fair value of properties at the date of transfer amounted
to HK$5,993,000 (2017: HK$156,669,000) becomes the deemed cost
recognised as property, plant and equipment.
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HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

15. REWY%E 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R—A—B/REAEE Carrying amount at 1 January 1,413,085 1,390,245
NE Additions 11,342 -
WEEMH B A aF) (K15E37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) 44,193 =
RiERP RN AN BEZE)FHE Net change of fair value recognised in
profit or loss 81,354 57,772
EREME BEREE (Ki14) Transfer from property, plant and equipment
(Note 14) 74,097 24,278
EREYE WEREE (Ki14) Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(Note 14) (5,993) (156,669)
Ik Exchange realignment (76,641) 97,459
FAREREE Carrying amount at end of the year 1,541,437 1,413,085

EEAREVENAABER  REEY
BRREEBUEXSERMEMETTH
B-ERERBYAEREXMGHEMTY
BF M EENHERTD RIEL N
ABUE-

AEBREMER_FT-NF+=A
=t HNARBEDNIENRBILIASERE
EHEMARR (LR BBREEFEHE
RABETHHREMER - R_T—/\F
TZR=+—B 2ABENREAEE
EoREMENmARHBEEMNTISE
ERBEEREBMERBANT S R aE X
AERME -TSHE2EYETLEE
IS AR R O EN 4 H S
SUERHE BB E D2 R ERALEAY
EHEXSMBRAED MEEL FHRAE
Uet R EREENT S AU RRAE
BEHREMERAENER - REAMKANH
MED AL EE LR -

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, it is the Group’s
policy to engage independent professional qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. Management works closely with the independent qualified
professional valuers to establish the appropriate valuation technique and
inputs to the model.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31 December
2018 have been arrived at based on valuations carried out by Vocation
(Beijing) International Asset Valuation Co., Ltd., an independent qualified
professional valuer. As at 31 December 2018, the fair value was
determined based on the income approach, where the market rentals
of all lettable units of the properties are assessed and discounted at the
market yield expected by investors for this type of properties. The market
rentals are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable
units of the properties as well as other lettings of similar properties in
the neighbourhood. The discount rate is determined by reference to the
yields derived from analysis the sales transactions of similar commercial
properties in the PRC and adjusted to take into account the market
expectation from property investors to reflect factors specific to the
Group's investment properties. There has been no change from the
valuation method used during the year. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use.
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HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

15. REYI* (/& 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
NAEBEER Fair value hierarchy
TRITRAEFBREMENDABETS The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
[ A : Group's investment properties:

ERERTAHERARIE
EITHARBENS
(B=#%)

Fair value measurement
using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

HTIEEHRAEEE: Fair value measurement for:

R EYEE AL Commercial property units located in the PRC 1,541,437 1,413,085
REARRE —REE - RENEE R There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 and into or out of
BEASRELRE=,- Level 3 during the year.

TRAREMEMEMAGERMEEE Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs
BABBREE to the valuation of investment properties:
fhER EAFAERRAYE HEZMETIH
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
2018 2017
HEMEEL WA () BAR (i) Discount rate 7.7% 7.7%
Commerdial property units Income approach (i) AR hmE (i)} Rental yield 9.0% 7.0%
(i) FHEAEE  Gi)Averagemonthly  FFHK RMBY7  BY AR RMB92
(B¥AK) rental (per square  AR™977C  persquare AR per square
meter,) meter meter
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HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

16. TEY Lt HEFKIE 16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
PN Cost
REH] At the beginning of the year 3,194,970 2,623,394
NE Additions 2,624 232,778
ERBEERTIR (Wt14) Transferred from construction in progress
(Note 14) 107,367 -
HE Disposals (56,396) (13,844)
WEEMH B A7) (K15237) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) 89,348 150,858
VE 5% Exchange realignment (151,526) 201,784
RER At the end of the year 3,186,387 3,194,970
By Amortisation
RE ] At the beginning of the year 430,163 322,938
FNFTR Provided for the year 99,065 76,300
o U Written off on disposals (44,860) (1,175)
VE 5% Exchange realignment (26,277) 32,100
RER At the end of the year 458,091 430,163
VBRI Impairment
RE ] At the beginning of the year 15,247 14,248
VE 5% Exchange realignment (701) 999
RER At the end of the year 14,546 15,247
BREFE Net carrying value
RER At the end of the year 2,713,750 2,749,560
ST Analysed into:
RVERER > Current portion 123,128 76,300
JERNERER Non-current portion 2,590,622 2,673,260
st Total 2,713,750 2,749,560
REBEEMN LA ERBBRIEMNFEH The Group's prepaid land lease payments comprise leasehold interest in
FEREA T E SRR - land situated in the PRC on medium term leases.
RZE—NF+_A=+—H TE£BK The Group’s prepaid land lease payments with a carrying value of
1A AB%112,321,000T W FEN 188 HK$112,321,000 were pledged to secure certain bank borrowings
ERIEERIEANEBERIETE DMK granted to the Group (Note 30) as at 31 December 2018
W (ZZE—+F:%8%7,938,0007T) (Hf (2017:HK$7,938,000).
#30) °

1
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HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

17. & 17. GOODWILL
2018 2017
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
2% Cost
REH] At the beginning of the year 20,726,448 17,518,849
WHsH B A=l (H7237) Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 37) 225,064 1,887,251
PE H A% Exchange realignment (953,074) 1,320,348
RER At the end of the year 19,998,438 20,726,448
WE Impairment
REH] At the beginning of the year 181,836 114,028
EHRRHRERE (4it6) Impairment loss recognised (Note 6) 20,109 59,244
VE 5 Exchange realignment (8,361) 8,564
RER At the end of the year 193,584 181,836
IREEE Net carrying value
RER At the end of the year 19,804,854 20,544,612

AETRERR  RAERAERFHY
HELEE (MRS EE ENERE
BRI ReELEN ([ReELSM]) B
CEABNREREAS=E: WERDH:
QEFELEEZR: RQEMTE-BE
MEREE (FRRAREBER ESEE
TRAREELEM FBEOT:

210 2oi854% zprssmsmad

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and trademarks with
indefinite useful lives (as disclosed in Note 18) have been allocated
to individual cash generating units (“CGUs") which are grouping
into three categories: (1) distribution of pharmaceutical products, (2)
manufacturing of pharmaceutical products in the PRC, and (3) retailing
of pharmaceutical products. The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of
accumulated impairment losses) allocated to the different CGUs are as
follows:
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HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

17. B2 (&) 17. GOODWILL (continued)
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B i Distribution of pharmaceutical products
REEASBN: Cash-generating units:
NGV Company A 2,059,212 2,158,466
NG Company B 1,504,603 1,577,124
NCI@ Company C 1,019,042 1,068,160
~7AID Company D 805,031 843,834
‘~AJE Company E 786,333 824,234
NG Company F 592,355 620,906
~NEIG Company G 549,328 575,806
NG Company H 527,957 553,404
NG| Company | 376,783 394,944
~Al Company J 263,551 276,254
~AK Company K 245,783 257,629
NEIIR Company L 222,736 233,472
NIV Company M 170,525 178,745
AFIN Company N 109,171 114,433
NS\ Company V 197,961 207,503
~aEX Company X 229,161 240,207
~aEY Company Y 213,167 223,442
~NAZ Company Z 188,309 197,385
NAEIAA Company AA 152,034 159,362
HAh Others 1,847,079 1,743,346
12,060,121 12,448,656
BEmAE Manufacturing of pharmaceutical products
REEESEMN: Cash-generating units:
yNCI[e] Company O 2,205,148 2,311,436
NG Company P 1,167,970 1,224,266
~AIQ Company Q 351,570 368,515
NG Company R 312,538 327,602
NG Company S 304,002 318,655
~AET Company T 97,586 102,290
NG Company W 1,610,894 1,688,539
‘A A]AB Company AB 447,208 468,763
R AJAC Company AC 279,722 293,205
A AJAD Company AD 170,122 178,322
HAt Others 695,409 706,855
7,642,169 7,988,448
ERTE Retailing of pharmaceutical products
REEABN: Cash-generating units:
NGV Company U 102,564 107,508
19,804,854 20,544,612
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17.

BE ()
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Z< Al

RETREINR BEEoEBEZENR:
EXBEM -ZERSEELAEMMNATRE S
HEERTHREENEET -E#E
—NF+ZA=+—H%ZFTEFEKA
HensRA YUAEEE#H ERER
Eﬁﬁﬁﬂ?iﬁﬁﬁgi‘%?ﬁmiﬁ%(f
T+ F:3%FE295% ) MIA12% (==
—tEF % )NFEMBEFENGTE
BEAHE - BBERAFHNZERESEL
BB REFREE_T—N\E+_A
=+ —H3% (ZE—+F:3% )WETE
WMERMEAN - BERDENEGHEITERER
B %1ﬁ&a¢§&$m“§mgwﬂﬁ
BRI EMGRRIEHES TEER
;i%fg§&mfffjAfETHb“@JH—rTAgﬁ
ERReECENMEEREBRBESE
SEMNNSEATKRESE-BEERE R
HRE AR BE A R B M EREINRE S
Be

HE-Z2 - N\F+ZA=+—HBLF
ERARBEMMSHF AR BEE
EZE-NF+ZA=+—HLEFEH
EhEt METEEESMRL BHES
METALRD NEBERBREERISE
5 #20,109,000c (ZE—HF: B
59,244,0007T) ° it - Ak E & 58 (BN
HEA SERENZEERARE I
R -
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—NFE+-A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Distribution of pharmaceutical products

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to individual CGUs. The recoverable amounts of these CGUs has
been determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period with an average sales growth
rate of 3% to 25% (2017: 3% to 29.5%), and discount rate of 12%
(2017: 12%) per annum as at 31 December 2018. These CGUs' cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady growth
rate of 3% (2017: 3%) as at 31 December 2018. The growth rates are
based on the relevant industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling
prices and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of
future changes in the market. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of individual CGUs to exceed respective
recoverable amounts of CGUs. In the opinion of the directors, no material
additional impairment loss of goodwill is identified at the end of the
reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recognised an
impairment loss of HK$20,109,000 (2017: HK$59,244,000) due to the
intense competition in the market of healthcare products which resulted
in a decrease in sales revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 as
compared to the budget and the expected future cash flow is decreased
accordingly. As a result, the difference of recoverable amount, which is
the value in use, and the carrying amount is recognised as an impairment
and charged to profit or loss.
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17.

e ()

RETREINR B2 EBEZENR:
EXBEMN -ZERSEAEMMNATRE S
HEEARTREENEET -E#E

—NFE+_A=+—B&FEFEXAR
SRETEA - UEIRE M ERE A F IR
FHEERR R BA%E33% (T —+
F 3% FE27% )M IA11%E12% (ZF
—EF NMN%ENRR)NFEMIREFE
M BEAEE - BERFHNZER
SEAENBESREFREE T —N\F
+-B=1t—"H8BA3% (ZZE—+%F:3%)
MR TR MR - MRRDENEMEIT

ERERE EENEERANEGIE
RBEBH TS RRBRNES - EEE
R ZEBRTOEMNEEAIENES

BrAeBHENReEEEMMREAE
BRRecELABEUNEEIRE SR &
ERR RBSHRBEINFENEKN
BN E

BRGRENS BEEAREENRS
EABR - ARUSTIKE S ED ERNE
AEEHEEE - RE -2 N\Ft A

_+ EiEprriiﬁ/Hm)ﬂi%imEi‘E/EU
NEEEMERERAFHNIEEE &
HERREERAE8% (ZT—LF 8% ) KA
MB (ZE—EF:11%)NEFEIRX
FRERNUKEEAEE - BBAFHNIR
SEAENBESREEREE T —N\F
+=—B=1t—"HBA3% (ZZE—+%F:3%)
MR TR MR - MRERDENEBIT
¥REREHN -EEREERKANEHHE
RBEEF LTI RRERE S - ER/E
RE ZEBENEANAENTENEEHE
TEBYRZASEAENMNEEEBRE
ARE B - EFTRA REBSHRETE
HAHERNERBINFESE-

—NFE+-A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Manutacturing of pharmaceutical products

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to an individual CGUs. The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have
been determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period with an average sales growth rate
of 4% 10 33% (2017: 3% to 27 %), and a discount rate of 11% to 12%
(2017: 11% to 12%) per annum as at 31 December 2018. These CGUs'
cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady
growth rate of 3% as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 3%). The growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling
prices and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of
future changes in the market. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of individual CGUs to exceed respective
recoverable amounts of CGUs. In the opinion of the directors, no material
additional impairment loss of goodwill is identified at the end of the
reporting period.

Retailing of pharmaceutical products

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to individual CGU. The recoverable amount of Company U has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period with a sales growth rate of 8%
(2017: 8%), and discount rate of 11% (2017: 11%) per annum as at
31 December 2018. This CGU's cash flows beyond the 5-year period
are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3% (2017: 3%) as at 31
December 2018. The growth rates are based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based
on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of that CGU to
exceed its respective recoverable amount of CGU. In the opinion of the
directors, no material additional impairment loss of goodwiill is identified
at the end of the reporting period.
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BE-T-\FT-A=+—HLFE
18. BILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ENRER  FENRG BE BEERHRA EFER Hf o
Deferred
Patents  Non-patent development Customer
andlicences  technology  Trademarks costs relationships Others Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-N\f+ZB=1-H 31 December 2018
AR Cost:
n=F-\F—-A—H At 1January 2018 279,600 320,531 1,518,816 786,113 2,870,838 199,371 5,975,269
RE Additions 1,169 2,517 - 439,528 - 3434 446,648
HE Disposals (38,475) - - - (516) - (38,991)
W B AR (fi37) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 37) - 23,731 - 8,666 245,097 - 277,494
B85 Transfers (24.456) 21,015 25,483 (22,042) - - -
iz Write off - - - (67.177) - - (67,177)
I Exchange realignment (13,083) (23,597) (69,803) (44,858) (140,060) (4,435) (295,836)
RZE-\E+-A=1—-H At 31 December 2018 204,755 344,197 1,474,4% 1,100,230 2,975,359 198,370 6,297,407
Rt Accumulated amortisation:
R-Z-N\¥-A—-H At 1 January 2018 97,190 205,675 60,541 208,795 575,324 81,176 1,228,701
EWiHR Provided during the year 25,031 24,036 319 - 153,607 3,108 206,101
HE Disposals (35.287) - - - (24) - (35311)
Rk Exchange realignment (7.452) (16,681) (3,195) - (32,208) (2817) (62,353)
WZE-NE+-A=F—H  At31December2018 79,482 213,030 57,665 208,795 696,699 81,467 1,337,138
R Impairment:
R-E-N\5-A-A At 1 January 2018 4822 1,286 - - - - 6,108
I Exchange realignment (73) (430) - - - - (503)
WZE-NE+-A=F—H  At31December2018 4,749 856 - - - - 5,605
BEFE: Net carrying amount;
RZE-\E+-A=1—-H At 31 December 2018 120,524 130,311 1,416,831 891,435 2,278,660 116,903 4,954,664
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7/, 2 =3 g
18. B EE (48 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
SHRER  FER B ELHEAE ZFB& 2 gt
Deferred
Patents  Non-patent development Customer
andlicences  technology  Trademarks costs  relationships Others Total
EETFT NI AT BETT O B%TT A%Tr BETo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-t¥+-A=1+-A 31 December 2017
AR Cost:
RZZ—+F—-A—H At 1 January 2017 188,595 273962 1,408,039 544414 2,131,360 20300 4,766,670
HE Additions 9,783 = 215 196,143 = = 206,141
e Disposals (20,346) (2,308) = = (5,235) (22,297) (50,186)
WEEHB AR (f7737) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) 83,780 15,654 10,537 S 560,710 = 670,681
ERA% Exchange realignment 17,788 33,223 100,025 45,556 184,003 1,368 381,963
—E-+tf+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2017 279,600 320,531 1518816 786113 2870838 199371 5975269
RitE: Accumulated amortisation:
RZZ—+F—-A-H At 1 January 2017 76,991 174,568 55,884 159,896 392,816 93,900 954,055
ERNGHR Provided during the year 29347 12,462 267 37,690 144,801 1958 226,615
e Disposals (15,295) (1,347) = = = (15,783) (32,425)
5 A% Exchange realignment 6,147 19,992 4,390 11,09 37617 1,101 80,456
—E-tf+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2017 97,190 205,675 60,541 208,795 575,324 81,176 1,208,701
R Impairment:
RZE—tE-A-H At 1 January 2017 4,726 1219 - - = = 5,945
B 5 A% Exchange realignment % 67 - = = = 163
ZE—+F+ZA=t-H At 31 December 2017 4822 1,286 - - = = 6,108
REFE: Net carrying amount:
—E-tf+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2017 177,588 113570 1,458,275 577318 2,295514 118195 4,740,460
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B=E
18.

—E—)\FF+-A=Z+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

BIFERE (8)
RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H" LiliERE
EE (RIRMAMEEE1,321,659,0007T

— T —+F:##1,359,432,0007T) K9
A (ZE—+FME) @EN (BIEN
H17F S ERR T ARIOR G ELEEN) )
BEERAFHAFH ZEBVEERAR
JEFA T 1| HAF B8 4 -

v lpsa v 5& 154
FE 55 F £ 1l 5Z 104
[EEE 5% 204
XPBE 102204
HAb 52104

wmEmM - R —-NF+=ZA=+—H
BR M 42 1E & ¥1,321,659,0000C (=&
—+ £ : #%1,359,432,0007) W IZF
TEARBGEXNAEEESE - AARES
RENEEBSHEEERIZW HBENE
TEE-AEEETEEOETZENE
BREREGBHFRE THEEE BF
RBREBY LRETERS S LS
REYZF pRARERERENEBRER
REMFEMST HELEABRNR
BH-A AEEEEERESHESER
MERTFH RERRERZHEY =T
ERBRERAFE RS T E#RY
BEERTEHAIGATFHABERE AL -H
R AReSFRESDRBETERBE
FrEfTRER R - BREBEANRNFEBR
MsE1 740 5 -

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The above intangible assets, other than four (2017: four) trademarks
with a total carrying value of HK$1,321,659,000 as at 31 December
2018 (2017: HK$1,359,432,000) (which are allocated to the CGU of
Company O in Note 17), have finite useful lives. Such intangible assets
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following periods:

Patents and licences 5-15 years
Non-patent technology 5-10 years
Trademarks 5-20 years
Customer relationships 10-20 years
Others 5-10 years

As stated above, the trademarks with a total carrying value of
HK$1,321,659,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$1,359,432,000)
are renewable continuously every ten years at minimal costs. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group would
renew the trademarks continuously and has the ability to do so. Various
studies including product life cycle studies, market, competitive and
environmental trends, and brand extension opportunities have been
performed by management of the Group, which support that the
trademarks have no foreseeable limit to the period over which the
trademarked products are expected to generate net cash flows for the
Group. As a result, the trademarks are considered by the management of
the Group as having an indefinite useful life because they are expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The trademarks will not be
amortised until the useful life is determined to be finite. Instead they will
be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired. The details for the impairment test are
disclosed in Note 17.

19. REETENER 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

| 2018 2017 |

‘ BT BEFT ‘

! HK$'000 HK$'000 !

1 DIEEEFE Share of net assets 44,290 - 1
AEBAACDENESREKRZIIBELE S The Group's trade receivable and trade payable balances with the joint
FERT B R N TS SRR B 43 EE o ventures are disclosed in Note 43 to the financial statements.
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19. REEENER 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
AEEBR-_Z—N\FE+_A=+—H®H=E Particulars of the Group's principal joint venture as at 31 December 2018
EAELEFERIMT Is set out below.

) frEEAt
RELXERE 2EHY EfMER  EEEEG RRE AMbER  EEEH

Place of Percentage

registration Registered Ownership of Voting Profit
Name of joint ventures and operation capital interest power sharing  Principal activities
EECNEREEARAA(ME) TE 560000007 50% 50% 50% TENTHELE
Chongging Sanjiu Huiyuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Aote) PRC RMB56,000,000 Research and production of

traditional Chinese medicine

Wiet: BEE-NZRBEZHRLAHEH =L Note: Chongqing Sanjiu Huiyuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. is invested by CR
BEZRFELGRAARE - AREREA Sanjiu and Chongqing Huiyuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.. As each investor
DMEEZ L F]50%R B0 2[RI FE HIZ 2 A shares 50% equity interests of the company and jointly controls it, the
BEREW BT RFEEE EPFE - investment was recognised as a joint venture of the Group.
TREAAEBETWITERGETENEE The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the
B E R Group's joint ventures that are not individually material:
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FADEE B REREN Share of the joint ventures’ profit
for the year 4,202 -
FANEEEREEMEEWE Share of the joint ventures’ other comprehensive
income for the year 313 =
REERGEPERENRERE Aggregate carrying amount of the
Group's investments in the joint ventures 44,290 -
20. REtE N RIS 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
DIHEEFE Share of net assets 2,233,808 2,200,770
REBERBERAINE S REARKRIE The Group's trade and other receivables and trade and other payables
ARE S REMEMNZIEN SN BHR balances with the associates are disclosed in Note 43 to the financial
KM 43 E - statements.
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HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

20. REE N RIS (42 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
REFR -_ZE—)N\E+-_A=+—HEB= Particulars of the Group’s principle associates as at 31 December 2018
RSN TSR are as follows:
aft ik MEREE  FRCEfT
HELEER 2 afMER ARt RfzEf e
Place of Particulars of
registration Registered  Percentage of issued
Name of associates and operation capital  voting power  shares held Principal activities
AEREENHEERARLR ([AEXRE]) (Hita) ! AR 800,004,600 588%  iHfiRE EnMR BR LERHE
Hefei Tianmai Biotechnology Development Co,, Ltd PRC RMB800,004,600 Registered capital ~ Research and development, production and
("Hefei Tianmai") (Note a) sales of pharmaceutical products
HRERERARAA ! 4,200,000 T 263%  HREA EnMR BR LERHE
Bejing Hanmei Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. PRC USD4,200,000 Registered capital ~ Research and development, production and
sales of pharmaceutical products
EREEARLA (With) ! 258333334 4000%  REA tEpang HE REREMERR
AR
China Resources Leasing Co., Ltd. (Note b) PRC USD258,333,334 Registered capital ~ Financial leasing, leasing, factoring and other
related consultancy and quarantee services
Hlata : REF—+F+—A=—+—H ZEFLY Notea: On 21 November 2017, the directors of China Resources Bio-
B (7Y) BRAF ([ZEEFN]) (— pharmaceutical (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“CR Shenzhen”), an indirectly-
KARGIBIZEHEAINELN T EE owned subsidiary of the Company, approved to dispose of 14.12%
#E RS FER IR R R M & & A Z equity interests in Hefei Tianmai to the controlling shareholder of Hefei
14.12% A2 - 2 8 R | 5t 4o 58 A HEA 2 Tianmai. As stated in the share subscription agreement between CR
20% /R PEB IR IR — FE— NF+— Shenzhen and the controlling shareholder under which CR Shenzhen
FET IR 17 375 175 5B - & HEAZE acquired a 20% equity interest in Hefei Tianmai in December 2016,
Ro-FE—tF+ - F=1—HHRRE if Hefei Tianmai did not obtain the “Good Manufacturing Practice”
[EEEE EFERE ) BT IZAE 15 production licence as at 31 December 2017, CR Shenzhen can sell
FEREEE X BZZRREHEREIE back the 14.12% equity interests of Hefei Tianmai to the controlling
KER)14.12%R# ([FEE]]) - Bt - A shareholder (the “Buy-Back ") at an agreed consideration. As a result, the
EEE#1,146,564,0007T (AI=F—+F carrying amount of HK$ 1, 146,564,000, representing the fair value of the
FZA=F—HAREFEXE1412%R1E 14.12% equity interests in Hefei Tianmai as at 31 December 2017, was
BN IEE) BB E L el BF 4 reclassified from interests in associates to assets classified as held for sale.
RIFIEHEEE -
SRR AR R 2 BRI —F— ) F As stated in the agreement between the controlling shareholder and
JVABETI 7508 (1555 75 B 7 = CR Shenzhen signed in August 2018, the payment will be arranged by
TH-R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—H £ instalments. As at 31 December 2018, CR Shenzhen has not received
BRI K 1R R AT Bt BR payment from the controlling shareholder and thus the carrying amount
(B 151,093,841,0005T (A4 AEAZE5% of HK$1,093,841,000, representing the fair value of 14.12% equity
BE14.12% B BIE ) D5 A7 28 At interests in Hefei Tianmai remained as assets classified as held for sale.
EHEEE-
R-F—t+GE+—HA=+—AB—-F The Group retained the remaining 5.88% equity interest in Hefei Tianmai
—NE+—A=+—FH  FEFRZEE as interests in an associate as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
5.88% A JE K BRI AR A N F 2018 due to the fact that CR Shenzhen had two directors in the board
2% B AEEFIEREEEEA L of the directors of Hefei Tianmai, which is considered having significant
EEEFRA B EERHAEREEA influence over the entity.
ZET) -
ZERL NGRS A B FEIR A E The associates are accounted for using the equity method in these
JE 2B BE o consolidated financial statements.
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BE-F—\F+-AS+—AILFE

20. NERE A RINER (&
Hitth : R=F—LF+=A=+/\A KA

BE2EWB AL A BB ERR R E &
HEHEEFERAG ([EHEE])HE
JBHE (BE)BERAGF (KRR
ReEE2EN B LG & B IKEZEEH
EBERAF([EHHEE])20%81E #
1B A A FE 1#5889,400,0005T (1HE R E
#51,064,000,0007T ) * A7 IR 5 [ R
S ETERHE RS E BT
£ RE B E 940 % AETER BB &
2 Al A o

AL E R LR E] G RIEE ES AL A
BB 2 A1 B AR EAR K -

T B 7 F 3 T E A B2 A48
AN

For the year ended 31 December 2018

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Note b. On 28 December 2017, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings and China

Resources Pharmaceutical Commercial Group Co., Ltd. (“CR
Commercial”), indirectly held wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, acquired 20% equity interests each in China Resources
Leasing Co., Ltd. (“CR Leasing ") from China Resources Leasing (H *
K) Company Limited, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company’s controlling shareholder, China Resources Co., Ltd. at
an aggregate consideration of RMB889,400,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,064,000,000). As the Group has appointed 2 out of 5 directors in
CR Leasing upon the completion of acquisition, the 40% equity interests
in CR Leasing were recognised as interests in associates.

The Group's shareholdings in the associates all comprise equity shares
held by the subsidiaries of the Company.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the
Group's associates that are not individually material:

2018 2017

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FRDHEERERT Share of the associates’ profit for the year 132,966 140,795

FRDMEECERLM2E (EB),  Share of the associates’ other

& comprehensive(lossyincome for the year (36,674) 39,956
AEBNRBECERENRTERE Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's

investments in the associates 2,233,808 2,200,770
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21. AJHHERE

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

2017
BET T
HK$'000
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments
ELETRE Unlisted investments
BEBTHES BAREBE (Hita) Asset-backed securities, at fair value (Note a) 412,484
IRHEIRE - B ANET (BY5ED) Equity investments, at cost (Note b) 153,234
BEE SR WASBE (Mitc) Financial products, at fair value (Note ¢) 6,381,025
6,946,743
B BETRVEESE Less: Accumulated impairment losses (55,629)
HEt Total 6,891,114
ST Analysed into:
MBEE Current assets 6,556,642
EMBEE Non-current assets 334,472
6,891,114
it REEREZ Movement in the accumulated impairment losses
2017
BT T
HK$'000
n—H—H At 1 January 41,431
ERERBIESE Impairment losses recognised 10,919
R Exchange realignment 3,279
w+=ZA=+—8H At 31 December 55,629
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BE-F—\F+-AS+—AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

= =
21. AIEHERE (&) 21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)
Hista 2 sBia7NEER S EH R AR E Note a. The amounts represented the Group's investments in asset-backed
[EIEREIE T 5 = Fr B i T B R p S T securities with returns linked to the performance of those securities which
0 KB D Y hE = AR were issued by independent third parties in the PRC. The Group acquired
EELRIR = E— )\ —F —FE—A three subordinated tranches of securities with maturity date in Noverber
FE— GJ —F— L+ — FFHE 2018, January 2019 and November 2019, respectively.
Hiith, KEEOIE F RS E —E—+ Note b. The Group’s unlisted equity investments represented investments
FEf A= —FHIFFEERAED T in unlisted entities established in the PRC during the year ended 31
BEEAO R o I PR B December 2017. These unlisted entities are principally engaged in
BEFEE 555 ] AFE L o H LR AR research and development, distribution and related operations of
—E = H = — AR EAE pharmaceutical products. They were measured at cost less impairment as
KRFEEZ S HAS BT A A s at 31 December 2017. The directors of the Company were of the opinion
B B EW BN E— = = — that their fair values could not be measured reliably. The accumulated
44928 55 (& 1,8 55,629,000 ° impairment in respect of such investments as at 31 December 2017
amounted to HK$55,629,000.
Bisdtc 2emAR-—FT—+E+—H=+—H Note c. The amounts represented structured deposits entered into by the
TR F AR TT R 2 B TEA B4 Group with banks and other financial institutions amounting to
TR 2 58 5 156,381,025,0005T ° HK$6,381,025,000 as at 31 December 2017. These structured deposits
2 4 R 2l A 1 B > B (where the effect of structured element is not material) are designated as
REA  IEF BIFELERE available-for-sale investments.
2. HihE ks emEE  22. OTHER CURRENT/NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL
ASSETS
2018
BT T
HK$'000
BEBBES BABES (Hita) Assets backed securities, at fair value (Note a) 385,217
B 5 e IE N FEINEYE - 15 A R BEST (#15Eb) Trade and bills receivable, at fair value (Note b) 19,088,152
I EIRERE RO BES (AiEc) Unlisted equity investments, at fair value (Note ¢) 74,467
BEESR  BAEBER (Mitd) Financial products, at fair value (Note d) 8,549,773
BB EE M R SEA NG (W ite) Financial products, at amortised cost (Note e) 148,613
mst Total 28,246,222
ST Analysed into:
MENEE Current assets 28,023,549
FERBEE Non-current assets 222,673
28,246,222
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BE-_ZT— \E+-_A=+—HIEE
S{RD, HRDERAE
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2R EAREERFESIRE
EI#f B 5 = #7Ti RS K
HHY o % ZFBE NS BIEFAA BT
B o REFE W fE = HARES A
DRE=ZE—NF—H  ZF—NF+—
AR _—E_—FESNHo

RERE BRI IR EBREIW 1 - A 5%
BIERSBREA AR ERRE LR
RIZE B IS EREIF D RIZER
SBEFTAE M2 E K a5 12 BEE

FEE R H L TREREIER A BEEZ
UHLTIABRARE -ZEHLTE
RITENEFZRE DHRIGHEE-
BEREE B EHEEREIGREAS
BEF A RaalE

AL EBEIREHBEECIEAER
EIERTT R B BB TFA YA B I 730 3%
ZRBUFANEE LS ZZELT
BR IEEREAAEBE AR B

HHHA A SRR £ BB BIERAR
BHID MR X EBETI DRI
FAG 8 - A 73 105 0 2 AR - 1.2
BEERBRERAAFE  MiFEz@E
EH) BB SURERHEET 22 BEAE
HYERNEATIEE AEL B LTS #
HIEAZ R R ERELZFIEN

EHEEEEARAR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

22. OTHER CURRENT/NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Note a:

Note b:

Note c:

Note d:

Note e:

The amounts represent the Group’s investments in asset-backed
securities with returns linked to the performance of those securities which
are issued by independent third parties in the PRC. These securities were
measured at fair value through profit and loss. The Group acquired three
subordinated tranches of securities with maturity date in January 2019,
November 2019 and September 2020, respectively.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group has classified trade and bills
receivable that are held within a business model both to collect cash flows
and to sell upon transition to financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income under HKFRS 9.

The Group’s unlisted equity investments represent investments in
unlisted private entities established in the PRC. These unlisted entities are
principally engaged in research and development, distribution and related
operations of pharmaceutical products. They are measured at fair value
through profit or loss under HKFRS 9.

Financial products at fair value included structured deposits entered into
by the Group with banks and the financial institutions. These structured
deposits (where the effect of structured element is not material) are
designated as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
[oss.

Financial products at amortised cost include financial products with
principal and interest guaranteed. The assets are classified to be
measured at amortised cost as they meet two conditions: 1. The financial
asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; 2. The contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principle and interest on the principle amount
outstanding.
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23. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

23. HibFEREEE

2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

WYX BB REEES Deposits for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 278,026 274,048

WHETER T A E IR S Deposits for acquisition of prepaid
land lease payments 11,869 15,121
WERTEERS Deposits for acquisition of intangible assets 26,407 14,372
&S Long-term deposits 863,750 =
Hity Others 38,375 34,258
1,218,427 337,799
24. 78 24. INVENTORIES

2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R Raw materials 3,047,482 3,195,945
BEME Packageing materials 20,637 54,190
E8 Work in progress 1,232,322 1,351,428
SLRK am Finished goods 17,227,482 16,804,735
21,527,923 21,406,298
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HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

25. E5 RHEABBWFIR

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2018 2017
BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

JE R Bills receivable 2,559,563 8,790,247
H 5 W GIE Trade receivables 44,797,057 50,558,374
BB Impairment allowance (436,084) (477,858)
44,360,973 50,080,516

TEf IR Prepayments 3,425,706 2,829,939
H b pE U 5k I8 Other receivables 4,637,120 5,586,257
BB R Impairment allowance (136,347) (158,990)
4,500,773 5,427,267

54,847,015 67,127,969

AEE-—RAEESEFE TN T30E
270RMEER WA RREEFBEEN
ERZE30R MELBARTRERFNES
ERGEEEZIME - R_TE—N\F+=A
=+ —H EREEMBRN F30E180
K(ZE—+tF:308180K) °

AEENESIERFESERKRAE
B r¥ERBERANRKRES BB
782,000 (— T —+H4F &) R B
44,008,0007T (=& — 4 : B #76,000
) ZERERASERFERFREM
WEUEEGREER-

224 oisEam sERssmsEAR

The Group generally allows credit periods ranging from 30 to 270 days
to its trade customers, which may be extended to 360 days for selected
customers depending on their trade volume and settlement terms. The
bills receivable had maturity period ranging from 30 to 180 days as at 31
December 2018 (2017: 30 to 180 days).

Included in the Group's trade receivables are amounts due from the
Group's joint ventures and associates of HK$782,000 (2017: nil) and
HK$44,008,000 (2017: HK$76,000), respectively, which are repayable
on credit terms similar to those offered to the major customers of the
Group.
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25. EZ N HMEWFRIE (& 25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
RZE—N\FR_TE—+F+_A=1+— An ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables, net of loss
B ASEEERBZABNKREERER allowance, based on the invoice date at 31 December 2018 and 2017
BE S RERBGRIBRBRE ST T are as follows:
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
0E30K 0-30 days 16,743,995 18,332,642
31E260K 31-60 days 6,757,515 7,929,138
61290k 61-90 days 4,286,534 5,127,912
91E180K 91-180 days 10,084,492 10,728,104
181E365K 181-365 days 5,726,756 7,483,440
HBEE Over 1 year 761,681 479,280
44,360,973 50,080,516
R N\FR_TE—+F+_A=+— An ageing analysis of the Group's bills receivable based on the issue date
H AEBREKRERREZAHNERRS at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:
MranT
—E-)N\F ZT—+F 2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
0F30K 0-30 days 317,149 3,463,726
31ZE60K 31-60 days 393,062 1,231,698
61290k 61-90 days 432,406 1,249,963
912180k 91-180 days 1,416,946 2,844,860
2,559,563 8,790,247
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HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

25. ES R EMWEBWFIE (&)

BHE S N EAMRYGRIRER R EE R R A

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade and other

REEINT - receivables are as follows:
2018 2017
BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
g 5 EWFRIE Trade receivable
REH] At beginning of year 477,858 387,838
RMEBM B mEERBIRNTE  Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9
(B3E2.2) (Note 2.2) (105,177) =
RE (L&) At beginning of year (restated) 372,681 387,838
=Nk SR Amount written off as uncollectible (1,335) (9,343)
B EE  FEE Impairment losses, net 91,224 66,507
PE 0 A= Exchange realignment (26,486) 32,856
RER At the end of the year 436,084 477,858
H b U FRIE Other receivables
REH] At beginning of year 158,990 163,588
RMEBM B mEERRIRNTE  Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9
(B3E2.2) (Note 2.2) (4,967) -
RE (L&) At beginning of year (restated) 154,023 163,588
A AT U o i # 8E B & RE Amount written off as uncollectible (13,803) (29,341)
B EE  FEE Impairment losses, net 8,270 12,486
PE 0 A= Exchange realignment (12,143) 12,257
RER At the end of the year 136,347 158,990

MEST TN &G B RBEERER
ETAFERREEBR LEDHREA
BRUEANBRTREF D EHE 5 E
WHRH BRE DT Mt & - SHE R X
NEER BE¥RERNERS BHAEH
BRBEER B GREFRRREE RN
BRANAERAEEM:

226 20i8EFm EERaEEEEAR

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The rate is based on
the ageing of the trade receivables due from various customer segments
with similar patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

25. B R HMEWRIE (&) 25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

BE-_ZE—NE+=-A=+—HIHE Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 December
EEBYMKREERESRIET WRE 2018 (continued)
(#&)
TXHEF)EEARERE 5 MR IEL A7 Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
BB EENEERBAOER Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:
RZE—N\F+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2018
FEEAE FEHEEEE
Gross
carrying Expected
amount credit losses
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
T B S BT Individual evaluation of expected credit losses 80,109 =
BBEEEBREATEEHEERIE  Assessment of expected credit loss by
credit risk portfolio 44,716,948 436,084
44,797,057 436,084
DIME 1226 223 HBiE3E @5t
Less than 1to 2 2to3 Over
1 year years years 3 years Total
BHREEEEE Expected credit loss rate 047% 9.88% 2571% 95.24%
FEBE(BSTL) Gross carrying amount
(HK$'000) 43,726,182 730,239 130,539 129,988 44,716,948
BEEEEE (B%Tr) Expected credit losses
(HK$'000) 206,600 72,116 33,565 123,803 436,084

227 6
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HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

25. B R HMEWRIE (&) 25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

RZB—+FE+-_A=+—8" LitiRE
BB GHENFIRBICELEEES
BHENBESRKRENREREY &
FENRENE S ERKIERENEE
24,427,00070 Z 5 B 5 BB EEA
K BEE (A 578 %636,848,0007T °

RIZE—+F+-_A=+—R @ERE
B E 5 e MR R B BR AR B ik R s fa A
BRENTFPEH RHMEXHDESHREK
IR AU E o

RZB—+EF+_A=+t—HBHAREENE
5 FE MR FRIE B 15 1A R 25 HA R i HA ) B U BR
REEEE A 17,962,720,0007T ' BB A
ERANERR R EEESERESHMI
KRE AEETERZERKFERE
EA IR o

ERHEERENSE S BEFIARE

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables,
which was measured based on incurred credit losses under HKAS 39,
as at 31 December 2017 was a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$24,427,000 with a carrying amount before provision
of HK$636,848,000.

The individually impaired trade receivables as at 31 December 2017
related to customers that had either been placed under liquidation
or were in financial difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables were debtors with a carrying
amount of HK$7,962,720,000 as at 31 December 2017 which were
past due at the end of the reporting periods but were regarded as
not impaired as there had not been a significant change in the credit
standing of the debtors. The Group did not hold any collateral over these
receivables.

Ageing of trade receivables that are past due but not impaired

2017

BT

HK$'000

LIF Less than 1 year 7,483,440
AR Over 1 year 479,280
7,962,720

FEFETE — IR B MR IR B R U m B L B - AR
SEgEREFANGAMRRE NFRD
EEZRAREEREETNES - BN
AERENEFHERZEER REER
RETFEEER -ARAREZER AR HE
EELARA M B MR P IELBRENRERE
—HELBEEREE-

R—ZE—NE+=—A=+—8 & &
EMEEFESZRUBAREREREE
B %933,968,000 (T — L 4F ¢
75 #1,320,362,0007T) * AERE TR
TEZF(HFE30) EEBRERKEES
B #408,919,000 (Z T —+F: B
294,428,0007T) * AR FEN 23 (M 5T
27) °

228 oisEFm EERaEEEEAR

In determining the recoverability of a receivable, the Group considered
whether there had been adverse change in the credit standing of the
debtors from the date credit was initially granted. The concentration
of credit risk was limited as the Group's customer base comprised of a
large number of customers. The directors of the Company believed that
there was no further credit provision required in excess of the allowance
for doubtful debts already provided for in the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had pledged trade and bills
receivables of HK$933,968,000 (2017: HK$1,320,362,000) to secure
certain bank borrowings (Note 30) and pledged bills receivable of
HK$408,919,000 (2017: HK$294,428,000) to secure the bills payable
(Note 27).
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HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

26. 2IRBIRITER RIT4ERKR  26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND CASH

WEEEY EQUIVALENTS
2018 2017
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
e MIRITHEERR Cash and bank balances 20,061,977 16,728,814
AREMNEREN D IRMIEITER Pledged bank deposits for bills payable 3,193,308 2,554,080
EREFRRRIBE DR =FEALN Guarantee deposits and other restricted
HoAth 52 PR il 17 5K deposits with original maturity less than
three months 3,036 12,901
BERERRRINBEBRE=EAN Guarantee deposits and other restricted
HoAth 52 PR il 17 5K deposits with original maturity more than
three months 232,332 -
EHRRRITIF R4 Total pledged bank deposits 3,428,676 2,566,981
ReME2EED Cash and cash equivalents 16,633,301 14,161,833

N E IR 1T 1F KB HE B #1,556,802,690
T (=ZZ—+F:7%%1,010,005,0007T)
RZEABRE—FAIENTEHEFR &
FEMHFE1.43%E4.18% (Z T —+
F£:1.88%%E1.93% )it E -

R-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—H AEEK
RITHERIEN T0%E3.50% (ZF—+
F:0%E3.6% )NFEMHMNEFE -

RZZE-—NF+_/=+—H AEEBED
BERBTHERERERRETRE (BRIEE
NEB)MERTRITIOER BENT
030%%E1.69% (ZZE—+F:030%%
1.75% )M FEEMIHF R B -

Included in the Group's bank deposits of HK$1,556,802,690 (2017:
HK$1,010,005,000) are time deposits with maturity more than three
months but less than one year, which are carrying interest at market rates
ranging from 1.43% to 4.18% per annum (2017: 1.88% to 1.

Bank balances of the Group carry interest at market rates ranging from
0% to 3.50% per annum as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 0% to 3.6%).

Pledged bank deposits of the Group represent deposits pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities including bills payable and carry interest
at market rates ranging from 0.30% to 1.69% per annum as at 31

December 2018 (2017: 0.30% to 1.75%).
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HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

27. EZ R HEMENTKIE 27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2018 2017
Lk BT T BT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
2 S ENRIA Trade payable (a) 27,227,869 30,310,063
AN ESE Bills payable (@) 12,281,222 11,881,483
TR A Receipts in advance = 1,458,105
[EEt 2 Accrued salaries 1,600,012 1,365,439
P T & Interest payable 304,111 216,742
H b IR Other tax payables 1,314,669 867,029
H fth e~ FRIE Other payables 12,360,798 9,468,912
JERTRE X Refund liabilities 17,086 =
LB B A Bl R 5RIE Payable for acquisitions of subsidiaries 1,092,492 927,919
56,198,259 56,495,692

et - Note:

@  HEE@BFI(EHE F302120K -
JETZ A F30E360K A9 5 R -
RZF-NF+ZA=+—H FEFH
JEHE7,125,681,0005T ( = F —+F : B

1,920,463,0007T ) B9 1+ 2215 /i 5= [Z A T
A8 (8 155 1408 919,000 (= F —+ 4 -
JB16294,428,0005T) (Hat25) B EKFE 1K
R EME3,193,308,0007T ( —F—+4F : JEH
2,554,080,0007T) (H1it26) 892 HFFIR7T
FEABTHELR °

AEBEREZARNNE Z RN FTENK

(@) The average credit period on purchases of goods range from 30 to 120
aays. The bills payable have maturity period ranging from 30 to 360 days.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bills payable of HK$7, 125,681,000
(2017: HK$1,920,463,000) were secured by the Group’s bills
receivable with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$408,919,000
(2017: HK$294,428,000) (Note 25) and pledged bank deposits of
HK$3,193,308,000 (2017: HK$2,554,080,000) (Note 26).

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on the invoice

BT : date is as follows:
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
0E30K 0-30 days 16,405,519 18,208,036
31260XK 31-60 days 4,092,276 5,108,347
61290K 61-90 days 1,971,968 2,059,560
B IE90K Over 90 days 4,758,106 4,934,120
27,227,869 30,310,063
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27. B REMENTIE (& 27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
REBEMNMAY BEHNENZENERED An ageing analysis of the Group's bills payable based on the issue date is
B CENE as follows:
2018 2017
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
0F30K 0-30 days 9,581,425 9,523,518
31£260K 31-60 days 616,290 723,160
61£290K 61-90 days 852,340 622,845
#B3BI0K Over 90 days 1,231,167 1,011,960
12,281,222 11,881,483
28. FEHAmLE 2 28. SHORT-TERM DEBENTURES
AAFE2EWB AT E SR EERER China Resources Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited (“CR
AF(IEEeEEER | DR -2 — N Pharmaceutical Holdings”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
ENAREASRAPRBT T —N\& Company, has completed the issuance of the first Ultra Short-Term
B REE B N\EE— Debentures 2018 in the PRC on 5 September 2018. The first Ultra
HI MBS EARITAS S EAARK Short-Term Debentures 2018 was issued in a principal amount of
3,000,000,0007T (% #3,423,868,000 RMB3,000,000,000 (HK$3,423,868,000) with a term of 270 days
7)) HIRR B270K EEHM X AT E and a coupon rate of 3.68% per annum and the transaction cost was
3.68% R BMA AHEH3,828,4627T - HK$3,828,462.

2
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HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

29. EHAE

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2018
BT T
HKS$'000
B E F R IR Short-term advances received from customers
Emiig Sale of goods 1,711,938
30. RITIER 30. BANK BORROWINGS
2018 2017
BEET T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITIER Bank borrowings
BHEA Secured 408,849 548,727
Eiid Unsecured 40,255,672 31,661,061
40,664,521 32,209,788
T Analysed into:
B E FI =GR Fixed rate borrowings 14,312,730 21,121,006
FEFIEETR Floating rate borrowings 26,351,791 11,088,782
40,664,521 32,209,788
EEEREE (EREEERS) : Carrying amount repayable
(based on scheduled repayment terms):
—F LR Within one year 37,362,593 31,158,736
—FUEELRRE More than one year, but not more than
two years 153,117 926,889
MENN EEBLRAESF More than two years, but not more than
five years 3,148,811 124,163
40,664,521 32,209,788
BB BEE TR Less: Amount due shown under current
liabilities:
—F AR E B Due within one year (30,762,593) (26,425,320)
—F AR BB R 8B 1R E SO R Due within one year and contain a
repayment on demand clause (6,600,000) (4,733,416)
(37,362,593) (31,158,736)
SERBAEEAE FHRR—FEEEH  Amount due after one year shown under
-] non-current liabilities 3,301,928 1,051,052
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HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

30. SRITERK (A&
AEEE TRTIE R AT RBHER

30. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings were secured by:

AR LB EFIE (Hfit16)
BF (Hit14)
B 5 WA MBI IE (#i725)

2018 2017

BT BETFT

HK$'000 HK$'000

Prepaid land lease payments (Note 16) 112,321 7,938

Buildings (Note 14) 83,328 44 553
Trade and bills receivables (Note 25)

933,968 1,320,362

1,129,617 1,372,853

AEEFHMEBTERRE TR ERME
HEFHERFNEDF152.86% (ZF
—t£F:2.99% ) F3.46% (—_ T —+L4F:
4.29% ) °

31. BfYES

The average effective interest rates of the Group’s floating rate bank
borrowings and fixed rate borrowings were 2.86% (2017: 2.99%) per
annum and 3.46% (2017: 4.29%) per annum, respectively.

31. BONDS PAYABLE

2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
&EH51(Hata) Bonds 1 (Note a) = 1,674,820
&52(H7tb) Bonds 2 (Note b) = 597,962
&53(Hatc) Bonds 3 (Note ¢) 2,282,580 2,392,600
&EHA(HTatd) Bonds 4 (Note d)) 4,565,160 =
6,847,740 4,665,382

JERT B - Amount repayable:
—FLAR Within one year = 2,272,782
F_EFERF In the second to fifth years 6,847,740 2,392,600
6,847,740 4,665,382
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31. BfE% (&

HKizta -

Mzt

Ftatc -

Mt
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20184F F ¥

R—F——F )| N H  EEEERE
7748 % 58 A A K #3,000,000,0007T #9 #E
HHHLTES ([EH1]) - EHFI1EET
B EEA RE1007TE1E - 1% ELE FFIF
4.48%F18 c WEFIER —FE—+F/A
NAFHIRANEE - [EFIETERABA
F#9000,0007T °

REF—=F=A=-+=-H EFEEZF
JRIGEFGEEARIE100T 8 — 2 Z7748
2588 B H1,400,000,0007T £ 4% #E #7
FEFTTERT  IREEFFIF494%51 8
HEFIER-F—NF=ZA=—+=—HF/
HREE HEFINETEABARE
4,200,000 °

R-FE—ZFFANA EF=NZET
ROFINFEHK AT FTTHIEEEBAR
#500,000,0007T BI#E IR 2 BB 5 ([1E&
£2]) o [EBHEUHEE (P EEAREI1007TE
1B 1B & F Z | F4.60%5F.8 - 7T
A BERERE = FRIESETEEFE
B — (B ([4E1E5ETZEFIFE ) s
BHEZEEFE EHFEANERGREE
BREOES EFRER=ZF—/\FA
AN HZE R 3 1 I 7T (€2 FAE ]
HE o [E520) 57T B A A K 12,000,000
e

R-F—AFLANA  EHEHETRIZ
FEEAREI00T H TR EAAR
#£2 000,000,0007T £ 4 1 7 3E |- 7 15 55
([1E353]) 12 B E F FIFE420%51 .8 °
EFER —FE-FF+HANNAEH &
FIRFE7TEHBARK210,0007T »

R-BE—NENF=++H EELRE
R FITHE & BE B A K #2,000,000,0007C
B IAIE LT EZ ([1B554)) - (B34
1HE R EIEN RBI007T E1E  1ZEEF
FIHE421%518  (BEFMER—F=—14F)1
A=+t HEH - &5y 57T B HBA
F#2,530,0007T °

R-B—NF+—FHAA  EHEREZR
B EEA 1007 — 1T/ S
B A A #2,000,000,0007T 94 # # IE
_ETTEA BT FFIEAL04%E1E o &
TR —FE - —F+— AR A&
FAm) 7T E A A K #200,0007T °

(5 T F) AN 1227689 2 fE £
#E

EHEEEEARAR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

31. BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

Note a:

Note b:

Note ¢

Note d:

On 8 August 2012, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings issued unsecured non-
listed bonds in an aggregate amount of RMB3,000,000,000 (“Bonds 1”).
Bonds 1 were priced at par at RMB100 each, carrying interest at a fixed rate
of 4.48% per annum. The Bonds 1 matured and were repaid on 8 August
2017. The issue fee of Bonds 1 amounted to RMB9,000,000.

On 22 March 2013, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings further issued unsecured
non-listed Bonds 1 in an aggregate amount of RMB1,400,000,000 at par
at RMB100 each, carrying interest at a fixed rate of 4.94% per annum.
The Bondss 1 matured and were repaid on 22 March 2018. The issue fee of
Bonds 1 amounted to RMB4,200,000.

On 9 May 2013, CR Sanjiu issued unsecured corporate bonds (“Bonds
2") in an aggregate amount of RMB500,000,000 which were listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Bonds 2 were priced at par at RMB100
each, carrying interest of a fixed coupon rate of 4.60% per annum. The
issuer can elect to increase 1 basis point on the fixed coupon rate (the
“revised coupon rate”) or maintain the existing coupon rate at the end of
the third year and the bondholders would then have an option to request
for redemption of the bonds. The Bonds 2 matured and were repaid on 9
May 2018 and no early redemption option were exercised. The issue fee of
Bonds 2 amounted to RMB2,000,000.

On 9 July 2015, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings issued unsecured non-listed
bonds (“Bonds 3”) in an aggregate amount of RMBZ2,000,000,000 at par
at RMB100 each, carrying interest of a fixed rate of 4.20% per annum. The
Bonds 3 will mature on 8 July 2020. The issue fee of Bonds 3 amounted to
RMBZ210,000.

On 27 August 2018, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings issued unsecured non-
listed bonds in an aggregate amount of RMBZ2,000,000,000 (“Bonds 4”).
Bonds 4 were priced at par at RMB100 each, carrying interest of a fixed rate
of 4.21% per annum. The Bonds 4 will mature on 27 August 2021. The
issue fee of Bonds 4 amounted to RMBZ2,530,000.

On 5 November 2018, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings further
issued unsecured non-listed Bonds 4 in an aggregate amount of
RMB2,000,000,000 at par at RMB100 each, carrying interest of a fixed rate
of 4.04% per annum. The Bonds 4 will mature on 5 November 2021. The
issue fee of Bonds 4 amounted to RMB200,000.

The interest payables of the bonds are included in other payables in Note
27.
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HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

31. BHES (&) 31. BONDS PAYABLE (continued)
ZEBENEBE T \EER-_Z—+F The movements of these bonds during the years ended 31 December
TZA=T—BLEFENEHHIINOT 2018 and 2017 are set out below:
2018 2017
BT T BB T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REFRREE Carrying amount as at the beginning of
the year 4,665,382 9,948,919
W EBITES WA TS RIE Proceeds received from issued bonds 4,552,255 =
ER Repayment (2,350,507) (5,770,350)
fE 5 A% Exchange realignment (19,390) 486,813
RERKREE Carrying amount as at the end of the year 6,847,740 4,665,382
32. IEERLIE 32. DEFERRED TAX

EEFIEEE
RZE—N\F+ZA=+—RHAk=ZZT—+
F+ - A=+ BHELHRBEEMNFBN

Deferred tax assets
Details of deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017 are as follows:

T
BEERE HIEEE BERETER HA @t
Impairment Provision
of assets Tax losses and accruals Others Total
BEF T BEF T BET T BET T BETF T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=T—tF—FA—H At 1 January 2017 127,538 37,838 219,346 63,583 448,305
FRRGEEBERA (40K) /5N Deferred tax (charged)/ credited to the
ERERYIE (Hat11) consolidated statement of profit or
loss during the year (Note 71) 31,002 29,144 28,749 (13,721) 75,174
WEEM B AR (A5t37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) 5014 1,633 - 8,850 15,497
I 5 AR Exchange realignment 10,177 3,709 16,364 4,290 34,540
W-Z—+F+-_A=+—8H At 31 December 2017 173,731 72,324 264,459 63,002 573,516
RZT—N\F—H—H At 1 January 2018 173,731 72,324 264,459 63,002 573,516
FRINE S I 3R 2E QI 505 Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 (Note 2.2)

VE (Bit2.2) 20,570 - - - 20,570
W-Z—NE—A—B (EE5)  At1lanuary 2018 (restated) 194,301 72,324 264,459 63,002 594,086
FRRGAEBREERA (30B) /5H A Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the consolidated

BRI (Hzt11) statement of profit or loss during
the year (Note 11) 46,627 8,466 15,074 (22,915) 47,252
W iEk B AR (A1:237) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) 2,340 = = = 2,340
R Exchange realignment 9,017) (3,648) (4,660) (4,934) (22,259)
RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018 234,251 77,142 274,873 35,153 621,419

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2018 235



L,

im O WIS ER R EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-Z—\FT-A=+—ALFE

32. IEFERLE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

32.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

EIEFiIEaE Deferred tax liabilities
N E—NFE+_A=+—RBE=-_ZF—+ Details of deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 31
FH+-ZA=+—HEERBEEMNFBN December 2017 are as follows:
T
BB A R
FREEM g NGk
MEER QPREERE RO IREF Hth )
Fair value
adjustment
arising from  Undistributed
Revaluation  acquisition of earnings of
of properties subsidiaries subsidiaries Others Total
BETF T BEFT BEFT BETF T BEF T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZT—tF—HA—H At 1 January 2017 273,876 455,927 203,406 5,238 938,447
FRRGAEZERAMG (5TA)  Deferred tax charged/ (credited) to the
ERERYIE (Hat11) consolidated statement of profit or
loss during the year (Note 71) 14,445 (174,985) 45,657 63,841 (51,042)
FRBE (Hz11) Reversed during the year (Note 77) - - (171,089) - (171,089)
BB AR (47:#37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) = 178,078 = = 178,078
&N A% Exchange realignment 19,695 31,969 15,826 2,559 70,049
—Z—+F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2017 308,016 490,989 93,800 71,638 964,443
RZZ—-N\F—A—8 At 1 January 2018 308,016 490,989 93,800 71,638 964,443
FRRERABERANMG/ (5fN)  Deferred tax charged/ (credited) to the
RIRERIE (Hat11) consolidated statement of profit or
loss during the year (Note 11) 37,272 (73,876) 101,704 (25,465) 39,635
FRBE (A1) Reversed during the year (Note 11) - - (195,504) = (195,504)
W iEH B AR (A13237) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) = 35,040 = = 35,040
IE 5% Exchange realignment 14,755 2,162 = 20,741 37,658
—E-\F+=-A=+—-8 At 31 December 2018 360,043 454,315 - 66,914 881,272
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BE-F—\F+-AS+—AILFE
32. IEIERIE ()

R-FE—tF+=-A=+—8 ZE£EHD
FAEIMFIE R B A B 12,510,676,0007T
— T —+tF: B #2,909,663,0007T) °
R-ZFE—N\F+=-A=+—HB A&EEHR
1A E 188 #5341,825,000 (—ZF —+
@ 75 #289,296,000 T ) B MERIE LT
HEE- R_ZE—N\F+ZA=1+—8"
HITHEIEE B A %2,168,851,0007T
—ET—+F:%%2,620,367,00070) i
RARBINREEZEZEN WARBRE
MEETHBEE-R_Z—N\NF+_A
=+—HB RAENMBEBETBRESE
7 1106,655,0000 (Z 2 —+F B
44,812,0007T ) & HA BR PR 1] o F b 7% 18 /&

BRERATFERR:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group had unused tax losses of HK$2,510,676,000 as at 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$2,909,663,000). Deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$341,825,000
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$289,296,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of
HK$2,168,851,000 due to the unpredictable profit stream as at 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$2,620,367,000). Included in the unused tax
losses was a loss of HK$106,655,000 at 31 December 2018 that may be
carried forward indefinitely (2017: HK$44,812,000). Other tax losses will
be expired in the following years:

2018 2017
T T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E—)N\F 2018 = 606,167
—E—NF 2019 491,249 553,025
—E-THF 2020 497,313 663,222
—E-—%F 2021 411,232 419,883
—E—— 2022 325,619 333,258
—E-=%F 2023 336,783 =
2,062,196 2,575,555

BRTIABMELERR BB RER

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following
items:

2018 2017

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

A SR AR Deductible temporary differences 557,323 583,456
AEARIBER R Unused tax credits 2,168,851 2,620,367
2,726,174 3,203,823

BRI LA B MELERIBEEL RER
[REARBE AR BT AR L7 E B R BUE N

ARARNEE EAESRNIER -

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above
items as it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the above items can be utilised.
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32. IELERIA (&) 32. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

RIFEPBECEMSEE NP BEAHAEST
ZHNERERINEREEST IR 2B EAR
WI10%ENR -FERTE ST N\F—
BA—BREAS WEAR-_ZTLE&+=
A=+—BBEEZEF i B /i
SN EEFTB R AR 2 BT A MEIE
4 BT IS EREHRKTENT - NEE
ZEARERAS%T10% o F L NEEE
MAFBRAMKL 2B RARMRA-TE
NE—A—HEELEZAFDIRZKREH
B

RIBEIF[2018]35% R E » fWiBINREH
BENDRENREEZENERETMAE
MEMH AR RBEEERSKLTEA
WEL-ZAEE T —tF A B
R mRAKEAIESB D kA R
Fiy ) X R TE R B 7 A B P 3t BT BB A R A AR
BURGZEMEARNE - EE -F
b RBEFREAENREEN AR ERE
BER-ZE-NE+-A=1+—HHE:T
RIELEHBRE-

33. HftuIERBEE

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

According to Guo Shui 2018 No. 3, if foreign investors invest directly
their distributed profits in the investees and the related withholding tax
is not provided until the dividend is paid out of Mainland China. The
announcement is effective from 1 January 2017. As the Group is in
a position to control the quantum and timing of the distribution and
decides to retain the dividend in the subsidiaries in Mainland China for
the further development of such subsidiaries. Therefore, the deferred
tax liability provided in previous years was reversed and no deferred tax
liability was provided as at 31 December 2018.

33. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$000 HK$'000
I RT 4 BA ) Government grants (i) 674,869 734,462
HEIFEAREG) Provision for restructuring of business (ii) 461,252 577,293
HAh Others 189,998 162,733
1,326,119 1,474,488

iy BE-_ZEZ—NE+=-_B=+—H1It () During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group received

new government grants from the government authorities
amounting to HK$83,887,000 (2017: HK$94,366,000) to
subsidise the construction of certain research and development
centres and the purchases of property, plant and equipment of the
Group. The Group has complied with the conditions attached to
the grants as at the end of the reporting period and will transfer
the grants to profit or loss over the useful lives of the related
assets. The Group recognised these government grants to profit
or loss amounting to HK$90,010,000 during the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$105,503,000).

FEAEBE B BT WEEE
83,887,000 (—ZZE— L4 : B
94,366,0007T ) K BT B - AR &
AREFERETHELLKBEY
¥ BMEMEERE#HD - AEER
WRE BT A MBI A IR TSR
FHREEMNERTFHRNEHEE
BREBR -MNEBZE-_Z—-N\E+=-A
=t+—HIFE AEERBEER
790,010,000 (=T —+HF : 78
#105,503,0007T ) #) T #8 BY
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33. HttIEREAE (8)
(i) FEMEBELRBERDERR

33. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (continued)

540 (i) The movements of the provision for restructuring of business

T during the years are set out below :
2018 2017
BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REYRREE Carrying amount as at the beginning of the year 577,293 578,651
FAEA Utilisation during the year (37,086) (40,444)
[E X A% Exchange realignment (78,955) 39,086
RERREE Carrying amount as at the end of the year 461,252 577,293
¥R EABRBEREARB-STNF I The provision for restructuring of business represents funds set
AZ+thBERmItRBESATEER aside for the retirement of employees in restructuring of Beijing

KHEE -

Pharmaceutical starting from 25 September 2004.

34, R 34. SHARE CAPITAL
) Shares
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEITREUE Issued and fully paid:
6,284,506,461 6,284,506,461
ZZT—+%:6,284,506,461) IR L @A (2017: 6,284,506,461) ordinary shares 27,241,289 27,241,289
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35. EEEAREERERNII S 35, PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

EME AT MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TERAREAE NI ERNAEFIE The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
2 BB RATIHEE: Group that have material non-controlling interests:
SEMRALSL FERER
MEDR AR TEEXE PSR R R IR ZREL ) BT IFERERAEF RItFERER
Place of Proportion
incorporation of ownership interests
and principal and voting rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiaries place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

BT T BT BETT AT

% % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R HE R E i, 78.78 80.25 1,951,428 1,892,946 10,186,003 9,483,379
Dong-E-E-Jiao PRC/ Mainland China
EHER HE RN 40.01 40.01 469,959 434,642 3,611,303 4,037,793
CR Double-Crane PRC/ Mainland China
EH=N B/ R E i 36.40 36.40 637,312 575,424 4,639,724 4,626,556
CR Sanjiu PRC/ Mainland China
ERPLBEERAR HE R E i, 40.00 40.00 40,418 46,558 387,028 457,639
China Resources Hubei PRC/ Mainland China
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
EHERBEY HE BN 30.00 30.00 183,224 171,714 327,203 479,129
CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical PRC/ Mainland China
ERBEEAFEREZNAEENB A Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's
RIEEMNBMBERBEH N T TXH subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out below.
B ERBEREEBARKE A RIKENN The summarised financial information below represents amounts before
ki intragroup eliminations.
EL NG Dong-E-E-Jiao
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
MEVEE Current assets 12,289,549 11,532,737
ERBEE Non-current assets 3,540,097 3,272,707
mENAE Current liabilities (2,814,330) (2,920,740)
ETBEE Non-current liabilities (85,635) (75,420)
El g Non-controlling interests (30,754) (32,547)
SR BHE ARG Equity attributable to owners of
Dong-E-E-Jiao 12,898,927 11,776,737
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35. EEEAREERERNIISHE 35, PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

BB RR (&)

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)
R (&) Dong-E-E-Jiao (continued)
2018 2017
BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Weas Revenue 8,711,493 8,508,197
=3 Expenses (6,234,433) (6,149,284)
FREH Profit for the year 2,477,060 2,358,913
SR B R HE B A B (e Profit attributable to owners of Dong-E-E-Jiao 2,474,995 2,359,326
SRR ER R, (E18) Profit/(loss) attributable to the
non-controlling interests 2,065 (413)
FREA Profit for the year 2,477,060 2,358,913
PR B A ARG E 2 RS Other comprehensive income attributable to
owners of Dong-E-E-Jiao 45,576 33,932
FEIRRR R PR AL E fth 2 TN e Other comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests - -
FREMEE WS Other comprehensive income for the year 45,576 33,932
R B A AL E K =EEE Total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of Dong-E-E-Jiao 2,520,571 2,393,258
IEYERR RE RS B 2 E IR ES, (518 ) #8 %8 Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable
to non-controlling interests 2,065 (413)
FAREEKELTE Total comprehensive income for the year 2,522,636 2,392,845
B IR SRS Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2,374 545,145
KEEFFNRERAFRE Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,197,867 2,028,150
BEFHHRETA CRt) F8 Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
investing activities 76,110 (962,473)
EEHMNIRS R FE Net cash outflow from financing activities (786,526) (707,245)
MEH Z5E Exchange difference 3 76
WEMAHEE Net cash inflow 487,454 358,508

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2018 241

9



N,

RO WIS IRV 5T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BWBRR (&)

EHEH

HE_ZT— ) \F+-A=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2018

35. EEEAREERERNIDHE 35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)
CR Double-Crane

2018 2017
BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
MENVEE Current assets 5,860,772 5,718,549
EmENEE Non-current assets 5,901,558 5,572,006
mEEE Current liabilities (2,428,667) (1,446,517)
EmeaE Non-current liabilities (307,661) (454,797)
eI i Non-controlling interests (78,382) (468,677)
EHEHRER ARG RS Equity attributable to owners of
CR Double-Crane 8,947,620 8,920,564
2018 2017
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Wz Revenue 9,764,195 7,411,261
53 Expenses (8,589,592) (6,393,256)
F N A Profit for the year 1,174,603 1,018,005
EHEEERS ABNET Profit attributable to owners of
CR Double-Crane 1,149,841 972,434
I 172 5 A 2 JRE {1 Ot ) Profit attributable to the
non-controlling interests 24,762 45,571
FREF Profit for the year 1,174,603 1,018,005
EHEEESA Other comprehensive income/(oss)
FERE M (EE) attributable to owners of CR Double-Crane 3,871 (361)
VR RE AR R (G E Mt 2 T N 2 Other comprehensive income attributable
to non-controlling interests 651 -
FRHMEERE (EIB) Other comprehensive income/(loss) for
the year 4,522 (361)
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35. }?ﬁﬁiﬁ#?ﬂg%é%%ﬂﬁ% 35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
BB AT (&) MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)

EHER (&) CR Double-Crane (continued)

2018 2017

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

EHEERFARLEEKEERE Total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of CR Double-Crane 1,153,712 972,073
R S L 2 E R AR R Total comprehensive income attributable to

non-controlling interests 25,413 45,571

FRNEEBRLRTE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,179,125 1,017,644
AT IEE R R IR R Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 50,262 545,145
KETEBNRESRAFE Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,743,932 2,028,150
KEEHNRS R FE Net cash outflow from investing activities (977,584) (962,473)
BMEEHNRS R FE Net cash outflow from financing activities (953,429) (707,245)
N ERR Exchange difference 52 76
Be (R /MAFHE Net cash (outflow)/inflow (187,029) 358,508

EH=H CR Sanjiu

2018 2017

BET T BB T T

HK$'000 HK$'000

RENEE Current assets 9,788,264 8,187,053
EREBEE Non-current assets 10,789,117 11,187,580
ViEII=RE Current liabilities (7.209,021) (6,585,017)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (621,866) (677,459)
FEFERR HE 2R Non-controlling interests (388,926) (342,345)
EH=NEB ARGER Equity attributable to owners of CR Sanjiu 12,357,568 11,769,812
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35. EEEAREERERNIDHE 35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

BWBRR (&)

#HH=N (&)

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)
CR Sanjiu (continued)

2018 2017
BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Weas Revenue 15,940,402 12,833,162
X Expenses (14,189,546) (11,302,314)
FNm A Profit for the year 1,750,856 1,530,848
EBE=NEEAEIERT Profit attributable to owners of CR Sanjiu 1,700,055 1,502,238
FEIE IR 2 A5 ) Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 50,801 28,610
FREH Profit for the year 1,750,856 1,530,848
EB=NEEA Other comprehensive income/(loss)
FEREM 2R (EE) attributable to owners of CR Sanjiu 2,980 (1,445)
FRHEMEEWRES (EE) Other comprehensive income/(loss) for
the year 2,980 (1,445)
EH-NHEBARLKEEKEERE Total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of CR Sanjiu 1,703,035 1,500,793
EERER (S EWN SR Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests 50,801 28,610
FRNEEKRLREE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,753,836 1,529,403
B IR SRS Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 3,497 65,795
KETEFNRERAFRE Net cash inflow from operating activities 2,268,887 1,800,803
KE TSRS R FE Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,057,408) (637,121)
EEHMNIRS R FE Net cash outflow from financing activities (513,603) (240,736)
E R =% Exchange difference 411) (4,339)
WEMAHE Net cash inflow 697,465 918,607
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35. EEEAREERERNIISHE 35, PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

BB RR (&)

FERNILBEARQT

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)

China Resources Hubei Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

2018 2017
BT T BET T
HK$000 HK$'000
mENEE Current assets 4,119,098 3,785,174
FERBEE Non-current assets 571,986 558,923
mENEE Current liabilities (3,714,786) (3,294,337)
FEREEE Non-current liabilities (8,729) (10,279)
eI i Non-controlling interests (88,087) (69,745)
ERHIL B AR AT A AERHER Equity attributable to owners of China
Resources Hubei Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 879,482 969,736
2018 2017
BET T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Wz Revenue 7,567,996 8,227,189
X Expenses (7,466,952) (8,126,735)
F N A Profit for the year 101,044 100,454
AL B AR A R A AEE % F] Profit attributable to owners of China
Resources Hubei Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. 82,784 89,827
FEVERR R 4G i 7 Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 18,260 10,627
FREF Profit for the year 101,044 100,454
BT IEIE RS AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 3,054 8,654
KEEBMIRE N F R Net cash outflow from operating activities (142,011) (384,374)
REEFBNRERAFRE Net cash inflow from investing activities 21,347 63,934
BB EBMNRESRAFE Net cash inflow from financing activities 107,310 358,645
W& ORb),/RAFE Net cash (outflow)/inflow (13,354) 38,205
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35. EEEAREERERNIDHE 35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

BWBRR (&)

EHEREE

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)

CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical

2018 2017
BEET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
MENVEE Current assets 10,533,611 9,989,965
FERBEE Non-current assets 754,691 734,836
mEEE Current liabilities (9,906,838) (9,238,370)
EmeaE Non-current liabilities (290,787) (151,741)
FEFERS RS Non-controlling interests (108,520) (112,461)
EHERBERA ARLER Equity attributable to owners
CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical 982,157 1,222,229
2018 2017
BEET T AT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
Wz Revenue 25,235,739 25,610,158
53 Expenses (24,624,993) (25,076,154)
F N A Profit for the year 610,746 534,004
EHEREEEE ARLRT Profit attributable to owners of
CR Guangdong Pharmaceutical 584,138 517,557
e RS AE 25 B (1 Y ) Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 26,608 16,447
FREF Profit for the year 610,746 534,004
BT IEIE R R AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 25,328 145,168
KEEBMIRESMAF R Net cash inflow from operating activities 2,886,293 2,090,736
BEFESHHIRERA CRH ) FE Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
investing activities 118,493 (724,330)
MEEFBNRe R FE Net cash outflow from financing activities (3.021,876) (1,330,404)
Be ORb) /RAFE Net cash (outflow)/inflow (17,090) 36,002

246 2oisEam sERssmsEA




ORI
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

36. PEAFIFLHENEE BFE 36. ISAAS\EETS/UABILIHES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

() RZZE-NE+ANR EH=AE (i)  On 8 October 2018, CR Sanjiu announced the decision of its board

moEEEERATEERI=NE
BB AR (ATESE DRIN=1])
82.89%MIRELNFAEBH = NHE
HRREE - R AQAR2EWB
NAEHBEREBRAGE M-
BEATEERI=ZN17.11%H %
W AEEEFBIAEXDLERY=NM
100% f% # o

RZZE—NE+—A=+N\R8 FI
ZNWEERNERN LG E EE
RGFTEE LM MR RERE
BBERABIKABER ZEERZE
—NF—ANAKRY1,116,886,000
7T (A& R 78 #1,274,690,0007T )
HRETK - R-_E—N\E+_-A8
=t+—H RIN=NEDEEFIED
EREEAS -

of directors to dispose of 82.89% equity interest of Shenzhen
Sanjiu Hospital Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Sanjiu”) to comply with CR
Sanjiu’s long-term development strategy. In the meantime, China
Resources Pharmaceutical Investment Co., Ltd., a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, announced its decision to dispose of
17.11% equity interests of Shenzhen Sanjiu. In total, the Group
plans to dispose of 100% equity interests of Shenzhen Sanijiu.

On 28 November 2018, 100% of the shares of Shenzhen
Sanjiu were listed for sale on Shanghai United Assets and Equity
Exchange and Shenzhen Xinshen Hospital Management Co., Ltd.
became the buyer. This disposal was completed at a consideration
of RMB1,116,886,000 (equivalent to HK$1,274,690,000) in
January 2019. As at 31 December 2018, Shenzhen Sanjiu was
classified as a disposal group held for sale.

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited Annual Report 2018 247



Y

ORI
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B=_%

0]

SERRFLENEE A

E

(%)
FRAPER/FBIEHENRI=NE
EE/BBR7MT:

—N\F+-A=F+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

36. ASSETS/LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

SALE (continued)

(i) (continued)
The assets/liabilities of Shenzhen Sanjiu classified as held for sale
for the year are presented below:

2018
BT T
HK$'000
W B Kk (FaE14) Property, plant and equipment (Note 74) 170,718
Ha3EmeEE Other non-current assets 51,178
H 5 Kk H MW FUE Trade and other receivables 7
e MIRTTHES Cash and bank balances 277
DEABEHENEE Assets classified as held for sale 222,180
Eith B RIE R FEETE A Other payables and accruals (1,341)
BEEREESBEARELENEERRANERE Liabilities directly associated with the assets
classified as held for sale (1,341)
HHEHSEEARNEETE Net assets directly associated with the disposal group 220,839
(i) BRMEE®1,093,841,0005L (= (i) The carrying amount of HK$1,093,841,000 (31 December 2017:
Z—+F+_-_A=+—H: B HK$1,146,564,000), representing the fair value of 14.12% equity
1,146,564,0007L) (HEREEX interest in Hefei Tianmai as at 31 December 2018, was included in
ER_E-)N\F+-_F=+—H assets classified as held for sale, details of which is included in Note
14.12%BEHAREE) T ADE 20(a).
AREEHENEE FBENWE
20(a) °
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37. S 37.

EERABLE=-FRBTRUEBTERE
ENBENAR BRERERARARE
650,827,0007T (185 M & ¥742,782,000
TL) cRERSHEHRAKEEAR - IEZ
EMBRRABEERAANEEREANER
LEBRES SR pENE U RIE s
EY R

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The Group acquired ten companies which were engaged in
manufacturing and sales of pharmaceutical products from independent
third parties at an aggregated cash consideration of RMB650,827,000
(equivalent to HK$742,782,000). Those transactions had been
accounted for using the acquisition method. These subsidiaries were
acquired so as to provide human resources, economies of scale and
synergy to the Group and to expand in pharmaceutical industry.

P B A
wWUEE S BB &5 A EA Bt
Percent
of interest
Name of acquirees Date of acquisition acquired
EHBIBEARAR (A IFE LBEFRAR) —E-NF=A=+—H 70%
China Resources Zhenjiang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 31 March 2018
(formerly known as Jiangsu Nanshan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.)
EHETEBREGRAR (AIHEDBEREXLARAQR) —E-NF=A=+—H 70%
China Resources Lianyungang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 31 March 2018
(formerly known as Lianyungang Dezhong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.)
EHER (LB BEFRAR (A LERABEGRATF) —E-N\F—-HA—H 51%
China Resources Guobang (Shanghai) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 1 January 2018
(formerly known as Shanghai Guobang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.)
st EL B G R AR —E-NFRAT+H 70%
Guoyao Guang'an Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 10 May 2018
KRR ONEEEGRAE —E-N\¥t+—HA—H 70%
Zhangjiakou Namei Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 1 November 2018
MmE MR REEER AR —E-NFENA+H 86%
Hunan Xiangzhong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 16 August 2018
BUT A RWEE R &5 B #
Business acquired from the following companies Date of acquisition
PP R B8 R R A A —E2-NE+ZA=+—H
Shanxi Kancheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 31 December 2018
RSB EGRAR —E2-NE+ZA=+—H
Anhui Qiaoling Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 31 December 2018
AL B TR AR —E2-N\E+=ZA=+—H
Huaibei Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 31 December 2018
MR EXBEEXARAA —E-N\FtA—H
Nanjing Xinye Pharmaceutical Industrial Co., Ltd. 1 July 2018
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37. XS0t (&)

AHENEENBEREEAHN A LER

37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities as at the dates of

UK acquisitions were as follows:
W EB IS FERR A
EEAAREE*
Provisional
fair value
recognised on
acquisition*
BT T
HK$'000
M R NERE (it 14) Property, plant and equipment (Note 74) 313,360
a3 E KA (AaE16) Prepaid land lease payments (Note 76) 89,348
EILEE (M1iE18) Intangible assets (Note 18) 277,494
WA (MiE15) Investment properties (Note 75) 44,193
ERBERMEE Non-current financial assets 2,283
EEFRIBEE (f:332) Deferred tax assets (Note 32) 2,340
B meh&EE Other current assets 603
FE Inventories 197,329
B 5 N E M e FRIE Trade and other receivables 576,876
Re RIRTTHER Cash and bank balances 93,581
B 5 N E MR FRIE Trade and other payables (772,611)
HRIT R HABERK Bank and other borrowings (85,962)
HM3EmeaE Other non-current liabilities (91,440)
BERTBARE (H232) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 32) (35,040)
BAnBEFTENBEE FEEE Total identifiable net assets at fair value 612,354
FEVERR Non-controlling interests (94,636)
W EENEE (Hit17) Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 77) 225,064
EEERE (UBReIM) Consideration transferred, satisfied by cash 742,782

Bzt

‘b 250 201

BT A # 5B EFERYE A DB
B EL SEINGTHE Bt - R85 & B F1E
ATRA 1 FG5 - 90 R g F BT 1218 A 4
HIEEEL IR EE -

RIGEIW B A5 RiZEX ZHATE L
TL (B8 55 #5576,876,0007T £ FEH 51 FE A
HE K% B8 73 1576,876,0007T * 7R EH AT
Ye[5] -

BFEFH EHBEKEFRATF

* Additional assessment is required to determine fair value of the net
identifiable assets on the acquisition date. Thus, the net identifiable assets
may be subsequently adjusted, with a corresponding adjustment to
gooawill within 12 months after the acquisition date.

Note: The receivables acquired in these transactions with a fair value of
HK$576,876,000 had gross contractual amounts of HK$576,876,000 at
the relevant dates of acquisition, which are expected to be collectible.
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37. XS0t (&)

WHRELHE AR RBraBETE
BREE DHERZFESZHEBHEMES
BF B 7 B 48 1 U8 77 /Y T8 B0 15 [R] 280 7 A
73 WEE R RRMIGER  ANERER
TR E - AR R FN SIS AR
MEVEENHERRE WIraHEmED
FRERR o

ZEWEBMEENBHERAB T ERS
JTEAE

37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Goodwiill arose in the acquisitions because the cost of the combination
included the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future
market development, the assembled workforce and the control premium
of the acquirees as the acquirees are engaged in various areas relating
to the manufacturing, distribution and retail in the pharmaceutical and
medication industry. These benefits were not recognised separately
from goodwill because they did not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions was expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

BT
HK$°000
WESHM B R Rl MRS HE - Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries:
ReRE Cash consideration 742,782
KW AEMERKIBEN S E Amounts unpaid and included in other payables (310,468)
DWERSRRSEED Cash and cash equivalents acquired (93,581)
W EB A RMR SR F58 Net cash outflow on acquisitions of subsidiaries 338,733

WIS EERNBINEREEFEREF A
144,551,000 WINEE FEENFA
W %5 A7 #1,165,164,0007T °

BREUBER=-ZFZ—NF—H—AH
ERCEEFAKTEABREAEBE
190,436,933,0007T ' i F W& F| 15 & 75
#7,627,378,0007T © % 18 # & BHE 35 87
2R ADBRBMBEER=-_Z—NF—A
—HEXBIBER T AEEREREGHIK
mNEEREE T TIRIEARRREEZNTE

e

Included in the profit for the year was HK$44,551,000 attributable to
the additional business generated by the acquirees. Revenue for the year
included HK$1,165,164,000 generated by the acquirees.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2018, total group
revenue for the year would have been HK$190,436,933,000, and
profit for the year would have been HK$7,627,378,000. The proforma
information was for illustrative purposes only and was not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would had been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2018, nor was it intended to be a projection of future results.
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37. XS0t (&) 37.

HE-_Z—+tF+-_A=1+—8B1L*F
BoAEBEBLIF=ZTRE+ERRK
FHEREERBENRA - BHRSRE
BARME2,815,412,0007T (HBERB
#3,256,305,0000) R EZ KB ARE
99,330,0007T (#H % 7 /% #114,885,000
TL) cRERSHEHEAWEEAR - WIEZ
EMBRRABEERAANEEREANER
BRI SE R RN A R R s

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired
15 companies which were engaged in manufacturing and sales
of pharmaceutical products from independent third parties at an
aggregated cash consideration of RMB2,815,412,000 (equivalent
to HK$3,256,305,000) and equity consideration of RMB99,330,000
(equivalent to HK$114,885,000). Those transactions had been
accounted for using the acquisition method. These subsidiaries were
acquired so as to provide human resources, economies of scale and
synergy to the Group and to expand in pharmaceutical industry.

ES L
T 1
BEEAHE g A EA A7 (%)
% of interest

Name of entity Date of acquisition acquired
EMENEEREXERAF (AIMEMNEEREXARAR]) —T—+F—H 65.00%
Jilin Sanjiu Jinfukang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. January 2017

(formerly known as Jilin Jinfukang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.)
HEEM)IIBEFRAR (BT EBEEEGRATF) —T—t+F—H 70.00%
China Resources Sichuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. January 2017

(formerly known as Chengdu Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.)
BE(RR)EXARAA —T—+%_A 100.00%
Jinrun (Tianjin) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. February 2017
KGA (B EXFE QR —T—+F=A 100.00%
Taiyangshi (Tangshan) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. March 2017
EHERBEARAR (AEEARINABESGRAGF) —T—tF=H1 70.00%
China Resources Nanjing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. March 2017

(formerly known as Nanjing Xiangu Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.)
SBEX (R AREERAF —T—+F=A 100.00%

(R EmP LA RBET ERHBRAA])
Shuanghe Pharmaceutical (Hainan) Co., Ltd. March 2017

(formerly known as Hainan Sinochem United

Pharmaceutical Industry Company Limited by Shares)
EHRTBEARAR (AIBLURERBERRAR) —T—+%—A 51.00%
China Resources Taian Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. January 2017

(formerly known as China Resources Shangdong Rongda

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.)
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37. ¥ A0t (&)
BE-S-—tF+=A=t+-HLEE

37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

(#&)
PIT L S e e
ERRE W s B HA A7 (%)
% of interest

Name of entity Date of acquisition acquired
R (K2 BEBRAR —ZE—+tFXA 70.00%

(AIEREMEGRE ELHARAA)
China Resources Unicom (Tianjin) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. June 2017

(formerly known as Tianjin Unicom Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.)
EHABBEARAA —ZE—+tFXA 70.00%

(AIBAEMREBEEABEGREEAA)
China Resources Daging Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. June 2017

(formerly known as Daging Gemaidemeibang

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.)
Mt REBERR AR ZE—+FXA 100.00%
Hebei Yisheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. June 2017
EHEMELEBRAF (AIBEMNTERFASEEBRAR) —E—tFNA 70.00%
China Resources Huizhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. August 2017

(formerly known as Huizhou Weikang Chinese and

Western Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.)
ERIABREARLAR (M IAERBERMTARLAR) —T—+FNA 70.00%
China Resources Jiangxi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. August 2017

(formerly known as Jiangxi Huachen Pharmaceutical

Technology Co. Ltd.)
IWREBRERBERRAA —T—+tFNA 65.00%
Shandong Shenghai Health Products Co., Ltd. August 2017
BREMEEXERRAR —T—+tFNA 70.00%
Hainan Yukang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. August 2017
B AT A RIBHE 8 75 W HE B HA
Business acquired from the following company Date of acquisition
REBEYRBRAR —E—+F=A
Southeast Pharmaceutical Logistics Co., Ltd. March 2017

MRZERBRESFEAEEN LD
EXR HEBRZERBENERIZGREE

-

The information for these acquisitions was disclosed on an aggregated
basis as they were individually immaterial to the Group.
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

37. ¥BE6t (A)

BE—Z—tFt+-A=T—HLEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

(#&)
MEBAFIHAMNEEREBENAABED The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of subsidiaries were
T: as follows:
RUEE B B
RO ANEE
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
M - B MR (A 14) Property, plant and equipment (Note 74) 903,449
TEft LB EFIE (HiE16) Prepaid land lease payments (Note 16) 150,858
mRAE (Mi218) Intangible assets (Note 18) 670,681
AHHERE Available-for-sale investments 62,761
Ha3EmBEE Other non-current assets 3,384
BETRIBEE (H7#32) Deferred tax assets (Note 32) 15,497
FE Inventories 602,020
B 5 N E b U GRIE Trade and other receivables 3,195,653
Be MIR1TTES Cash and bank balance 356,804
B 5N E b FRIE Trade and other payables (3,229,256)
FERTFRIE Tax payable (135,422)
IRITRE AL G Bank and other borrowings (466,751)
HEIERBEE Other non-current liabilities (44,529)
RIETRIBAE (M5232) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 32) (178,078)
BARBEFTEN] A Total identifiable net assets at fair value 1,907,071
BEFHEERE
TR = Non-controlling interests (423,132)
1,483,939
WEEE R mE Goodwill arising on acquisition 1,887,251
PHEERE (UREIHTR Consideration transferred, satisfied by cash and
— R B AR RS ) equity interests in a subsidiary 3,371,190
EEERESIT: An analysis of consideration transferred:
AR e Z A Cash 3,256,305
LR —RHB AR MR Equity interests in a subsidiary 114,885
3,371,190
Biat - RIGENCHE AR RZE3 5 AT EE L Note:  The receivables acquired in these transactions with a fair value of

HK$3,195,653,000 had gross contractual amounts of HK$3, 195,653,000
at the relevant dates of acquisition, which are expected to be collectible.

TL 1B (8 /8 #53,195,653,0007T 69 fEH 50 H
HIABE 49 B8 735153, 195,653,000 * 7EH]
a4 [5] -
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37. XS0t (&)

WHRELHE AR RBraBETE
BREE DHERZFESZHEBHEMES
BF B 7 B 48 1 U8 77 /Y T8 B0 15 [R] 280 7 A
73 WEE R RRMIGER  ANERER
TR E - AR R FN SIS AR
MEVEENHERRE WIraHEmED
FRERR o

ZEWEBMEENBHERAB T ERS
JTEAE

37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Goodwiill arose in the acquisitions because the cost of the combination
included the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future
market development, the assembled workforce and the control premium
of the acquirees as the acquirees are engaged in various areas relating
to the manufacturing, distribution and retail in the pharmaceutical and
medication industry. These benefits were not recognised separately
from goodwill because they did not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions was expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

BT T
HK$'000
WESHM B R Rl MRS HE - Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries:
RERE Cash consideration 3,256,305
KW EFAEME N FIB S5 Amounts unpaid and included in other payables (694,305)
BWERENRESEEY Cash and cash equivalent acquired (356,804)
2,205,196

UG R T B A MR SN TS AR F R B
273,574,000 BB H B E-Z
—tE+ A=+ BULFEEELKES
75 206,897,0007T °

BEWBER T —tF— A —B=K"
HE-_Z—+E+-_A=1+—BIFEMD
EE WS B REAS AB174,895,144,000
TomBE—TE—+tF+-_A=+—HL
FE 8% F) #8575 #6,894,061,0007T © 3%
REERERFHA R RORBIKER
R_ZE—+F - BAEKOBERTAE
EATERSSHRES REEEE  TTE
ERRRELENTENR -

Included in the profit for the year was HK$273,574,000 attributable to
the additional business generated by the acquirees. Revenue for the year
end 31 December 2017 included HK$5,206,897,000 generated from
the acquirees.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017, total group
revenue for the year end 31 December 2017 would have been
HK$174,895,144,000, and profit for the year end 31 December 2017
would have been HK$6,894,061,000. The pro forma information was
for illustrative purposes only and was not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would had
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017,
nor was it intended to be a projection of future results.
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38. HEM B QT 38. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
R-E—N\FRA-+HEB AEEKB On 25 May 2018, Anhui Double-crane Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Anhui
NI BEEEEYERETAR (28 Double-crane”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered into an investment
e EFMNaGEEREROERA agreement with Suzhou Chuangyang Pharmaceutical Technology
7 (& MAlE ) ET 88 B - BRIEZH Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Chuangyang”). According to the agreement,
= EINABEBREAHERNEEWEA Suzhou Chuangyang shall invest RMB9,711,000 into Anhui Double-
AT BEREERAARAER AR ([THE crane Pharmaceutical Packageing Co., Ltd. (“Anhui Double-crane
BeE])RE AR 711,000 %% Packageing”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Anhui Double-crane. Upon
BR-ZZBE—NERNABE-TALEZK ZE the completion of the investment on 29 June 2018, Anhui Double-crane
AW HERE DR & lost the control over Anhui Double-crane Packaging and the investment
KREBHAEREIAEREAEELE - was accounted for as a joint venture using the equity method.

2018
BT T
HK$'000
EHEEETE: Net assets disposed of:
M BB KREE (Hit14) Property, plant and equipment (Note 74) 6,899
Himsh&EE Other current assets 86
5E Inventories 1,861
B 5 R H At FE Y IR Trade and other receivables 12,345
e RIRITHER Cash and bank balances 148
B 5 K E b e 5IE Trade and other payables (11,460)
9,879
BRHE —RMEB LR 6 Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary 502
REERBBRTIRENANEER Fair value of the remaining investment at
the date of the disposal 10,381
HE—RMBRANRERRESEEYH An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
MEFREI T : the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:
2018
BT T
HK$'000
BYRERE Cash consideration received =
EHEREMREEFEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of 148
HE—XWBARTNRERREEEYH Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
i FEE respect of the disposal of a subsidiary (148)
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9. ZEBRERERAMZE 39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS
(@) BMETHELANEEEH (@) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
B —=x
FHREHER AR
RITER  RHRES EfHES ERE HIE At i)
Amount
duetoan
intermediate
Bank Short-term Bonds Dividend holding
borrowings debentures payable payables company Others (ii)
BB BT BT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=E-\&—A—-H At 1 January 2018 32,209,788 - 4,665,382 582,581 - (2,960,015)
BERERE() Financing cash flow ()
RITERAMERE Proceeds from bank borrowings 76,973,500 = = = - -
BRRITER Repayment of bank borrowings (67,933,640) - - - = =
B —RTEERAR Advances from an intermediate
2% holding company = = = = 3,002,493 =
FrEREREE Capital contribution from non-controlling interests - = = = = 198,036
BITRFMEHE Proceeds from issuances of bonds = = 4,552,255 = = =
BREMNES Repayment of bonds payable = = (2,350,507) = = =
BRFE Interests paid - - - - - (2,835,035)
BRERIRE Spedial dividend paid = = = (1,559,479) = =
BRRE Dividend paid - - - (691,297) - =
RRBRMERE Proceeds from short-term debentures = 3,423,868 = = = =
SR R R A Payment for acquisitions of
non-controlling interests - - - - - (3,368,025)
BEEREFMENE Proceed from asset-backed securities - - - - - (2,984,931)
BFERERRS Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - (1,759,795) - =
FRE2T Non-cash changes
WEENB AR (H2237) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Vote 37) 85,962 = = = = -
SNEE K Foreign exchange translation (671,089) = (19,390) = = =
FIRERIRE Spedial dividend declared - - - 1,559,479 - -
SRAERE Final dividend declared = = = 691,297 = =
AIERREEIRE S Dividend declared to non-controlling shareholders = = = 1,268,517 = =
RIZ-NF At 31 December 2018
+=-A=+-A 40,664,521 3,423,868 6,847,740 91,303 3,002,493 (11,949,970)
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9. MEWERERMWMEE (F)  39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(@) BMETHEANEEZDH (&) (@) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
(continued)
P —=
AR R AR 2 7
RATIERK A ES EARE HIE H i)
Amount
due to an
intermediate
Bank Bonds Dividend holding
borrowings payable payables company Others(ii)
BT BT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZT—tF—HA—H At 1January 2017 15,762,513 9,948,919 339,434 - -
BERSHE®) Financing cash flow (i)
SBITIE B RIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 60,079,512 = = = -
EEIRITIER Repayment of bank borrowings (46,319,111) - - = =
BEEMES Repayment of bonds payable - (5,770,350) - - =
FEFX Interest expenses = = = = (2,115,904)
BRI S Special dividend paid = = (668,348) = =
BERREBRS Final dividend paid = = (565,606) = =
AIERRREIRRE Dividend paid to
non-controlling shareholders - - (669,211) - -
SN =PNGIEEEIN Payment for consideration for acquisition of
BarE additional interests in subsidiaries - - - - (884,361)
FERERTE Capital contribution from non-controlling interests = = = = 40,250
Bl—KRPEERABRK Advances from an intermediate holding company = = = 2,262,740 =
EE-RPREERRAFER Repayment of advances from an intermediate
holding company - - - (2,262,740) -
FREEE Non-cash changes
BB B AR (A1237) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) 466,751 = = = -
SN FEE 5, Foreign exchange translation 2,220,123 486,313 7,859 = =
FIRFFRIRE Special dividend declared = = 668,348 = =
TIRAHRE Final dividend declared = = 565,606 = =
AIEERBRREIRRE Dividend declared to
non-controlling shareholders - - 904,499 - -
—+F+-A=+—8 At 31 December 2017 32,209,788 4,665,382 582,581 - (2,960,015)
0 B BB A B R ERFIRITES (1) The cash flows make up the net amount of proceeds and
P22 IR IR B 2 18 B EEE S (T2 52 repayment from bank borrowings and bonds payable in the
5H o consolidated statements of cash flows.
()  BEMIEFEET  EEBRFZZFIIEZN (i) Other represents the interest expenses, proceed from asset-backed
B S UCEE I B 2 ] BB SMERS (1B R FE securities, payment for consideration for acquisition of additional
HER )T E - interests in subsidiaries and capital contribution from non-
controlling interests.
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B=E
40.

—E—\FtZA=t+—HILEE

HAREE

REZ_Z—N\FER-_ZFT—+tF+=-A
=+—BLFE AEROHEES TEK
ZERUEEZE S R EMEMNKIE: KR
RITHBRETEUREBRUNEERS AR
RIEERAE AEEEBHEZERKEE
BREMNEKNERR KRB RS - BiZBHE
HEEED  NEBEHHBEEF HRED
BEECHER UARBREZNEEEREM
REKEENEREE RASMEE S
ERCHREWEES B RMBIRITHE
ERER A HEEERBELER
A B SRR NTERR o A& B N B 3R & B
REHRZECEERDWREKREER M
AIREAERN RS AR T

For the year ended 31 December 2018

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group
(i) endorsed certain bills receivable for the settlement of trade and
other payables; and (ii) discounted certain bills receivable to banks
for raising of cash. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to
these bills receivable, and the Group’s obligations to the corresponding
counterparties were discharged in accordance with the commercial
practice in the PRC and the risk of the default in payment of the
endorsed and discounted bills receivable is low because all endorsed
and discounted bills receivable are issued and guaranteed by the
reputable PRC banks. As a result, the relevant assets and liabilities were
not recognised on the consolidated financial statements. The maximum
exposure to the Group that may result from the default of these
endorsed and discounted bills receivable at the end of each reporting
period are as follows:

AEERBEEEHERHHEHEEREY
E(ZZ—tF:—FE+—F) (M
15) MEZAERNF—FE+FAY
B MENRR—RREBRENRE
ERREEFTEBEIAMERERNES
o

R N\EFEER-_E—+F+-_A=1+—
B AL BEREERZET 5 FEER AT
Z AT 2 B R A - T FE U A R PR K
HE®RBEL:

2018 2017

BET T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BHREMEMRENSE Endorsement of trade and other payables 7,014,212 7,615,379

AR EBEAEER Discounted bills for cash-raising 7,239,375 4,850,394
MAEEDEERDIIBEBREN  Outstanding endorsed and discounted bills

eSS receivable with recourse 14,253,587 12,465,773

41, KEHEZH 41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases its investment properties (Note 15) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one
to 10 years (2017: one to 11 years). The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

2018 2017
BT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

—FKN Within one year 34,731 19,822
F_FEFRF (BEEERT) In the second to fifth year inclusive 73,661 49,418
hF& Over five years 102,887 78,808
211,279 148,048
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KEHE R (') 41,

ERAMEA

RIB-NER - T—+F+-_A=1+—
B AEBRBEAITHELLEHEHE ZF
AETHARKEHEN KON A M

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(continued)

As lessee

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

T

2018 2017
BT BT
HK$000 HK$'000
—&FR Within one year 350,117 348,020
FE_FEERF (BIEEEME) In the second to fifth year inclusive 629,420 510,013
hEi& Over five years 101,415 150,576
1,080,952 1,008,609

42, EE 42. COMMITMENTS

Bk £ SCHTRE41 P Ef ey S S T B RSN -
AEBNRERREA T EAALRE:

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in Note 41
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

2018 2017
BET T BETF T
HK$'000 HK$'000

FUEE A TS IHC FTAE R B - Contracted, but not provided for in relation to

the acquisition of:

e /ER ﬁ%& S BREEER — property, plant and equipment, intangible
AT ERIE assets and prepaid land lease payments 575,393 723,339
—REKMB AR, HE AT — Investments in subsidiaries/associates 3,630,187 1,225,340
4,205,580 1,948,679
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43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

AR 5 I R
() EBEAEHIRS

P 55 B 75 4 P RE AL A A 52 5
Sh AEEFRRBEB I EUT R

()

Significant transactions with related parties
The Group entered into the following transactions with related
parties during the years in addition to transactions detailed

=K elsewhere in these financial statements:
e Sales
2018 2017
BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Joint ventures 5,019 =
EEX =y Fellow subsidiaries 284,085 245,865
EEX I =PNGIEo)d N Associates of a fellow subsidiary 530,464 674,138
iR l/NE] Associates 22 4,932
FERERFFEN LA Companies held by non-controlling interests = 3,851
BEEE Purchases
2018 2017
BET T BT T
HK$000 HK$'000
BEDHE Joint ventures 18,118 =
EESNEYNG] Fellow subsidiaries 38,074 24,596
/NG Associates 37,011 14,637
PP = Non-controlling interests - 74,447
IR ERFTFARIQR] Companies held by
non-controlling interests - 8,063
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43. BB INE (&) 43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
() EBEREHALIRS (&) ()  Significant transactions with related parties (continued)

ENEEZE Management fees paid to

2018 2017

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

/NG Associates 2,716 7,124

BESG =GN NS Associates of fellow subsidiaries 1,798 s

BEIGIENG Fellow subsidiaries 12,961 4,748

BENREEE Management fees received from

2018 2017

BET T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEXNENG Fellow subsidiaries = 2,024

IR = Non-controlling interests = 11,254
AEHE T Operating lease payments

2018 2017

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

it /NE] Associates 6,773 =

CEIGIEYNS Fellow subsidiaries 28,352 22,221

FEIERE A Non-controlling interests = 306
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43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

43. BB EE (F
() EAWBIXS (&)

()

Significant transactions with related parties (continued)

ETREE Service fees paid to
2018 2017
BEET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EES =N Fellow subsidiaries 20,712 15,636
=N Associates 12,777 309
FJEVERR = Non-controlling interests 138,031 =
EWFE YA Interest income received from
2018 2017
BET T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
B2 N ) Associates 38,561 =
E 78 H% Interest expenses paid to
2018 2017
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
H R A ) Intermediate holding companies 4,931 65,388
i /NE] Associates 55,724 =
TERETAN As lessee

RERSHR AEEEBYHEL

I RGHR S THEALE

EETH

ARZEBEENKOBHAALT

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments with related parties under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

2018 2017

BET T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

—FR Within one year 10,087 10,376
F_ERF (PREEEMRST) In the second to fifth year inclusive 7,017 6,104
17,104 16,480
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43. BEE R IR E (18) 43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
() EXEEAIRZ (&) ()  Significant transactions with related parties (continued)
EABETN () As lessee (continued)
KEEBNETHAZERAEBRET The Group leases certain of its offices and warehouses under non-
AHGERLTAETRR - XM cancellable operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
AR —EME- negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 2 years.
Fit X B IREE ST BT IER These transactions are all at the terms agreed between the relevant
fEH parties.
() EBREIETSHEER (I)  Significant balances with related parties
RNEE BT A AT E KRR The Group had the following significant balances with its related
parties:
JEKETHR 77 508 Amounts due from related parties
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B HEWRIA (Kita) Trade receivables (Note a) 338,280 81,185
Eh JEUCGRIE (H77ED) Other receivables (Note b) 2,062,774 27,912
TEfHSRIE (Hfazc) Prepayments (Note ¢) 1,503 6,267
2,402,557 115,364
Miita - B 5N ZIE Note a: Trade receivables
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEL NN Fellow subsidiaries 36,954 81,109
HEPE Joint ventures 782 =
kSN Associates 44,008 76
EESNEPNGE) NG| Associates of fellow subsidiaries 256,536 =
338,280 81,185
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BE

BAHE T 1 5E (4F)

(]

abptr et

)

ERBEMERS (&) (In
JEY B 5 50 R ()

REBEHR AEEERNERAH
HFE WK BB 5 B B R IR KO BRI D AT

ZZE-)\FF+ZA=F+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

Significant balances with related parties (continued)
Amounts due from related parties (continuea)

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables with related
parties based on invoice date at the end of each reporting period

w is as follows:
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$000 HK$'000
0Z230H 0-30 days 287,871 76,217
31260H 31-60 days 1,561 2,307
61290H 61-90 days 1,376 1,216
91%180H 91-180 days 1,824 181
#B38180H Over 180 days 45,648 1,264
338,280 81,185
Misth B Y E Note b: Other receivables
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$000 HK$'000
EES h=PNG Fellow subsidiaries 801 5,981
EEZERAR Immediate holding company 17,967 17,967
= YNG Associates 2,023,780 3,839
IR i Non-controlling interests 20,226 125
2,062,774 27,912
BT —ERK—HBEEQRBE Except for the other receivables due from an associate of
2,014,376,0007T * I H B A R R 17 HK$2,014,376,000, which bore interest at the benchmark one
AN —FHemMEEAREER year lending rate of the People’s Bank of China plus 5% or 10%,
EEFE F)F5%5K10% 1 BB HAD the remaining receivables are unsecured and interest-free. No
FEUGRIB SN - 3% 35 T R 1) FE U GRTE B provisions are made against the receivables from related parties
mEAMERRAE -HERR_Z as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017. The trade and
—N\F+ZA=+—HEZZ—+ other receivables are expected to be received within one year.
F+ZA=+—BrEKEE s X
BT REE - AREE S R EA UK
BIEAR—FRIKE -
Hiitc - FEITHE Note c: Prepayments
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EESL)EPNG] Fellow subsidiaries 1,473 6,259
kNG| Associates 30 8
1,503 6,267
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43. BEE R IR E (18) 43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
(I BEREEAIXE (&) (I Significant balances with related parties (continued)
JETEG8 77 508 Amounts due to related parties
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B SN IE (Hita) Trade payables (Note a) 17,302 25,724
HAbFETFRIE (Mazb) Other payables (Note b) 4,039,805 157,927
U B — KB R BB B (B/itc)  Payable for acquisition of an associate (Note ¢) = 1,063,985
4,057,107 1,247,636
Mista - B 5 ZE Note a: Trade payables
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EES NN Fellow subsidiaries 1,387 1,146
AR Joint venture 10,619 -
=N Associates 5,296 7,340
IR iR Non-controlling interests = 17,201
IR RSN AR Companies held by non-controlling interests - 37
17,302 25,724
REREER  AKBEEREZERAH The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables with related
HIFEST BB 7 B S RIBRIBRER D AT parties based on invoice date at the end of each reporting period
PUNNE is as follows:
2018 2017
BT T BET T
HKS$'000 HK$'000
0Z290H 0-90 days 16,341 25,465
91£365H 91-365 days 733 220
B iE365H Over 365 days 228 39
17,302 25,724
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43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

BAHE T 1 5E (4F)

Iy EXEEAIRS (&) (I  Significant balances with related parties (continued)
JET B0 7 50 (&) Amounts due to related parties (continued)
Hiath - Bt e Note b:  Other payables
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEIERR iR Non-controlling interests 926,364 -
SRl Associates 1,062 =
I /N Intermediate holding companies 3,093,796 =
EESLI=VNG Fellow subsidiaries 18,583 157,927
4,039,805 157,927
BT —EENSPREERAGS Except for the other payables due to intermediate holding
#3,000,000,0007T ' #£2.68% = company of HK$3,000,000,000, which bore interest at 2.68%-
2.82% =t R E A R FRIB SN - R E 2.82%, the remaining payables are unsecured, interest-free and
FleRe) BT RIE BRI - £ 8RR repayable on demand.
Hiitc - YhE— St &2 AT fE (T KR Note c:  Payable for acquisition of an associate
2018 2017
BT T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
—RE R B AR A fellow subsidiary = 1,063,985
- 1,063,985

(1)

BEHMPRBRFEHERNRS
e i

SO AREERFEBIET RS
TRORSHEE (ABRNTHEEE
BIFTUZERS BEFER X
REM—RIRITEER - ENRFRT
RHOME  KRAREEFRAIELE
PR T EEE -

(1)

Transactions/balances with other PRC government
controlled entities

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions,
including deposits placement, borrowings and other general
banking facilities, with certain banks and financial institutions
which are government-related entities in its ordinary course of
business. In view of the natures of those banking transactions,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that separate
disclosure would not be meaningful.
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43. BB A E (&) 43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(IV) ARAREZEEREMFTEEEEK (IV) The remuneration of directors of the Company and
EWNHET other members of key management was as follows:
FEEEAERF Compensation of key management personnel

2018 2017
BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
e EBERIEA Salaries, allowances and bonuses 20,446 27,465
RURAE N ET SR Retirement benefit scheme contributions 363 330
20,809 27,795
FTEEEBEBAENTFNH ARG EE The remuneration of key management personnel is determined
EBEBEARBREMGHBEEBET - by the management of the Company having regarding to the

performance of individuals and market trends.
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ZEMIEA

44, RFERIE 7

BRI ABENNBENRZREEN

For the year ended 31 December 2018

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

T: as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
—E-N\&E 2018
SRMEE Financial assets
BAREE BRAREBRA
FTAERH BEERA  Htt2EKRN
SREE ENSREE SREE st
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
at fair value Financial through other
through profit assets at comprehensive
or loss amortised cost income Total
BETT BETT BT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HiJEREL R EE (#7:222)  Other non-current finandial
assets (Note 22)
BERE Equity investments 74,467 - - 74,467
BESAES Asset-backed securities 148,206 = = 148,206
HEERBBE (H/i223) Other non-current assets
(Note 23)
REER Long-term deposits 863,750 = = 863,750
EiRBeMEE (f/7222)  Other current finandial assets
(Note 22)
BESAES Asset-backed securities 237,011 = = 237,011
SRED Financial products 8,549,773 148,613 = 8,698,386
BHRKTERERRE Trade and bils receivables - - 19,088,152 19,088,152
Z 5 R EMEWFIE (#/:225)  Trade and other receivables
(Note 25) - 51,421,309 - 51,421,309
FEMR B R 7 7B (Hi243) Amounts due from related parties
(Note 43) - 2,401,054 - 2,401,054
[RERLYEE Pledged deposits - 3,428,676 = 3,428,676
RekReEED Cash and cash equivalents - 16,633,301 = 16,633,301
@it Total 9,873,207 74,032,953 19,088,152 102,994,312
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44, RERIE D 2EMI A (&) 44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
—EB-)\F (#) 2018 (continued)
tRAE Financial liabilities

1R 88 A AR
TENESmEs
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
BT T
HK$’000
2 5 RE AR FRIE Trade and other payables 53,266,492
JE 15 B ESE 75 5K IE Amounts due to related parties 4,057,107
SRR Short-term debentures 3,423,868
FTRRITIERK Interest-bearing bank borrowings 40,664,521
e EH Bonds payable 6,847,740
Bt Total 108,259,728
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4. BRBEn 2T A (&)

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

2017

Financial assets

AHEE
ER M EWRE SHEE #@st

Loans and Available-for sale
receivables financial assets Total
BT BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AEEERE Available-for sale investments
ik Current = 6,556,642 6,556,642
e Non-Current = 334,472 334,472
E 5 R A EWFE (f225) Trade and other receivables (Note 25) 64,298,030 = 64,298,030
[k B E Amounts due from related parties 115,364 = 115,364
[RERLYEE Pledged deposits 2,566,981 = 2,566,981
ReRReEED Cash and cash equivalents 14,161,833 = 14,161,833
@it Total 81,142,208 6,891,114 88,033,322
A= Financial liabilities

T S AR AN
ENERAaE
Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

AT T

HK$'000
B 5 REMENTIE (H527) Trade and other payables (Note 27) 52,709,330
JE < BB 75 5R78 (H7243) Amounts due to related parties (Note 43) 1,247,636
FHEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 32,209,788
B EA Bonds payable 4,665,382
WBET Total 90,832,136

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited

Annual Report 2018

271 f



RO VRS IR MY st

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-T— \FT+_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2018

45. TR TR ARABERIAE

=R

AEEEBTAZERERRAABEE(HE
FREEEAREBEAEMAEERIN) HI

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably

mr approximate to fair values, are as follows:
AREE AREE
Carrying amounts Fair values
2018 2017 2018 2017
BT T BB BT T BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
EMmIERESBMEE  Other non-current financial
assets
TREE Financial liabilities
ETERITER Interest-bearing bank
borrowings 40,664,521 32,209,788 39,744,801 36,772,505
B ESH Bonds payable 6,847,740 4,665,382 6,784,514 4,958,571
st Total 47,512,261 36,875,170 46,529,315 41,731,076
BB GEERAE B RREEEY- Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash

BEEMER AR S REMERFKIARN
TREE HMRBEREE FAES
REMENRENERAEE EHRE
FoRYNBEEALHRBBRKEBER
AEREEXAZREERE TEAR
ZETANEHRRIE-

MY BERAE 2 AKE 2 MBHPFIAER
ETemTAARBEFENBRRRE
F-WBEEERAEFEMEEREAR
EG2R-NEWMSAH MBEMPIDM
CRIANEEEDYETHETERD
TR -HERERVMBEREZLY
Mo HERRENERSEFMANT RS
BB R REFZESETIMm

@

272 ooisEam sERssmsEA

equivalents, pledged deposits, financial assets included in trade and other
receivables, other current financial assets, financial liabilities included in
trade and other payables, short-term debentures, amounts due from/to
related parties and loans from associates approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the
audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.
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45. TR THE 2 AAEBERAAE 45 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

BEEH (&

MBEERBECAABESABR (M
FEFERIE)RXHETRNEMRK S
PREBMTAZSBEAR KA AREE
B 2EATITAREBRR:

RITERN DA BETIREFBELUER
EERRRFGFHOTANRITH KRG
REARARBEREFE - R_T-N\F
TZRA=1—B AEERFERTRE
ER NENRBRE T HRLAEK-
REERSENTEHORRE  BNESD
RABERBEUENESNRSZTSMNE
MRBEHARAKRBEEREGLE -

BASEATHEERERENIELTR
I E R A o EE THER A e m] R R
MSERSI L EITHNBRABERAOER
MBS EERMN G - ZEEERESR
BIT¥E BE BEERREETAUE LR
EHRR (A7) X AESE#HBITE LR
NEFTEABERGE (HludEEEE
A S FIE - e REHEFT AR ([EV/
EBITDA N BHEMAXR([MAE])F
) EHNIEA AR ARNCEEE
BRUABFGFEFE - RSEHEESIRE
AREIRFEEERRERTELR AR ZM
GERERBDESRABREZRSEERE
EITIE - TEEEE AN IE LT RER
BRERMNGE2UNGFERAAEBE EFH
FEHERTEEZ G AREE (RE
AHBHRARAR) REBAAAEBERED
(RIBEAR)AEGE NARBREHERZ
e EEE

AEBEREIFEMKRE (NFEABIRT
BIOMEMER) AEERBEHEBEU
HR & E R H TR TS M EEMARRIRE
EREMERLUMTZERALMRENR
nfEE-

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair values of bank borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
Group's own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings as at 31 December 2018 was assessed to be insignificant.
The fair value of the bonds payable is estimated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using an equivalent market interest rate for
a similar bonds payable with consideration of the Group’s own non-
performance risk.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments which were previously
classified as available-for-sale equity investments, have been estimated
using a market-based valuation technique based on assumptions that
are not supported by observable market prices or rates. The valuation
requires the directors to determine comparable public companies
(peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and calculates an
appropriate price multiple, such as enterprise value to earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA") multiple
and price to earnings (“P/E”) multiple, for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value
of the comparable company by an earnings measure. The trading
multiple is then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and size
differences between the comparable companies based on company-
specific facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to
the corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted equity investments
to measure the fair value. The directors believe that the estimated fair
values resulting from the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the related changes in
fair values, which are recorded in profit or loss, are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The Group
has estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by using a
discounted cash flow valuation model based on the market interest rates
of instruments with similar terms and risks.
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45. TRITH 2 AREBENRARE 45 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

BEXR (&) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
AAREEER Fair value hierarchy
TEEBEAEE SR T AN AR EBHES The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
P Group's financial instruments:
EARBEHEZEE: Assets measured at fair value:
RZEBE-NFE+=ZA=+—H As 31 December 2018
UTHARETHAREENE
Fair value measurement using
EXTEE  BEATTHE
SERMISNRE BWAZE BAZE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active Observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(B—4) (F=#) (F=R) #ct
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BET T BT T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRARBEGAEMEZAENER Finandal assets at fair value
SREE through other comprehensive
income
EDYLCE Y TES Trade and bills receivables - - 19,088,152 19,088,152
BARBEFABER Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profit or loss
BEEAES Asset-backed securities - - 385,217 385,217
SREMD Financial products - - 8,549,773 8,549,773
RiERE Equity investment = = 74,467 74,467
=3l Long-term deposits - - 863,750 863,750
@5t Total - - 28,961,359 28,961,359
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45. TRITH 2 AREBENRARE 45 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

)

BREL (&) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
AREEER (B) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
R-ZE—+F+_A=+—H As 31 December 2017
TEIARETHAREBENE
Fair value measurement using
BEAAER BANAEBR
EETIHZRRE BB BAHE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active Observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(F—1) (B=#) (F=#) &ar
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BB BEFT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
AELAERE Available-for-sale investments
BESRES Asset-backed securities = = 412,484 412,484
SREMD Financial products - - 6,381,025 6,381,025
st Total - - 6,793,509 6,793,509
EAnBEFENGE: Liabilities measured at fair value:
AEER_ZE-N\F+A=1+—HIEE The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
BEEANUNAABEFENESREE (= at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
T—HF |,
FR F—ERE_RALBESEZME During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
WHEEE TESHEENSHBEEA between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
FELFE="BHNBER(ZE—+F:|) both financial assets and financial liabilities (2017: Nil).
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45. TR TH 2 NREERDUE 45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

BEEX (&) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
BARBEFENEERENT Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
RZEBE-N\E+=ZA=+-—8 As at 31 December 2018
UTHARETHA L EERE
Fair value measurement using
EDNGIE- S EXFAHEE
R TI% R E WAHE WAHE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active Observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(E—8) (=) (B=4) A5t
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BETT BB BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RITHE Bank borrowings - - 39,744,801 39,744,801
EfES Bonds payable - - 6,784,514 6,784,514
@it Total - - 46,529,315 46,529,315
R-_ZE—+F+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2017
UTSIARETH AR BEE
Fair value measurement using
ERAHE BEATAHE
ERTISHRE BAR BABIE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active Observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(F—8) (B=&) (F=8) @t
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BETFT BB BETT BETFT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
RITIER Bank borrowings = = 36,772,505 36,772,505
B EH Bonds payable = = 4,958,571 4,958,571
o Total - = 41,731,076 41,731,076
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46. BIBEMREEBEREE

AEETELBMTABRKEBRITENR
EffEmr ReRReFEYWARECER
FR-ZETBRIANTIZEANTIALE
BEHKEERES - AEBEHAREHEW
RELESRNREASZREMSBEE
RBE THELEERES-

AEESBIAMELENTIERARRBNE
R SRR EERREADESRE
R-EEZREAYRBEESARNBEK
WA

AEEEHNTHENXEFHEERE
ZHEASERFHN R SH R
BEHBRBEER-

AERENBRRBEMREE KA
KEHIRE 077 A ARIZ BB

UTHREEBRRDAEENZELH
BREEFEHRERE - FTFEHANS0
EEZ (T —tF 50EEZ) L
MR RREEBE MRS
BT -

M ZF BRI REFOFE EFA T
SOfEE B MATEEMBEERFT
g AAEEREE-_T—N\F+=
A=+ B FERBE R
DB A 18049 #692,5527T
(ZZF—tF:B¥44,7607T) °

EEERLS ARE&RENRERIL
PR S HIRA R - R ER
B AT ERE B F KRR -

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group'’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank borrowings, bonds payable, and cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for manageing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term debt obligations
with a floating interest rate.

The Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of
fixed and variable rate debts.

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming that those balances
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2017: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease which represents the management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates is
used.

If the interest rate on floating rate borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the post-tax profit or the Group would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$692,552 (2017: HK$44,760) for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the exposure
at the end of each reporting period does not reflect the exposure
at the end of each reporting period.
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4. BT IR EE A BRI

meE

(b)

SN LB

NTRAREBRAIINEHENEE SR
EMEEAERREHROEKEE
HPTZRAEENE SR EME
WHE Ao mas mK B
BRI A EEMROTER R
RESEEY EHREMBEMNR
B RITER EHERESREMNE

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, which are
mainly trade and other receivables, other financial assets, amounts
due from/to related parties, pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, bank borrowings, short-
term debentures and bonds payable of the Group, at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

E-
2018
BT T
HK$°000
EE Assets
E7t ([Z=7T]) United States dollars (“USD") 106,667
AR RMB 101,255,007
=K Liabilities
ZE7t ([Z=7T]) United States dollars (“USD") 119,502
AR RMB 113,578,288
2017
BT T
HK$'000
&= Assets
FE([Exl) United States dollars (“USD") 240,077
BT (TETl) Euro (“EUR") 2,225
ok HK$ 1,212,941
=L Liabilities
x5 ([FEx]) United States dollars (“USD")
BT (TBl) Euro (“EUR") 111,544
ok HK$ 6,122,157
AEEEEEBRATYERINEIE The management of Group manages the foreign currency risk by
SO B AR B IR SN R B o AN B2 [E IR A closely monitoring the movements of foreign currency exchange
b 4 T <7 (T {a] 91 FE 52 HA A 4 3 4t 5h rates. The Group currently has not entered into any foreign
SNERER - BRI U ERZ R currency forward contracts to hedge against foreign currency risk.
Seh AN e g Management will consider hedging foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
278 018FsH EHBEEEERAT
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46. IR EEEERBER 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
(48) AND POLICIES (continued)
(b) ﬁl\ M ELB (48) (b) Foreign currency risk (continued)
BRJE T Sensitivity analysis
ZIS E BETXrESAREIHEETE The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation in RMB in 2018 (2017:
(ZE—+tF E - BakBEEL USD, EUR, and HK$ against RMB).
ARE) -
TEBERIREEER  AEBEKBRBAT The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
HEHN(EREBEERBENAN reporting period to a reasonably possible change in RMB exchange
BEEH)  HARKER (ZE—+ rate (2017:change in USD, EUR and HKD exchange rate), with all
FETT BT NBEIE R ) Al B other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due
RNEE2E (AEMESHFT to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).
BRGURE -
—E-NF 2018
BT A KRR BREE AR R
LH/(FH) #im/ (Fd)
Increase/ Increase /
(decrease) (decrease)
in HKD/ in profit
RMB rate before tax
BETT
% HK$'000
WEELARERE If the Hong Kong dollar weakens
against the RMB 5% 902,754
HEEEAREHE If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens
against the RMB (5%) (902,754)

/A
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

46. B EFREE B RN BUR

(#8) AND POLICIES (continued)
(b) HpEEmERE (42) (b) Foreign currency risk (continued)
BREZ AT Sensitivity analysis
—E—+tF 2017
B 71 1) B A
£/ (TFR) i/ Cad)
Increase /
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in exchange rate before tax
% BEFT
% HK$'000
HARBRETLE If the RMB weakens against the USD 5% 5,366
WARBEETHE If the RMB strengthens against the USD (5%) (5,366)
HARE L ASEEE If the RMB weakens against

the Hong Kong dollar 5% (204,960)

HAREZAEHE If the RMB strengthens against
the Hong Kong dollar (5%) 204,960
HAREZBTRE If the RMB weakens against the EUR 5% 43
WARBEBITAE If the RMB strengthens against the EUR (5%) @3)

* T EERE T
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46. AR EE B R R BUR

(#)

(@)

EEREE
AEBEERMNANEEBAISENE=
TEAIRG AEBENBRRAMEHR
BEUGEHETRSNTFIAMR
BERZETFE W AEERE
EEEWFURGR  BURBRE R T
RN MAFEBEEEMLIEEE
BEETZRSME  REEEERA
TERRIE  AEET SR TEE
Hio

R-ZFE—NFFZA=+—HAREX
i 0 R KB ER

TREIR -_ZT-NF+ A
Z+—HERAEENEERE (X
EREBBER  BRIFBATLEK
AKEB NI ESEMER) JIRE
EEERREERARZKMONUR
FRERE D -

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(0

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. For
transactions that are not denominated in the functional currency
of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit
terms without the specific approval of the Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end stageing as at 31 December
2018

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end stageing
classification as at 31 December 2018.

128 B
B EERL FHEFEERL
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
F—EE FRER F=EE Bt % st
Simplified
Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Approach Total
BT BETR BETR BT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HibIEREEE* Other non-current assets* 863,750 = = = 863,750
HinsiemEE Other current financial assets* 148,613 = = 19,088,152 19,236,765
B 5 R EhEWRFIE Trade and other receivables
(BaE25) ** (Note 25) ** 4,637,120 = = 47,356,620 51,993,740
JE Mt BB 7 R Due from related parties* 2,062,774 = = 338,280 2,401,054
[RENERN Pledged deposits 3,428,676 = = = 3,428,676
ReRBeZEN Cash and cash equivalents 16,633,301 = = = 16,633,301
st Total 27,774,234 = = 66,783,052 94,557,286
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+—HBZERA

O )% F K f
ud R E R EEEFEE T EME
BEWF RN 5 ZR B
BRI FERY BEIRE N E25

** FAEZREMERTRS L
BEMNEEESFIEEHET
B BZUA K ERBREAE

BENEERRRZR KSR
%

RZF—+F+=-A=+—HHEX
wa

AEBHEMEREE (BRERE IR
©EEY - U 58 R B E
WHE)MEERBREEREEF A
MEY FARBREEERZEIA
Y BR T {E -

AEEEENAREETENSE =
THETRG BB EEMER-F
EETRBRDERER /HFT -
Mol MATRBEETE IR - ARALK
BEKESRBAZEFEREZD
R AR RITE  MAKEAYL
BEXEESETAR-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end stageing as at 31 December

2018 (continued)

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in trade and
other receivables is considered to be “normal” when there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, amounts due from
related parties and other receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty, by
geographical region and by industry sector. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group as the customer
bases of the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in
different sectors and industries.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
also monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants, if any.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are at floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of
the reporting period.
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A (st P
46. Eﬁ%@t SR B AE KRR 46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
(#&) AND POLICIES (continued)
d) REELRM (&) (d) Liquidity risk (continued)
RER
MEFIFE HEREER 1EUR 1226 ENE BERERE REE
Weighted Total

average Repayable Within 1t02 Over undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  on demand 1year years 2 years cash flows amounts
% BT BETT BETFT BETFT BT BETT
% HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

“E—+F+-A=1-H 31 December 2018
B o RHMENTIE Trade and other payables = - 53266492 = - 53266492 537266492
e AR Amounts due to related parties - - 4057107 - - 4057107 4,057,107

RITEH Bank borrowings

EEf = Fixed rate 346 - 14411335 17916 378699 14807950 14,312,730
FEH = Floating rate 286 6613008 17,315,180 139684 2909369 26,977,241 26,351,791
&SR Bonds payable 415 = 284,181 2,566,761 4753473 7604415 6,847,740
HHEES Short-term debenture 368 - 3518369 = - 3518369 3423868
6613008 92,852,664 2,724,361 8041541 110231574 108,259,728

“E—+F+-A=1-H 31 December 2017
B o RHMENTIE Trade and other payables = - 52709330 = - 52709330 52,709,330
e R Amounts due to related parties - 157,164 1090472 S - 1247636 1,4763%

FITER Bank borrowings

B = Fixed rate 429 - 21317912 640,937 102906 22,061,755 21,121,006
FEH = Floating rate 299 4733416 11,038,204 358,088 36531 16166239  11,088782
EES Bonds payable 45 - 2483658 179 2731922 5436759 4,665382

4,890,580 88,639,576 1,220,204 2871359 97,621,719 90,832,136

BERERERERNBITERD
AAEXEBASTH R ERKE
B REER -RZFE—N\F+=A
=+ —H ZERTEFNEDL
504 57 #6,613,008,0007T (=&
—+F : B#4,733,416,0007T ) © £
FFRAEBOBMERR  AREIES
RARITIRATRETEENERE
KA ER - AR R EZRE A%
EMZERITETBIRRITE RSB
HEATHEEEFR AR REHRE

BE-

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “repayable on demand” time band in the above maturity
analysis. As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate carrying amount
of these bank borrowings was approximately HK$6,613,008,000
(2017: HK$4,733,416,000). Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors of the Company do not believe that
it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary right
to demand immediate repayment. The directors of the Company
believe that such bank borrowings of the Group will be repaid
after the end of reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the bank borrowing agreements.
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meE

(d)

RBESERE (&)
AREERBESARMNS  ARAE
FRRITERBEMABETERA
HEMASERITEFNBEHRES
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk (continued)

For the purpose of manageing liquidity risk, the directors of the
Company review the expected cash flows information of the
Group's bank borrowings based on the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the bank borrowing agreements as set out in the
table below:

KR
T RI= (EDN 122% WL ReR2EE REE
Weighted Total
average Within 1t02 Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year years 2 years cash flows amounts
% BETT BB BB BETL BETFT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FITRER Bank borrowings
R=F-/\E+=A=+-A As at 31 December 2018 237 6,613,008 = - 6,613,008 6,600,000
RZF—tF+=A=1+—H As at 31 December 2017 147 4,791,857 = - 4,791,857 4,733,416
MEHEZREER TSRO E S The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
BPTTEETE T FI R TR - BIEE E for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if
NEAITESRBENFEHA X changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
TERMFIER &R - interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
() EBEXREMERE (e) Capital risk management
REBERHEMN  BERAEBET The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
ERUFELE  WiBBEERFEE will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
HEEHRETFEARRFERK return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
@] R o equity balances.
AEBENEARBBEERFHE (2 The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
EW 28 - 30%315 Bl # %5 /9 52 58 includes the short-term debentures, bank borrowings and bonds
MES RITERRENES) (K payable disclosed in notes 28, 30 and 31, respectively, net of cash
N%ESRRESZEEY) RAATHE and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
BAELEZRZ (BREEETRA R Company, comprising issued share capital, retained earnings and
Baf REMERE) - other reserves.
AEBEEEETHREEERERE -E Management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a
BERBEEN—Bn EBEEZEE periodic basis. As part of this review, the management considers
AR NRSEERNEEARR - BIEE the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
BENKEESR AEBEEBIKMN capital. Based on recommendations of the management, the
& B R EITH IR KRBT E R K Group will balance its overall structure through the payment of
BB AEG THHEEEE- dividends and new shares issues as well as the issue of new debt or
the repayment of existing debts.
284 0srsm wEBEsEERAR
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HEHRSEE

ZE-NFENRAMNAA EHEEREKS
FIELTHREB Y RERRELIEEHE
RBEHH ARG E URBIFEE
2B -BE_T—NF—A FEHR
BEWHEBER DG EIE ERK A 18
BB ER - RIBIEEFTIHE
IHREBERER GG MEFTME ALY
AR¥1296B8 8 REHBEIZERE
BEBREURSELHERNIBEHARE
3,099.48 &7t (HHE R K BH3,537.38
EBir) (IFHAR) URBIThEE 3
BEAMER- R _T—NFE_A I &
EEpmzRETREE IR s I
FERERKARARMNIEZENBAR
HEETREREE IR EBRS I %R
BEEMESELIFEE (BRRHELD
OTCEMEEMRZ)43.03%HEn

47. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In August and September 2018, CR Pharmaceutical Holdings entered
into a share subscription agreement and a supplemental agreement
thereto, respectively, with the then shareholders of Jiangzhong Group for
the subscription of the shares of Jiangzhong Group. As at January 2019,
all conditions for the effectiveness of the supplemental share subscription
agreement have been satisfied and the supplemental share subscription
agreement has taken effect. According to the supplemental share
subscription agreement, Jiangzhong Group has conditionally agreed
to increase their registered capital by approximately RMB129.6 million,
while CR Pharmaceutical Holdings has conditionally agreed to make a
capital contribution of approximately RMB3,099.4 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$3,537.3 million) (subject to adjustment) by way
of cash for the subscription of the newly increased registered capital of
Jiangzhong Group. In February 2019, Jiangzhong Group has completed
its relevant change of business registration for the proposed subscription.
Jiangzhong Group has become a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. CR Pharmaceutical Holdings directly holds 51% interests in
Jiangzhong Group, and thereby indirectly holds 43.03% interests in
Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical, a leading pharmaceutical manufacturer of
OTC products in the PRC.
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

eI the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2018 2017
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
L EN NG ] Property, plant and equipment 1,195 1,531
RSB AR E Investments in subsidiaries 19,673,640 14,039,457
= NGIE QL] Amounts due from subsidiaries 12,110,785 =
EREEELRRE Total non-current assets 31,785,620 14,040,988
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
EMK&?H&?&IE Other receivables 3,878 16,762
JFE Wi B BB Amounts due from subsidiaries 4,148,354 18,057,699
=R Q’D\ A Amount due from the immediate
holding company 17,967 17,967
Be RIBITEHE Cash and bank balances 2,891,409 1,283,756
MEEELE Total current assets 7,061,608 19,376,184
BiEII=NE CURRENT LIABILITIES
g5 &EMF‘%H?XE Trade payables and other payables 19,020 12,103
JESBE A Amounts due to subsidiaries 564,049 287,672
JE A< R 3 Q’A ia Amounts due to the intermediate
holding company 3,002,493 12
STRIRITHER Interest bearing bank borrowings 6,949,063 3,996,750
mENBEER Total current liabilities 10,534,625 4,296,537
i :éfa)/ EEFE NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (3,473,017) 15,079,647
HWEERABERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 28,312,603 29,120,635
FERBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
STRIRITEN Interest bearing bank borrowings - 798,396
EEFE NET ASSETS 28,312,603 28,322,239
= EQUITY
[N Share capital 27,241,289 27,241,289
G Reserves 1,071,314 1,080,950
AR TOTAL EQUITY 28,312,603 28,322,239
RARRMPFBRARKTER - N\F= The Company's statement of financial position was approved and

At BREFefERRETE X

HATALTREREE
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ITHEM
Wang Chuncheng
EF

Director

201853 FHBEEEEFRAAF

signed on its behalf by:

EE
Li Guohui
BEEYBEE

Chief Financial Officer

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2018 and are
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48. AR EARR KRR (&)  48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)
Het Note *
FEEFFEHZEWT - A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
& 5B R = FE
Translation Retained
reserve earnings Total
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZT—+tF—H—H At 1 January 2017 (542,811) 885,426 342,615
FREF Profit for the year - 1,174,237 1,174,237
MEEEMENZ5 Exchange differences arising
on translation 798,052 - 798,052
FRRMNREEBALTE Total profit and comprehensive
income for the year 798,052 1,174,237 1,972,289
ER-Z—NERBAKE 2016 final dividend declared = (565,606) (565,606)
EAFRIRE Special dividend paid - (668,348) (668,348)
R-_B—tF+-_A=+—8K At 31 December 2017 and
—ZT-N\F—H—H at 1 January 2018 255,241 825,709 1,080,950
FREF Profit for the year - 2,376,340 2,376,340
MEEEMENZ5 Exchange differences arising on
translation (135,200) - (135,200)
FR(EBER)SEF R Total (loss)/profit and
2HE (X)) R ABE comprehensive (expense)/
income for the year (135,200) 2,376,340 2,241,140
ER-Z—EFRERE 2017 final dividend declared = (691,297) (691,297)
[REREEF1ITEIN Special dividend paid = (1,559,479) (1,559,479)
R—_FB—N\F+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2018 120,041 951,273 1,071,314

49. LA An R EREAYIR

49. SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

BIEARATNR -_ZEZ—+E+-_A+-BE Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 12
RS HRAE ST 2 ([ AR ERESTE) | ) - AR December 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the purpose of the Share
DERRES 25 B BT NE(L B &1 Option Scheme is to effectively retain and attract exceptional talents
BT RBYRIIEEAS FETRRE through a further optimised remuneration structure, align the interests
HHHMEEM—3L B EEEK of the employees and Shareholders, and effectively motivate both the
MEE THREEN BT ERD TN management team and key employees, thereby fostering the long-

RHBERMBERFSEOZAL -

term development of the Company and maximizing the interests of the
Shareholders.
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AR BERRIIR (&

PR HEA BB 192 B H SR BFE
E(MTEERBULIFNTESRIN)
BREEAE (BEAKLE BRKE.
MEHETERALBENALT EFW
ENABERAIRENEMSREEA
B) UREEMRME I HAEELE
RELRKBERBERTZENEMERE
T

EITERBERG BETSRARBIRE
HAErE (A )R AR5 BpRE T 81T
B 3T B 10 48 B A K15 8 18628,450,646
BEAR 1% - A E R BLERR (5 B M AT Bl 2 R
ERBRRENAS L ERBEBARRE
AT BE A 10% - RIFIR D HARE ST &
BRETHREE R, RET SR 81T
RO BB BBBEARRCEITRMN A
H K1 % o IR IE IR0 HA AT 8 & H b 7 &
(MBE)RE 2B W ARITEZ IR DB
EITFERA TRITZESFHE ZRETE
RIBARNRTEC BT ZHBERNES Y
30% PR G E B L R A8 - AR (D HA
RERTAR YR AR 1) B M a8 R AR R RHME ] Aty
TEIERY -

B tn BiRERT 81 TR TR B TTREE TR |
EFeET ITHRENRTEARSE: ()K
MERER (BERRZHRIRBRME
BRERF I KRHE: REDBHER
EEREANEGERS ARERHME R &
BRI ZFIHURTIE - Iin B2
HEEEMBEHETFBEBER RIFER
Bty ARt B R ST LE -

BE-_Z—N\E+-_A=+—RHILFE"
I 4% 1) BRREAR SR AR (0 BRRE AT 8] T DA%
$o

e B R FR AR

EEepg RN E—NFZA=-+—HitE
MR T BB ®E -

8 2018FF% TEREEESRAT

49.

50.

SHARE BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

There are 199 incentive targets under the Share Option Scheme, who are
the Directors (excluding non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors), senior management (including general managers,
deputy general managers, heads of the finance department and those
personnel with such functions, board secretaries and other senior
management pursuant to the Articles of Association), and other key
employees whose management and technical skills may have a direct
impact on the results of operation and strategic development of the
Group.

The total number of new Shares that may be issued upon exercise
of the share options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and all
other schemes of the Company (if any) shall not, in aggregate, exceed
628,450,646 Shares, representing 10% of the Company’s total issued
shares as at the date on which the resolution approving the Share Option
Scheme is passed at the extraordinary general meeting. The total number
of new Shares that may be issued in relation to the first grant of the
share options to the incentive targets under the Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 1% of the Company's total issued Shares. The limit
on the number of securities which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and other schemes (if any) shall not exceed 30% of the
relevant class of securities of the Company in issue from time to time, and
no share option may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company if this will result in this limit being
exceeded.

The exercise price of the share options under the Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board, but shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Shares on the grant date (which must be a
trading day) as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet;
and (i) the average closing price of the Shares for the five (5) trading days
immediately preceding the grant date as stated on the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the grant date. The Share Option Scheme shall
be valid for ten years from its effective date, unless otherwise terminated
pursuant to the terms therein.

No share option was granted under the Share Option Scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 21 March 2019.
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